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Key Milestones
TEBREE

2022 2022
APR MAY

Opened New Multi-Service Flagship Medical Acquisition of Health Screening
Centre and Advanced Imaging Centre Services Chain Mobile Medical

570 A BARISHE L AR e A R A ) 2 5

Acquisition of Veterinary Hospital in Tai Po

Ui — IR BB B e

“Listed Enterprises of the Year  “Best in Healthcare Sector” at
2022” presented by the IR Magazine’s Greater China
Bloomberg Businessweek/  Awards 2022

SHIESESCoN SR A E R AREE A
SEE AT B E M0 BERETEA RS
JE L3 2022 Kem s

2022

DEC
+=A

2023
FEB

Strategic Alliance with Prudential

HR BB ENEEE A
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Key Milestones
FTEBRER

Signed Inaugural Dual-Tranche Sustainability-Linked Facility Multiple Awards in Institutional Investor
ST AT B R M B 2022 All-Asia Executive Team Rankings

RERBIREER G202 T NRREEZE
Partner with KaiLong and Asia Allied Infrastructure to Build a B % IE A HE

Purpose-built Medical Grade Building in Hong Kong

BFIERRTNMEERRIAERRBMAaNEBEZEE
BEARIERRNE

JUN
~A

2022 2022
OoCT SEP

Acquisition of Multi-Disciplinary DR REBORN Opened a New Flagship Centre at
Healthcare Services Chain Sure- Central Entertainment Building
Care Medical and Health Network

YiiE 2 B R B E LS R R

DR REBORN A ER T HEAE 5 il 5

Entered into a MOU with AXA Hong Kong & Macau
for a Strategic Partnership

HLAXA R B AT S BB & 1 2 ARt

Strategic Collaboration with New Horizon Health Opened the First Organic Flagship

Veterinary Hospital in Hong Kong
B 2 s Bl EX F R

HAGR IR RER BRS & 1

MAR
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Financial Highlights and Five Year Summary
G RERhFEHRE

2023
—B-=fF
HK$°000
TEx
Revenue WA 3,875,377 2,919,500 2,080,403 1,948,501 1,852,452
EBITDA" BRTEREHA
BRI 430,270 536,364 397,354 460,414 502,552
Profit before tax B F AR R 136,189 321,411 265,896 360,523 450,080
Profit for the year EREF 107,027 270,503 225,593 310,272 384,505
Profit attributable to owners of ANAIEAR NEL
the Company gl 69,654 197,501 192,865 286,576 361,106
Basic eanings per share (HK cents) S RRERRT (L) 5.9 17.1 18.8 29.1 36.7

2023
—EC-=F
HK$’000
FHT
Total assets BEHE 5,513,330 4,860,608 3,790,481 2,555,269 2,346,984
Total liabilities AERE 3,142,385 2,510,062 2,159,695 1,385,736 1,181,087
Net assets EEFE 2,370,945 2,350,556 1,630,786 1,169,533 1,165,897
Financial Metrics BEKER
EBITDA Margin®@ BHmEREHEA
BRI 11.1% 18.4% 19.1% 23.6% 27.1%
Net profit margin® R KO 2.8% 9.3% 10.8% 15.9% 20.8%
Current ratio® BN E 0.85x 1.11x 1.07x 0.98x 1.25x
Quick ratio® RENL RO 0.80x 1.04x 1.04x 0.93x 1.20x
Debt/EBITDA &%/ ERTER
a2 B 1.7x 0.4x 1.4x 0.7x 1.1x
Gearing ratio BEAGLE 30.3% 10.1% 34.5% 25.9% 46.7%
Return on equity® PR AR [E 3R = O 4.5% 11.5% 13.8% 26.5% 33.0%
Return on average total assets” THEEAEBRED 21% 6.3% 7.1% 12.7% 17.8%
Dividend per share (HK cents) FRAS () 10.0 14.4 156.9 23.0 35.0
EC Healthcare 4 Annual Report 2022/23



Financial Highlights and Five Year Summary
MR ERIFHRE

Notes:

M e
EBITDA equals earnings before interests, taxation, depreciation-owned 1. ERMEREHAI 2 BAMNERARGFE  BIE - 8
property, plant and equipment and amortisation. EBITDA is not a standard BVE - BMERBENERBHEANORT - BB
measure under HKFRS. The Company’s management believes that EBITDA, ERBHAT 2 B BB B E EA T RE
as a proxy of operating cash flow generated by the Group’s businesses, SEARE - ARREEERA  BRITEREHEMN
provide investors with useful supplementary information to assess the ZBIMERRNEBEBMEEEREROINREK B
performance of the Group. BEERMEANBRER  EHERERRRR -
The following table sets out the reconciliation of the EBITDA and profit before TEREIIA AR AR ST E R AT 2 BB
tax for the periods indicated: Tt A e M E R
Year ended
31 March
BE=ZA=+—H
IHEE
2023
—E-=F
HK$’000
FET
Profit before tax FRA Al ) 136,189
Finance costs EUR DN 63,636
Depreciation-owned property, plant and equipment WE—aEVE BELXE 137,204
Amortisation of intangible assets EREESE 97,767
Less: Bank and other interest income (note 6 to the financial statements) & : $R17T R EMF U (B 7&mEMIEE6) (4,526)
EBITDA ST E R AT 2 & A 430,270
EBITDA Margin equals earnings before interests, taxation, depreciation-owned 2. ETNEREHEN 2 BN XERTRFEARTH
property, plant and equipment and amortisation over total revenue of the B BE BEYE - BERXEITE REHAT
financial year. BFBRAZBIA ©
Net profit margin equals profit for the year divided by revenue for the same 3. JF R F) 2R P s AR DA B BRI A o
period.
Current ratio equals current assets divided by current liabilities as at the end of 4. MBLLEERMBFERORDEERARBEE -
the financial year.
Quick ratio equals current assets less inventories divided by current liabilities 5. R EERIBFERNTEEERTERAR
as at the end of the financial year. FEE-
Gearing ratio equals total debt (total debt refers to the aggregate sum of bank 6. BEABHEENEHEE (EHEEERTERE
borrowings and convertible bonds excluding lease liabilities relating to ARRERGEN  BESEEANYERRNEE
properties leased for own use) divided by total equity. BERIN BrAERLEEE
Return on equity equals profit for the year divided by the ending balance of 7. RAREIREFRENRFIBR AN BEE N #EREE
total equity of the financial year. ZFREER -
Return on average total assets equals profit for the year divided by the 8. FHHEEERBRESVRFARNRAMBFEZNE
arithmetic mean of the beginning and ending balances of total assets of the EREZFNRFERERZEM T -
financial year.
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16, Leases on 1 April 2019 using the 9. REEER-_Z-NFHA-—BERKETERE

modified retrospective approach. Accordingly, the figures for each of the years
ended 31 March 2018 and 2019 are not restated and therefore may not be
comparable.

BEERRER 5

HREREEN GRS EAE CHAE - e B
E-F\FR-F-NFZAS+-BLEFE
BT RES] B BRI B -

FEHE 2022/23



EC Healthcare At A Glance

Elu\ﬁiﬁ_}_%

VISION
FA=

To be the leading one-stop
healthcare ECOSYSTEM with
focus on preventive and
precision medicine

&Eﬁﬁﬁm—iﬁﬁkﬁiﬁ? \
B WEERBER AN LB E

MISSION
fiEam

Bring Health, Beauty and
Happiness to more People

R « KB - REFHREZA

Aesthetic medical, beauty

CORE VALUES
wUMEE

HEWE
EREL
BRI
FERF

- Integrity

- Empathy

- Co-Ownership

- Disruptive Agility

- Excellence

Medical and wellness services Veterinary and other
BE BRERHEM
XEER ZARBERE
Revenue (HK$ million) Revenue (HK$ million) Revenue (HK$ million)
WA @@ 2 542 2 WA @@ 1 1 01 9 WA @@ 231 3
No. of Service Points No. of Service Points No. of Service Points
R HEE 116 R HEE 38 R HEE 14
OUR STORES No. Service Points Total Area
% 9 B9 P9 JE s B8 168 OEE 706’00‘;5]?;
i 1 2
OUR CUSTOMERS No;oi UmquewCustomers 208,391 Regpu;czhase Rate 82.7%
ey BUEP A [E] i &
Emstmg Quszomer Revenue 66.5% No. of Cross Brand 26.4%
Contribution Customers*
RERFPRBALL? S mhE R P B
Customer Satisfactions Rate® 0
S 99.99%
OUR PEOPLE No. of Registered Practitioners 313 No. of Network Doctors 2 400+
N 49
REER e A CEHES LN ’
No. of Medical Professionals 346
BRIZXASHE
Notes:
BT
1. Based on revenue for the year
BIRARFEZIA
2. Customers of FY22 contribution in FY23 divided by the total revenue in FY22
ZECUERPE_Z_ZUFENRAEER - BUZE__MFLEKA
3. Revenue contribution by existing customers to the total revenue for the year
REBFPHAFELIRANTRE
4, Number of customers who purchased services from more than one brand for the year divided by total number of customers for the year
AEERZERERERENEFPHERUAFENEPEH
5. 100% minus the percentage of material unfavourable feedback of total revenue for the year

100% B EARFEARAFEATFIRENE DL

EC Healthcare

6
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Geographical Coverage
oI5 78 2=

Total of 168 service points across

APEEEREZHRRAEE

KBE(21)

Mainland China E

e

(2) shanghai +3& °

Hong Kong, China REI&#

© © € New Territories North 51t

New Territories North West
00 szmEi =

@ O O New Territories South West i 7 # & °

@O O Kowloon West JLEEFR

706,000 sq ft covering Greater China (as of Mar 31, 2023)
706,000 ¥ 5 R 168 fE R H (BE—F=_=F=H=+—H)

Greater Bay Area, China (exclude

Hong Kong) FEXEE(FRE#EI)

Guangzhou EM (&)

Shenzhen FIl @)

®

Macau &P °

New Territories North East # 52 5Rit © @

New Territories
South East

HAEE DOO

Kowloon Central 1% €)

Hong Kong

Island West
D00 zzer

As at 31 March 2023
BE-®B-=f=A=1+-H

@
Kowloon East 7LEER @)

Hong Kong Island East E2BXR @O & @

Medical 7%

Aesthetic Medical and
Beauty and Wellness
XBEBLUREBARESE

Veterinarian and other
Hith

7 FEHRE 2022/23



One-Stop, Multi-Brand Ecosystem
_ﬁlj—:lfﬁ DDJ}IEE/Q\/ZH\JL

45 diverse brands: luxury and affordable options catering to a wide range of customers

ASEZTtmd  REBEFRERHASHERARNEE

Aesthetic Medical, Beauty and

Wellness Brands

XBEBE XBNRELEME

3 2 Medical Brands

Preventive Care AP B8 28 €# DR REBORN
#re:HEALTH b5 B R
E OB M oB B
/\ ’HA
<’f///7 \\:’ FOREST
Lab Testing and Screening #f &2 b 8 e
HKAl T R rr— s
2 SR O SR %% = dm

Primary Care and Doctor Network

EEBRRBEAR

=

o %n r{ﬂ = umphrey

L @@ L artners
AI MEDICAL £

Seour swiss line

DERMALABR

Specialists E#}
EC Healthcare E SPECIALISTS NEW MEDICAL CENTER
Medical Centre E : CENTRAL L BB P oD
5B BB R P D O BESH
@; Premier Medical Centre o Qualigenics
HEEMEBPL FYSEY FEr
\@! 4 y
EC EYE ZENITH F\} TEEL
¢ HRERAN = AARAEREETS a
Veterinary Brands
@ reVIVE ) PRIMECATC BEme
(FRERCRERTL (CERERRERD ErRHEETn
Pain and Wellness BiE & &4
AMAH

poEReRER

EC Veterinary
ERgE

Dental Care FFE5{R & : Y

Rkl ki

& C
NYMG

NEW YORK MEDICAL GROUP'
EREI R CORES

@/// g (b PAINKILLER

ERABRFRAMSD EER
R

MBI
Maple Veterinary Hospital

Bayley & Jackson EC DENTAL cARE
it EROE

R . Qi e

- AN
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders,
ENEHAIMRER -

FY23 was a challenging year for our company and the healthcare
industry as a whole. The geopolitical tension and inflationary
economy dampened consumer sentiment, and the severe fifth
wave of COVID-19 in the first quarter of FY23 and absence of
Chinese tourists had a negative impact on our business. Although
local market sentiment gradually improved as COVID-19 moderated
throughout the year and the government’s Consumption Voucher
Scheme also helped boost spending, the increase of outbound
travel of local customers upon reopening of international borders
partially offset the local spending’s wallet share.

“T - =HFEHARRARBEBREFRRTRM 5 52T m PR
—F WHEBUARRRB LBRNEEZEHNGIEESNK ==
T =UMEF-FEBRENERRRBIARED B 25 B ATk
PMNEBEXNRERZE - BESHNTSBERSREREFE
Bz iR M Z e E MBI RE B S5 8l 758 BR RIZUE = » B
FISBEFNFAMIL - EHOEEE MBI KR N EE S HiE =i
HENRBMNE -

Despite the challenges posed by the current business environment, we
are thrilled to report that we have achieved historical high revenue of
HK$3.9 bn, representing a remarkable 32.7% YoY growth. This
success can be attributed to our customer-centric approach and
targeted marketing campaign, which have proven highly effective in
driving sales growth with a customer base of higher levels of loyalty
and repeat purchases. Additionally, we have taken advantage of a
favourable rental market to expand our footprint and open 21 new
service points totalling over 173,000 sq ft in FY23. Whilst some of
these new service points required higher initial capital investments due
to the nature of the business, we believe the foundation has been set
to scale up and deliver growth in the near-term. Moreover, this
extensive network allows us to provide a wider range of healthcare
services in proximity to our customers, positioning us for long-term
success in the highly competitive healthcare market.

BRRER 9

BEBERE N LARREROAE > RAMAR
T BMACBERIEETHNELESRA - E2
RILL32.7% M AT BUE & © 5 — RIS @RI
BERRRFLHNTHEEHEENEHES A=
EER  ZAHERRUOESHEERITIEAR
FREOEHERERE - 15 HACFAEH
MEETSHBERMANEBEZERELIRN —-F
“CHMEFRARIERBGRH AEHEES
173,000 F T HER - BEHREBEEREHF
AR HFERSNIREARKRE - B
RRECKEFERPNBRARELERIERNHE
B o MO REZ AR E RPN ERIE P
B b7 fR R M B R R RS - (E RIS
FRRNERRETISTIGRERY

FEHRE 2022/23



Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

The inflationary business environment has presented us with significant
cost challenges. However, we have taken proactive steps to improve
our operational efficiency and reduce costs while maintaining our
investments in digital capabilities and talent. We are confident that by
optimizing our operations and leveraging technology, we can drive
greater efficiency and productivity while enhancing the customer
experience. In order to achieve this, we are exploring opportunities to
automate and digitize key processes, and investing in data analytics
and artificial intelligence to gain deeper insights into customer needs
and preferences. By streamlining our operations and enhancing our
digital capabilities, we are creating a more agile and competitive
organization that is better positioned to succeed in the rapidly evolving
healthcare landscape.

In addition to our focus on operational efficiency, we are also
committed to investing in our talent and building a strong team of
professionals who can help us achieve our goals. Our co-ownership
scheme has aligned the interests of our employees and doctor partners
with those of our shareholders, and we will continue to explore new
ways to incentivize and reward our talented team.

We recognize the importance of investing in and fostering the growth
of our healthcare ecosystem. We believe that by partnering with key
players in the telecom, technology, insurance, property, and
pharmaceutical industries, we can create a more interconnected and
efficient healthcare system that benefits everyone. Through these
strategic partnerships, we are able to leverage the strengths and
expertise of each industry to drive innovation and improve patient
outcomes.

As part of our strategy to build a comprehensive health and beauty
ecosystem, we will continue to drive external growth through strategic
M&A opportunities that can help us expand our healthcare ecosystem
and enhance vertical integration. Our focus will be on identifying targets
that can leverage our expertise and resources, and that align with our
long-term strategic vision. We are confident that our strong financial
position, coupled with our track record of successful acquisitions,
positions us well to execute on this strategy and create long-term value
for our shareholders.

EC Healthcare 10

BENEHREERMMBEARNKAKE - A
- A REESEERE SR EERE R
HURACA - RIR RIS HAIEBFREN AT HE
B RAMAGE BEBLCHRMANZEERZAK
M BATERTT R BN RS RERSRE
REEN - RERE—BIT  RALYHEERRH
RARABCRBEFOKE  WIREBEST
RATEE  LWRABEBREFPFER LR - BB
BEEMNEERRARMNEFEES - HMAE
AR EEBEERARFNOEL  AERES
BENBERERRITERGERY -

BREINEITEEREIN  HAITBORAT K
B EE-XBRANEXES  HARMERAE
T ZFIHFRERABIERMNER RE
BERHONEERMNBRMERET - &
PR B R R 3 77 SRR S 2B TR I A BEIEX o

HFREENEE RRERFINBRRIELRE RS
BROERM - ZAIEGE - BBEERE - B
R FHERRETENIESEESIE &
PRI ABIZE — @R E S EAR P XS E ST B
ERLREARUHNBRERERR - BBZXFHE
BIERHEE  BRMEATNBSTENEERE
EMBAREB AT R A FBERR -

EREY2EMBERERTERAGREN
7 RIS E SRR R LR O B & SRS
#IER - HMABREMEREMNHBRREZE
REAGIIZRARES - HAWEHSEREE
BESM AR MM BB N ERAL T AR
BEER R BAR L - HAMEE - ROREOME
A - NPT RO A AL 8 - EERAPIBE
ST TRZ R BE 77 BRI B MM AL 0 A IR IR
REVERHEE -
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

Sustainability is a critical component of our business strategy. We are
deeply committed to minimizing our environmental impact, promoting
social responsibility, managing risks, and ensuring ethical business
practices. By prioritizing sustainability across all aspects of our
business, we are confident that we can create a positive impact and
drive long-term success.

In conclusion, despite the challenges we faced in FY23, we remain

dedicated to building a leading one-stop healthcare platform in Asia,
with a focus on bringing health, beauty, and wellness to everyone.

Tang Chi Fai
Chairman

23 June 2023

BEERRER 11

AREERERMEGREOBBRBAKED - &
MBESHIRNHREZERERE  (REHLE
Bff EERAR  URRETEHRERERET &
ERAHERREFRRMEBNSTE - #M
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EEMNRNRETEABRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

TANG Chi Fai, Eddy

B E

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

EFE o TREHFATES

TANG Chi Fai, aged 44, is the Chairman of the Board, the CEO, our
executive Director and chairman of the Nomination Committee. He is a
controlling shareholder of the Company and he founded our Group on
23 November 2005. He is responsible for formulating Group’s strategy,
system, corporate culture, managing the board and C-suite platform
development. Mr. Tang is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Tang has over 20 years of experience in management of the
aesthetic medical and medical healthcare industries. Mr. Tang has
diversified experiences ranging from the initial establishment and
business development of medical aesthetic clinics and beauty centres,
the development of marketing strategies and maintenance of sales
channels.

From September 1998 to May 2001, Mr. Tang attended the University
of Hong Kong where he was enrolled in the bachelor of medicine and
the bachelor of surgery programmes before deciding to pursue a
different career path. From September 2001 to February 2005, Mr.
Tang enrolled in the bachelor of business administration in accounting
and finance at the University of Hong Kong and worked on a part-time
basis before deciding to switch to full-time employment. Mr. Tang
obtained Certificate IV in Training and Assessment from Northern
Melbourne Institute of Technical and Further Education in September
2009 and the executive master of business administration degree from
the University of Hull in January 2014. Mr. Tang is an Elizabeth
Wordsworth Fellow at St. Hugh’s College, University of Oxford.

EC Healthcare 12

BEE 4458 REZSXR - THAEHE - 91T
EZEURREZECEF - BAARRIMERAR
B OURZEERF+—AZ+=HAIZASE
- HAEEERBLARKKBARXXL  ZRHE
ft BEFARENRESSER BELENMAR
ARZEHBARINES -

W% NEBEXAREEEETEREH 205K
P B%E%ﬁ%%%% ﬁ&yﬁ@ﬂ

%Dwﬁ ERPROHER T R EBERE

NRHIETiSHEERRE REFIHERS

FERTER—ETANBEEKAN BEER
—NMWNANFENRZZZZ—FH ARBEEEX
BEEFNIEMEELRE - RZTT—FNA
E_TTRF R WEERBTBERBEELS
ERSH MMBELRIBIORTEREBIIE
AIERRE - BIAER ST NF N ARGEIEE
Fﬁ$3%%§zm%ﬂﬁﬁﬁi R AMRESE - WK
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEABME

LU Lyn Wade, Lesle =AEE
Co-Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

ERITRAAERATES

LU Lyn Wade Leslie, aged 43, joined the Group in August 2021 and
is the co-chief executive officer of the Group. He focus on Group’s high
level strategy, systems building, implementation and cultural alignment.

Mr. Lu is a seasoned corporate executive with 21 years of
management experience across multiple industry verticals. Mr. Lu
worked in Sun Hung Kai Real Estate Agency Limited as Deputy Chief
Digital Officer. Before that, Mr. Lu was an executive at Cathay Pacific
Airways Limited during 2001-2007 & 2008-2020. His roles include
General Manager Digital, General Manager Product, managerial
positions in airline planning, cargo, flight operations, customer
relationship management as well as oversea station at Thailand,
Vietnam and United States.

Mr. Lu graduated from The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology (“HKUST”) with a Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering in
2001 and a master’s degree in Global Finance in 2009 from New York
University and HKUST.

BRRER 13

BEUE 435 N_ZE-_—F)\AMAKREEL
BAREBNBETRAR BLARINETR
BEIRES - BERS  EREEBERRRE -

BEAR—BKBEENCEETIEAE  EZE
TEREZE2N FERLR - ALERBERRN
REMERERRAR  WEREBBAIEH -
YA aRERZTE—FEFTTLFEN-F
ENFE_Z_THEHHEAREMERTRAF
WITHRERAS  HEEHNERL S BFEABAL
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEABME

LEE Heung Wing, Levin Z=A14%
Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director

BERVBERNMIES

LEE Heung Wing, Levin, aged 42, joined the Group as corporate
finance director in March 2016 and was responsible for corporate
finance, mergers and acquisitions matters and has become the chief
financial officer of the Group since July 2019. Mr. Lee is responsible for
supervising capital market activities, evaluating M&A targets, and
setting financial plan for the Group.

Mr. Lee has over 17 years of professional experience in auditing,
accounting and corporate finance. Mr. Lee obtained a degree of
Bachelor of Business Administration in Finance from the University of
Hong Kong in 2004 and a postgraduate diploma in accountancy from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2006. Mr. Lee became a
member and practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in 2007 and 2015, respectively. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Lee founded his own certified public accountant and
consultancy firm in 2015, principally engaged in business and
accounting consultation services. Prior to 2015 and after his
graduation, Mr. Lee worked in assurance department of Ernst & Young
and his last position was senior manager which he acquired intensive
financial reporting and corporate governance experience.

EC Healthcare 14

ZTEE 25 RZE—AF=ZAMALREE -
BEECEMERE  AECERE  HHESEHE
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EEREHAE

BIEAE

A

WONG Ka Ki, Ada FXxRH

Chief Strategy Officer and Chief Investment Officer, Executive Director

ERRERAERARREAERIATES

WONG Ka Ki Ada, aged 42, joined the Group in October 2021, and is
the chief strategy officer and chief investment officer of the Group. She
is responsible for formulating strategy to transform the Group into
Asia’s leading healthcare platform, as well as building healthcare
ecosystem through acquisition and strategic partnership. She also
focuses on driving the Group’s ESG strategy.

Ms. Wong has 20 years of professional experience in the investment,
finance and real estate industries. Prior to joining the Group in 2021,
Ms. Wong had been the chief executive officer and an executive
director of Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited (the “Champion REIT
Manager”), the manager of Champion REIT (Hong Kong stock code:
2778) since 2016.

Prior to joining Champion REIT, Ms. Wong worked at Citigroup and J.P.
Morgan’s investment banking division to offer strategic advices to a
number of blue chip corporates. She had also executed numbers of
landmark IPOs, capital markets fund-raisings and strategic M&A
transactions.

Ms. Wong graduated from University of Michigan (Ann Arbor) — Ross
School of Business with a Bachelor of Business Administration degree.
She was the Chairperson for Asia Pacific Real Asset Associations Hong
Kong Chapters. She is a Fellow member of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors and a Fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Directors. Ms. Wong was honored with the titles of Distinguished
Sustainability Leadership Award 2021 by Hong Kong Management
Association, Best CEO in The Asset ESG Corporate Award 2020, and
Best CEO by FinanceAsia in 2020.

BEERRER 15

ETXRF 25 RZE_—F+AMALER
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEABME

WONG Chi Cheung, Gemini

- E
Nt

Chief Digital Officer and Executive Director

BEREBERNTES

WONG Chi Cheung, Gemini, aged 50, joined the Group in August
2018, and is the chief digital officer of the Group responsible for digital
and IT transformation. Mr. Wong is also a director of a subsidiary of the
Company.

Mr. Wong has over 22 years of professional experience in digital
product development, eCommerce, digital marketing and consumer
experience design. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong was the
director of digital business of Hong Kong Disneyland, responsible for
the development of consumer direct channel and digital guest’s
experience since 2013. Mr. Wong joined Langham Hospitality Group
as a group director of e-business responsible for direct channel and all
online business development for the Langham Hospitality Group in
2013. Mr. Wong held various positions including head of e-business
team and program manager of Cathay Group in Cathay Pacific Airways
and/or its subsidiaries (the “Cathay Group”), which is listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 293), during the period from
2000 to 2012. Mr. Wong founded an IT consultancy company
principally engaged in offering IT solutions to medical service providers
in 1996.

Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration with

major in Information and Systems Management from Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in 1996.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEABME

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

FHTES

LUK Kun Shing, Ben BE#R
Non-Executive Director

FMITES

LUK Kun Shing Ben, aged 44, has more than 11 years of experience
in the aesthetic medical industry, and over 19 years of experience in
the information technology industry. Prior to joining our Group in March
2010, from January 2011 to February 2014, Mr. Luk served as a
software engineer at Google (Hong Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of
Google Inc., specialising in internet-related services and products.
From December 2003 to December 2010, he was a software engineer
at Google Inc., in Mountain View, California, the United States and
involved in the implementation of Google Maps.

Mr. Luk graduated from Cornell University with a bachelor of science
degree in computer science in August 2000 and Stanford University
with a master of science degree in computer science in June 2003. Mr.
Luk was appointed as the Engineering Site Lead at Google Beijing in
2017. The Board believes that his role in Google Beijing will allow him
to be in touch with the state-of-the-art technology and Mr. Luk will
continue to advise the Company to enhance its IT systems and access
to the latest IT resources.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEABME

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MA Ching Nam 55518
Independent Non-Executive Director
BUFHITES

BYFHTES

MA Ching Nam, aged 70, was appointed as our Independent Non-
Executive Director on 19 February 2016. Mr. Ma is also a member of each
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Ma has
been practising law for more than 40 years. He was admitted as a solicitor
in England and Wales, Hong Kong, Australia and Singapore. He currently
serves as a consultant of Hastings & Co, Solicitors & Notaries, a law firm in
Hong Kong. Mr. Ma is also a Notary Public, China Appointed Attesting
Officer and Civil Celebrant. He was the President of the Hong Kong
Society of Notaries from 2007 to 2013.

Mr. Ma currently serves as directors of Tai Sang Bank Limited,
Heptacontinental Group of companies, Ma Kam Ming Company
Limited, Ma Kam Ming Charitable Foundation and Ma’s Enterprises
Company Limited. He is now an Independent Non-Executive Director
of JY Grandmark Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2231), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ma was also an
Independent Non-executive Director of Time Watch Investments
Limited (Stock Code: 2033), which is listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, during the period between 10 January 2013 and 24
November 2022. Mr. Ma was Chairman of Po Leung Kuk from 2019 to
2020.

Mr. Ma is a council member of Hong Kong St. John Ambulance. He
was appointed as a member of Political and Consultative Conference
in Hunan Province, PRC. He was also the past Chairman of St. Paul’s
Co-educational College Alumni Association. Mr. Ma graduated from
the University of Hull with a bachelor of science degree in economics
with honours in 1977.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEABME

LOOK Andrew PEER

Independent Non-Executive Director
BIUEHITES

LOOK Andrew, aged 58, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 19 February 2016. Mr. Look is also a member of
each of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee,
as well as the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Look holds a bachelor of commerce degree from the University of
Toronto and has over 28 years’ experience in the equity investment
analysis of Hong Kong and China stock markets. From 2000 to 2008,
Mr. Look served in Union Bank of Switzerland (“UBS”) as the head of
Hong Kong research, strategy and product. He was rated as the best
Hong Kong strategist and best analyst by the Asiamoney magazine, a
leading monthly financial and capital markets publication for corporate
and finance readers and investors, in 2001, 2002, 2003, 2005, 2006
and 2007. Mr. Look is currently an independent non-executive director
of Hung Fook Tong Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1446), CITIC
Resources Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1205), Ka Shui International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 822) and L.K. Technology Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 558), all of which are listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director of
TCL Communication Technology Holdings Limited (a company delisted
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 30 September 2016) from
September 2010 to September 2016, an independent non-executive
director of Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1466, a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) from September
2014 to December 2016 and an independent non-executive director of
Cowell e Holdings Inc. (Stock Code: 1415, a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange) from April 2017 to December 2018.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEABME

AU Tsun &%
Independent Non-executive Director
BN ITES

AU Tsun, aged 43, joined the Group in September 2022 as
Independent Non-executive Director. Mr. Au is also the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee. Mr. Au owns over 15 years of experience
in business management, audit and advisory. He is now Chief
Operating Officer of CTF Education Group, where he oversees the
operations and management of Hong Kong and Mainland China
regional offices, including operations, finance, IT and human resources
functions. Mr. Au is also the Interim Executive Director of Victoria
Educational Organisation.

Mr. Au was an audit and advisory Partner in Emst & Young (EY), he
also held the role of EY’s Asia Pacific leader in System, Process and
Automation under Financial Accounting and Advisory Services where
he drove proprietary system solutions for clients. Prior to that, Mr. Au
served as Head of Asia for a US-listed global data analytics firm.

Mr. Au serves on the Audit Committee of UNICEF Hong Kong, school
council member of Sheng Kung Hui primary schools, School
Supervisor of DSC International School and Board Member of Hong
Kong Education City wholly owned by the HKSAR Government. Mr.
Au’s life passion is to support humanity through different charity
initiatives, including Rotary, a leadership endowment fund, and many
more.

Mr. Au obtained a degree of Bachelor of Economics and Finance from
the University of Hong Kong in 2002. Mr. Au is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and is also a member of
the New Hampshire State Board of Accountancy in the US and
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEABME

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

WONG Tai Cheung, Andrew
Chief Operating Officer
BREZE

BIRE

WONG Tai Cheung, Andrew joined the Group in July 2022, and is
the Chief Operating Officer of the Group. He is responsible for
establishing the operational protocol, overseeing the day-to-day
operations and drive the improvement of operational efficiency and
services quality. Mr. Wong owns substantial experience of over 20
years in the banking and finance industry.

Mr. Wong acquired a Master’s Degree of Business Administration at
Harvard Business School and a Bachelor’s Degree of Business
Administration (Accounting and Finance) at The University of Hong
Kong. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong had been the Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director at Clarity Medical Group
(SEHK: 1406.HK) and was responsible for managing the business
development and operation, as well as leading the company’s IPO
effort in HKEX Main Board.

Prior to this, Mr. Wong was the Managing Director of BNP Paribas
(Hong Kong), the Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director of
Century King Resources Group Limited (SEHK: 6885.HK), the
Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of New Times Energy
(SEHK: 166.HK). Mr. Wong also accumulates extensive banking and
finance experiences during his employment at Royal Bank of Scotland,
Merrill Lynch, and Citi.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENENREEAEBGE

Dr. CHU Chun Pu, Eric KEEEH+
Chief Business Officer

XGHEE

Dr. CHU Chun Pu, Eric, aged 45, joined the Group as the chairman
of New York Medical Group (“NYMG”) in October 2016 when the
Group acquired NYMG. Dr. Chu has become the chief business officer
of the Group since September 2020 and is responsible for leading the
top management in medical services along their entire value chain. Dr.
Chu is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company. Dr. Chu is a
registered chiropractor in Hong Kong and has over 19 years of
professional experience. Dr. Chu is a fellow of the Royal College of
Chiropractors, is the Chairman of Chiropractic Doctors Association of
Hong Kong, and is the Advisory Peer Group of the Open University of
Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group, Dr. Chu was the founder of
NYMG and responsible for the overall management and strategic
planning and development. Prior to establishing NYMG, Dr. Chu had
previously practice in New York, the United States and Vancouver,
Canada. Dr. Chu obtained a degree of Bachelor of Science from
Queen’s University, Canada in 1998, and Doctor of Chiropractic from
New York Chiropractic College in 2002. Dr. Chu is the spouse of Ms.
Mak Wing Man.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management
EENEREBEAEHE

MAK Wing Man ~ %;
Chief Operation Officer

M yem gt B
EE AR

MAK Wing Man, aged 43, joined the Group as the managing director BIKE - 4357 - EAKBER T —R"F+ AU
of NYMG in October 2016 when the Group acquired NYMG. Ms. Mak NYMGHE EENYMGHI ZE S B EMMARE
has become the chief operating officer of the Group in December 2020 c BMUTHR T _EFF— AKAAREENE

and has been responsible for operations and post-acquisition BRE WEBERERKEERES Bt hER
integration. Ms. Mak has over 15 years of professional experience in BEBBEETMABE 1I6FEELR - B tR
medical business management. Ms. Mak obtained a degree of ZEE-FRGEEARBEARAEBNMEEINER

Bachelor of Business Administration in Marketing from the Hong Kong BLEM RMNAREEZF - BT EF
University of Science and Technology in 2001. Prior to joining the NYMGHIESHKIE  TEERELETENE
Group, Ms. Mak was the managing director of NYMG and responsible BERE - ERTAREEBIORS -

for the overall operations management and business development. Ms.

Mak is the spouse of Dr. Chu Chun Pu.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENENREEAEBGE

Dr. CHAN Kin Keung, Eugene SBS, BBS, JP

PRIEOREE
Chief Public Affairs Officer and Chief Dental Officer

BERAREBENERIMERE

=4 | SBS, BBS, JP

CHAN Kin Keung, Eugene, aged 59, is appointed by the Group as
Chief Public Affairs Officer and Chief Dental Officer responsible for the
Group’s public affairs to oversee the Group’s healthcare business in
line with the HKSAR Government’s policy. He is also responsible for
the Group’s overall dental business operation.

Dr. Chan has more than 30 years’ experience in professional matters in
Hong Kong and has served on various HKSAR Government’s advisory
and statutory bodies. Dr. Chan acquired a bachelor’s degree of Dental
Surgery at the University of Adelaide, attained the Memberships of
Faculty of General Dental Practice (UK) MFGDP(UK), Membership of
General Dental Dentistry of the Hong Kong College of Dental Surgeons
MGD(CDSHK), and was conferred the Fellowship of the Faculty of
General Dental Practitioners (UK) and Diploma in Implant Dentistry
(Dip. Imp. Dent RCS Eng). Dr. Chan is now an Honorary Clinical
Associate Professor of the Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Visiting
Professor of the Jinan University in the People’s Republic of China, as
well as the Chairman of The Outstanding Young Persons’ Association
and President of the Association of Hong Kong Professionals. In
addition, he has also served on various healthcare and professional
organisations in Hong Kong and overseas.

Dr. Chan has been actively engaged in public affairs, he is a current
member of Action Committee Against Narcotics, a member of Fight
Crime Committee, a Council Member of City University of Hong Kong,
a member of the Advisory Committee of School of Chinese Medicine of
Hong Kong Baptist University, and the anchor host of weekly English
current affairs programme Straight Talk. Dr. Chan was selected as an
awardee of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons and appointed by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region as a
non-official Justice of the Peace and was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia
Star in 2016 and Silver Bauhinia Star in 2021.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEABME

CHAN Chun Yu, CY [RIERF
Chief Talent Officer
HEATE

CHAN Chun Yu, aged 49, joined the Group in July 2022, and is the
Chief Talent Officer of the Group. He is responsible for overseeing the
talent and culture strategy and operations to drive the Group forward
via long-term talent engagement, management, and employment
branding. Mr. Chan has over 10 years of professional experiences in
talent acquisition, engagement and development, and administration.
He graduated from Hong Kong Baptist University with a Master degree
in Strategic Human Resources Management and City University of
Hong Kong with a Master degree in Applied Psychology. Mr. Chan is
also an alumnus of the Stanford Executive Program from Stanford
Graduate School of Business.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan had been the Chief People Officer
of Prenetics Global Limited (NASDAQ: PRE) and was responsible for
overseeing the talent and culture strategy. Prior to this, Mr. Chan was
the Chief Talent and Purpose Officer of HKBN Ltd. (SEHK: 1310.HK).
Mr. Chan’s career journey features a variety of key roles in talent
management, sales, consulting, and corporate social investment,
across different industries. He is frequently invited to share his
experience and insights in industry-related conferences and seminars
in HK and across Asia.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENENREEAEBGE

Dr. CHOW Julie

BZEFIEL
Chief Proposition Officer (Healthcare)
BEEBREEE (BRRRE

Dr. CHOW Julie, aged 59, joined the Group in 2017 and was
appointed as Chief Proposition Officer (Healthcare) in January 2023.
She is responsible for scaling up the Group’s strategic collaboration
across government, community, insurance, corporates and other
partnership. Dr. Chow has over 30 years of professional experience in
strategic planning, service modeling and reengineering, business
proposition, and healthcare engagement in the public and private
sectors. Dr. Chow acquired a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration at Frankfurt School of Finance and Management and a
Doctor of Business Administration degree from University of Newcastle.

Prior to joining EC Healthcare, Dr. Chow has held top management
positions in healthcare and insurance companies.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIRE R o M AT

MANAGEMENT PHILOSOPHY EEER

{? Actively driving superior organic growth
/_/l-l/l' RERDNBHSLEE
711

Our company strive to drive superior sales growth by focusing on both customer-centric marketing and working directly with insurance
partners. Our customer-centric approach and targeted marketing campaigns have proven highly effective in driving sales growth and building
customer loyalty. By prioritizing the needs and preferences of our customers, we have been able to tailor our messaging and promotions to
better resonate with them, resulting in a more engaged customer base with higher levels of repeat purchases. At the same time, we
recognize the importance of strategic partnerships with insurance companies, which can help us expand our reach and provide better
access to healthcare services for their customers. Through these partnerships, we can leverage the strengths and expertise of each industry
to drive innovation and improve patient outcomes. By combining our customer-centric approach with strategic partnerships, we are creating
a more interconnected and efficient healthcare system that benefits both our customers and our partners.

ARABARBEBBAERUEFP AT ONEH M ERERR S FEBHSFERED TMOHELR - TEER  BRAOARF BT
RAHEUNEHEDERDHEERRRBY TR DAE T ARYEE - ZBEAZERTLOFTRLRL - RIFEHE S EHHMOE
SERELEHES  NEEFEEESARES  #MELRBIESNELE - BULRE - RIARHDBREAFEIBBBHBED
B2 HAPRBMEARMNEZSETATPRAEFNBERERERY - BBZEKHEER  BRAUAASTENEDRFTEA
HORIEED R M BB ENRR - RIERUTPH O H EEREHERAEENTRAZ—ATERMNTSP RAEBHIED
EREBERRERSRNERRIEER

| Focus on Streamlining operations is a critical component of the Group’s approach to driving cost
\ 4 operational optimisation and maintaining our leadership advantages. The Group has identified several areas
~ - elghancemen ts for improvement in its core business, such as human resource management, centralised
. procurement and supply chain management, as well as adopting new technologies to automate
) anf’ !mpr_ove administrative tasks. With a focus on delivering actions as part of our transformation plan, our
efficiencies Group aims to improve operational efficiencies across multiple business verticals, leveraging its
HERNNSEE scale as the largest non-hospital medical group in Hong Kong. By driving down costs and
& E 9’+ ;& $ improving margins across the organisation, the Group is well-positioned to improve its financial

performance and maintain its leadership position in the healthcare industry.

BEEEDAEEESNAB LRI ALELNERAKIS D - ARESEEEZ
DEBAFBCENE THE - MANERER  SHRERFEEEIE  ARKAH
BMEREBEDLER - (ERBEEG AN K7  ARBEINNTHETE  FBE
ERBAERANGFEREREENRIEED  BNONRESSAETEXRBARMNLER
o AEEFBEEABORARRESFNEERMALREEMBRELNARRBETE
RERFFE R -

We recognize the importance of digitization in remaining agile, efficient, and scalable in a rapidly
i ; evolving healthcare industry. Therefore, we are embracing digitization and prioritizing integration and

automation across our various functions. Our goal is to create a seamless and efficient healthcare
experience for our patients while ensuring the highest standards of data privacy and security.
/ / Through centralized procurement and integration efforts, we optimize our operations and increase
/ efficiency. Moreover, we offer our network management solution to our insurance partners, enabling
: - . us to stay ahead of the competition and optimize workflow. Additionally, we automate our back-
Embracing digitization to office operations, reducing errors, improving accuracy, and freeing up resources for more strategic
stay agile ina rapid initiatives. We remain committed to investing in digitalization to drive innovation and provide high-

evolving industry quality healthcare services to our customers.
S ABFI  LU{EERE 3 HH PN ERERBNBBERRITLETRBET  SARTREOEEM -
o 2% N €2 ’1FWJ>”\E& EME%;W \&Eﬁ AR EONERE T =Y ke B
BRNTRTERES B RBANE RS - [ RRE BEBRLRES  BRRTREREA T( -
BPBERMEE Alsr= A 1ER BEEORTER - R
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|‘| Building a vertically

|—| integrated healthcare

ecosystem
The Group has built a vertically integrated healthcare ecosystem

REMFTEE 2 KEERR
through collaboration with strategic partners in the five major

BR IR WL
areas (TTIPP):

SEEBREAREHBBEHF A EEE—EANERE
EBARBEANANRERARERRS(TTIPP) :

Technology %%

To bring service and operational innovation with
best-in-class technology via strategic

{EJ:F partnerships.
BRI AR - B ARIR T BRIS S & AKX

Telecom E:
o To provide new service propositions, including

01 ko telemedicine for their corporate & residential

I( ) clients.

ONVO ArEREREFEFREAFEEERENNTT
~No7 REPRES -

Insurance Rk

To develop new health insurance products and
customer experience proposition while driving
cost and operational efficiency.
FEE2FRERBREMREHEFER  ARKE
(e AR TFHE SRk -

Property EiiE

To collaborate with landlords to tailor-made
medical grade buildings for the Group’s own use
which maximize operational efficiency.
HMETSERIAHERERBERARNE 18
FHEZBOE o

Pharmaceutical %

To explore strategic partnerships in drug
registration, distribution, prescription decision
support while providing data for drug discovery.
BREEASE  ELEEEMBEYEM  HE
BRITIREEHT

EC Healthcare

External growth through
strategic M&A

3% 48 SR G 1 OF BB B 3R SP AR

As part of our strategy to build a comprehensive healthcare
ecosystem, our company is pursuing external growth through
strategic M&A to acquire complementary businesses. By bringing
together different players in the healthcare industry, we are
expanding our reach and capabilities, and driving vertical integration
to provide a one-stop-shop for our customers. We are actively
seeking out businesses that align with our values and complement
our existing services. Through these strategic M&A opportunities, we
can expand our customer base and drive innovation by leveraging
the strengths and expertise of each organization. Our goal is to build
a healthcare ecosystem that delivers high-quality, personalized
healthcare services to our customers and enhances their overall
health and wellbeing.

- EP :
IT’E@J%I‘T”” X
BEBERF—2
PEiEt = ?561?37?%?@%1?3#%\)2% Iéﬁﬁb&”ﬂ
ABHEB R - FRFIN B R %é
?J’EEF?E%EE 1L O BT IEHEI’IR

% o

: 1F3E¥’JT<F¢E9’—” AE‘WEE‘“
HEEIERE RS E MR o
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Alignment of interests Vo4

through Co- Sustainability

Ownership scheme AEFERR
BBAGEREEAGEE
REERRELLA

Our business philosophy centres on sustainability, and we strive to integrate
sustainable development into our operations to create long-term value for all

: : , stakeholders and communities. As part of our sustainability strategy, we are
Talent is our greatest asset. The Group's success is reliant on committed to driving action on the relevant United Nations Sustainable
professional and self-motivated employees. The Group offers a Development Goals (SDGs), which provide a blueprint for achieving a
Co-Ownership scheme to incentivize staff to remain with the sustainable future. Through the implementation of energy-efficient technologies
Group and contribute to its future development and expansion. and sustainable practices, we are taking concrete steps to reduce our carbon
Talents are offered a co-investment opportunity to acquire footprint and operate in a more environmentally conscious way. We are also
equity interests in the Company, aligning their interests with dedicated to improving healthcare access and promoting equality in

those of long-term shareholders. underprivileged communities through community outreach programs. Diversity
and inclusion are key values that we uphold, as we strive to foster a workplace
culture that values and respects all individuals. In addition, we are passionate
about giving back to the community through philanthropic initiatives and
partnerships. We have also enhanced our governance practices with a focus
on risk management, ensuring that we operate with the highest standards of
integrity and ethical conduct. By prioritizing sustainability across all aspects of
our business, we are confident that we can create a positive impact and drive
long-term success.

AFERERIESERAREBNEE R OEE - REMBIRNAE A FER
REAEENSERSES  AEERBER DERRRLS  ERFH
BERRRMHO—HD  BASRBEERHERR B FREETE 5
AEBMOARAFERRBUER - AR GHERMRAIBETSR - &M
ERBRAREERDIRET  WARRRNHRNES - ZPITFHNNER
HEIRAEINZERTRESBEREOES W (RERSTE - SN
REBFUDRMAMETHEREER ASRMNSHEE2RRIEENHF
AETHESFTSE o UESN - HPIR DA BRI E) LA (ERHRIR
wE o FAARIERFINEAER  EHEAIRBRER  BERMAES
FRENAERERTHER - RAREBNETERLEEETHFERR -
HERMRAELREZ EL B RIKD)
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BUSINESS REVIEW FoEE

A transitionary year of investments with gradual ramp-up activities on the
horizon

REBHEN—F  RETHEEHES

The operating environment has been challenging in 2022, presenting many
obstacles such as tightening financial conditions, inflationary pressures, and
further waves of COVID-19 throughout the year. In particular, the high
prevalence of COVID-19 in the community led to persistent social distancing
restrictions, which resulted in a prolonged period of uncertainty and
dampened consumer sentiment until the end of 2022. Nevertheless, the
Group demonstrated resilience in navigating these headwinds and
continued to move forward with enhancing the offerings of its service
network. In FY23, the Group achieved all-time highs in revenue and sales
volume of HK$3,875.4 million and HK$3,891.4 million, up 32.7% YoY and
24.6% YoY respectively. The Group was able to generate additional sales
volume across business segments (except Mainland China) during the
second half of FY23, capitalizing on the return of Mainland visitors following
the resumption of cross-border travel between Hong Kong and Mainland
China in early 2023. The proportion of sales in Hong Kong from Mainland
Chinese customers surged to 14.6% in Q4 FY23 from 4.5% in Q3 FY23, as
a direct result of the full-border reopening. The Group delivered a strong

T FRNEERBRME  HREZER e
%RW% BIRESN  UWEREEX—EEE - BiR &
BERtENEESEEBFENE BRG] - 1

ﬁffiiiﬁ Al F B ) AN T2 25 N R BA L D 6K B
BR - @EML AEERFLEEYENEZEN X

Hﬁ%%&;ﬁﬁtﬂﬂﬁ% BIEORISEHE - R-T =8 F -

AEBHBARIBESBRIELS - DRE3,875.4B 8%
TR 3,891.4 BB - Rtk HRIER32.7% & 24.6% © &
NWRZE-=FNEBRTEAM 2 HIREBEREE R
SIEZAMBERLR  AEBNR-_Z_=—BF N EFRE
EBRB(PEAMEKRIN BERBINVEERLR - KB
FEAEFERSHEERMBRANLY - NEmEEE
% W CHFEE=ENAS% BB E T ZFE

TR 14.6% ° NEEETIHR241% MBS AIEE - 55
=R MIE )%1%11& REFADHASPER AN E
MR R F”*BE’Ji‘E FRERHHFEZSH

WA A 154.1 Eé-%,%m fh#B U A8 4.0% °

organic growth of 24.1%, driven by growth in medical segment attributed
to strong organic growth and successful cross-brand referrals within our
healthcare ecosystem. Revenue from M&A transactions closed during the
year was HK$154.1 million, accounting for 4.0% of the total.

We have taken advantage of a favourable rental market to expand our EAEFMBENNHETSHERMNEREBEEZSHE A
footprint, resulting in a net increase of 21 service points totaling IR —F = =B Fg 21 E RT3 - 4AmAE4 173,000
approximately 173,000 sq. ft. in FY23. Out of the net increase, FHIR o F£/FIERA > X7 8% KEBEE  42% K H
approximately 67.8% came from medical business, 4.2% from aesthetic XEBERE  XANBEREES A K28.0%KE HA AR
medical and beauty and wellness services business, and 28.0% from other 7o ZEZHBBERMENEROE PO T IREEE
services. This extensive network allows us to provide a wider range of }ié’]giﬂ%fhﬁ&j‘x FRAEFF N EERETSS
healthcare services in proximity to our customers, positioning us for long- REEREKN R_E-_=F=A=+—080 ' xEEHXHE
term success in the highly competitive healthcare market. As at 31 March 168 f& AR 7% % EEF' BE14TE - RPI4E R A B A7
2023, the Group has a total number of 168 service points comprising 147 1 #EEEE A HN32.2% 2 %) 706,000 F IR o

in Hong Kong, 4 in Macau and 17 in Mainland China with the total

aggregate g.f.a increased by 32.2% to approximately 706,000 sq ft.

Total Area A HE &

534,000

FY2022
e S

FY2023
—E-=EE
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Segmental results DEBEE
Revenue by Business Segment Revenue by Geographical Location
REB R E D HBA BB BEE D KB
in HK$ rillion in HK$ million
BEET BEBT
$231 327, 6.0% $128.8%7, $1689BT, 4.4%
3.3%
$1,101.9% 7T,
28.4%
$2,542.2/8 7T,
65.6% $3,577.7% T,
92.3%
» Medical
BE » Hong Kong Macau  The PRC
o Aesthetic medical, beauty and wellness BB JEF s

EEBE  ER/LEL
Veterinary and other

BlEe M E A

-‘ [ | .-
Medical segment

The Group continues to gain market share in the healthcare services
industry through both organic expansion and M&A growth. Revenue from
the Group’s medical services segment rose by 50.5% YoY to
HK$2,542.2 million, boosting its revenue contribution to 65.6%, of which
M&A completed during the year accounted for 5.3% respectively. Growth
in the medical segment was the result of a wider customer base
supported by a higher number of medical specialties offered in the
network, conversion of cross-brand referrals, and ramp up of previously
opened new stores.

During FY23, the total valuation of acquisitions completed in the medical
segment was HK$175 million, spanning across various medical
specialties, veterinary and health screening services. The Group’s suite of
medical services spans 35 specialist disciplines, and the headcount of
full-time and exclusive registered practitioners has increased to 313.

FR - AEEEBRHBEANEERTRREREREREITENTS
N FRREBMBERE D BRARLL EF505%ZE2,5422H5
BIL (BLLiE— PR E65.6% © EFRRFRZRNOKHFENGL D
AAE53%  BRENSHHNEREHAWETAIRENERSRES Y
BTEREZOEFE  BohiER SR AR 2 BB E 65N -

“TCE=HE  ARERNTI7TSEBEAENKIE  BEZHE
BEEY  BERRERHESRYE - SEBBRRBEE- SR B
EEREREMHBAESSE 2REMEEBLERAZE - SBEEE
313 A °
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Our Registered Practitioners and Medical Professionals EMNEMBELERBEEXAS

No. of Medical Professionals

BREEXAESHE

No. of Registered Practitioners No. of Network doctors
AL AR WRBEAY

313 2,400+ 346

We take great pleasure in continually acting as a trustworthy ally for BrER = B A BB EREBERY
medical specialists. The following table summarizes our full-time BE. TEBtRN—E-—=F#=A=+—8%
Registered Practitioners as of 31 March 2023: SRR A A

General Practice L 32
Anaesthesiology i B} 1
Cardiology DR 10
Cardio-thoracic Surgery DI INER 1
Clinical Oncology FRR B Rt 3
Dermatology & Venereology 28 R MEmE 3
Endocrinology, Diabetes & Metabolism W5~ BERE AT 5
Family Medicine REEES 1
Gastroenterology & Hepatology i B I R st 10
General Surgery S} 16
Geriatric Medicine AR 2
Haematology & Haematological Oncology MR R 1t & e R st 1
Medical Oncology ANEHEBE 1
Neurosurgery FRER N 2
Obstetrics & Gynaecology ImEER 14
Ophthalmology AR 10
Orthopaedics & Traumatology R EEEE 8
Otorhinolaryngology HE2Mm®E 2
Paediatric Respiratory Medicine FEMRE 1
Paediatrics R 12
Plastic Surgery B INEL 2
Radiology TR 6
Reproductive Medicine EIEEE 1
Respiratory Medicine IR A A} 1
Rheumatology [ Rt 1
Urology WREL 2
Chiropractic BE 43
General Dentistry Lim R 55
Endodontics TeERER 3
Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery M e sEE SN 7
Orthodontics ERE 5
Paediatric Dentistry REER} 1
Periodontics T RERE 6
Chinese Medicine e 7
Veterinary BiEe 38
EC Healthcare 32 Annual Report 2022/23
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Aesthetic medical and beauty and wellness services represent aesthetics medical, traditional beauty,
haircare and ancillary wellness services offered by the Group and the sale of skincare, healthcare
and beauty products. During FY23, revenue contributed by aesthetic medical and beauty and
wellness services increased by 1.0% from HK$1,091.2 million for FY22 to HK$1,101.9 million for
FY23. Revenue from Hong Kong experienced a decrease to approximately HK$804.2 million due to
the severe impact of the fifth wave of COVID-19 in the first quarter of FY23. On the contrary, revenue
from Macau and the PRC achieved a modest increase to approximately HK$297.7 million, due to a
new store opened in Mainland China and relatively smaller business disruptions from pandemic-

Aesthetic medical related controls.

and beauty and 1EuE EARELBEEALERANISEE BHES  EERBHELREURNE
wellness services HE - RRRESES R-E_S§E - EEBBE . %ﬁ&%iﬁ&%%ﬂ&z?\iﬁﬂmo%ﬁh*
segment CMEMI0N 2 EEBTIENI0%E T ZMEMI,I019BEEBTL c EZT_ZHFE
EERE . CEXR —EEETREENBENE  BARATHRENSM42EESTT - BR - EEE“&EEPIPW@E%
4 RIS 5 5 15 DA R AR BB 3 R A0 2 A PR BT AR SN+ SRPI R R B O A B RIS R E 49207 7TE EA T o

Revenue from the Group’s veterinary and other services segment rose by
66.0% YoY to HK$231.3 million, mainly driven by the growth of the Group’s
veterinary business. The Group has taken strategic steps to consolidate the
Group’s presence in the Hong Kong veterinary segment. The Group acquired
a veterinary clinic during the year and opened its first organic veterinary hospital
— Animal Medical Academy Hospital (AMAH) in Tsim Sha Tsui East. The
Group currently provides not only veterinary general practitioner services but
also specialty services covering anaesthesia & analgesia, neurology, cardiology,
Veterinary and other services and advanced imaging services. The Group continues to invest in the veterinary
seg ment business to build a leading renowned brand and shaping the veterinary

BlERHMRESE business into a new growth engine.

& N Bt BR 75 0 BB A YA B L 42 101 66.0% £ 231.3 A& BT
y GIERFTERE) o AN E B EREUR B i -

/ami S ETHHAL - A& AU FE A BB FT - W R
BEAPER R — B BRES R (AMAH) - NEE B Al TETE/\
BREE MRS - MR B IR A2 - DR 2 R AR G RIS E R
BRRF - AREBEA & REE TS - LUTHEBELXMANEZ MG - WIEEREE
BB ERIHIGERS|E
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Analysis of key costs

and Analysis

BRI R A AT

% of Revenue

HBRARWE 2L

FY23 FY22 FY23 FY22 YoY %

—E=-= —E=-= —E=-= —E=-= Bk

HK$°000 FBT B B BHE B Bk
Cost of inventories and FERFEMERAR

consumables 552,953 349,603 14.3% 12.0% 58.2%

Registered practitioner AMEAERE 974,511 655,852 25.1% 22.5% 48.6%

Employee B8 1,086,512 728,631 28.0% 25.0% 49.1%

Marketing HigHE 172,715 139,383 4.5% 4.8% 23.9%

Rental and related expenses 4 R iEREFR % 77,743 61,066 2.0% 2.1% 27.3%

Credit card (ERN 77,502 64,922 2.0% 2.2% 19.4%

Depreciation — ROU hE - FEREEE 351,764 264,955 9.1% 9.1% 32.8%

Depreciation — PPE wE — M-

BB 137,204 96,031 3.5% 3.3% 42.9%

Amortisation B 97,767 71,379 2.5% 2.4% 37.0%

Finance costs BA F AR A 63,636 48,907 1.6% 1.7% 30.1%

Admin and other expenses 171 & EAth 5 5% 232,647 162,640 6.0% 5.6% 43.0%

The Group’s significant increase in cost was driven by several key
factors, including change in business mix, ramp up costs of new
service points, cost inflation, and general admin costs to build a
scalable healthcare platform.

EC

Cost of inventories and consumables: Change in product mix
with higher focus on the medical segment, led to an increase in
cost of inventories and consumables.

Registered practitioner expenses: The number of full-time
and exclusive Registered Practitioners increased from 251 as at
31 March 2022 to 313 as at 31 March 2023. The shortage of
registered practitioners in the healthcare industry and staffing up
for the new service points also drove up the costs.

Rental and related expenses and depreciation of right-of-
use assets: The increase in rental space of 173,000 sq. ft. for
the new service points resulted in an increase in expenses.

Depreciation of owned property, plant and equipment and
amortization: Renovation and equipment purchased for new
service points contributed to the increase in depreciation and
amortization expenses.

Healthcare 34
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° Employee costs and admin expenses: The Group was in the
process of extracting synergies from integration of the acquired
business and building up a scalable healthcare platform with new
strategic initiatives. Our overall headcount (excluding Registered
Practitioners) was 2,579 as at 31 March 2023 (as at 31 March
2022: 2,674).

° Finance costs: It rose due to increased borrowings (total debt
increased to HK$719.1 million at 31 March 2023 from HK$235.7
million as at 31 March 2022), which was used as working capital
for pre-opening expenses for the new service points and
acquisitions.

As a result, the Group’s profit for the year decreased by 60.4% YoY to
HK$107.0 million, and the profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company decreased by 64.7% from HK$197.5 million for FY22 to
HK$69.7 million for FY23.

BEERRER 35
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Sustainability progress in

Obtained (9 FY23: our commitment to
ISO 9001:2015 positive change
certification Y ] “HETNSERRER -
#151S0 9001:2015 e L U

In FY23, our Group made significant strides in advancing our
sustainability efforts, with a focus on environmental and social
sustainability, as well as governance. We installed loT devices
in our locations to achieve energy efficiency and reduce our

: o : carbon footprint, while also entering into a lease with Green
Susta-lnablllty-llnked Pledge to ensure that our operations focus on energy savings
Syndicated Loan and reducing waste. Besides that, we introduced and
BEniEERRERE expanded sustainability-linked facilities as a key part of our
BB EEE financial strategy. This approach not only integrates ESG
considerations into all our operations and decision-making
processes, but also enables us to invest in long-term projects
that promote sustainability while meeting our financial
objectives. Additionally, we hosted various events to serve
underprivileged communities and sponsored events to focus
on teenage development, providing equal access to
healthcare and working with the government and charitable
organizations for community outreach. We also enhanced our
governance by rotating our independent board of directors
and establishing a medical advisory board for medical risk
management. In order to enhance governance on data
privacy, Mr. Stephen Kai-Yi Wong, ex-Privacy Commissioner
for Personal Data, Hong Kong was appointed as Chief
Advisor, Data Protection. The Group also obtained ISO
9001:2015 Quality Management System certification and
adhered to the ISO 31000:2018 Risk Management standard,
demonstrating our commitment to strengthening corporate
governance and providing high-quality services to our
customers while managing risks in a structured and
systematic way.

REZE-=Z0F  AEEEHETHEESXEFANETEKR
EE HPZERBLRUCHIFEEEURAE - RME
BN E ZE 7T BRRE - UBBRERER Rk E
o R ET S E] L UHERRMANELE TN
ERRERBAIRE o BRIL ZOh - TFISIHEWIEAR T A 4HE S
BRERBEHBNREEN  (EARMSRREOERSES - &
BHATERIFERREEAZBRAZRME N EEN
RERBEFR - thERMEEREAFEEECRYPEE - I
AR ERBMOTHEEZ - Zo BHPINERTSEREE
At @EES  WESTEEIFTIFEENES  RBEFTE
MEERERS  VTHBRTRESHEHSERARLEER -
BAMREHEEYEEe MKV BERBREEEELRNET
BB MNER - BIBERLEES  IEAEAE
BABEEESR T EEETTAENRESREMN - A&H
N@ﬂﬂwmmmwgiﬁﬁ%§%%-ﬁ§?
ISO 31000 : 2018 @B B IRIR%E - 8831 T MBI R MR
EX-D N %Eﬁkf%E%%mﬂﬁ EBE R RGN
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OUTLOOK

&0

Cautious optimism amid post-COVID-19
progression and global uncertainty

Management remains cautiously optimistic as it navigates
the current challenging global economic conditions post-COVID-19,
including potential recession, inflationary environment, and reduced
discretionary spending. Although the resumption of normalcy and
reopening of the border between Mainland China and Hong Kong has
led to a rebound in the number of Mainland tourists, the improvements
in local consumer sentiment that are expected to contribute to the
stable recovery of the economy remain gradual. Nonetheless, the
medical market has remained resilient with public-private partnerships
such as the Hong Kong Government’s Primary Healthcare Blueprint
expected to continue to increase private medical spending in Hong
Kong over the long run. The Group’s platform is well-positioned to
adapt to the improving market conditions.

Inl].__._.l

I] ﬂ@ We remain focused on delivering bottom-line growth, and
in the coming year, we plan to take several key actions to
achieve this objective. Firstly, we will concentrate on driving sales
growth for our newly opened stores, which we believe will be a
significant driver of revenue growth. We will implement targeted
marketing campaigns and promotions to attract new customers and
retain existing ones. Secondly, we will implement cost controls across
our operations, including supply chain, procurement and administrative
costs. We believe these measures will help us manage rising costs and
improve our margins. Finally, we will focus on improving productivity by
streamlining our operations, optimizing our workforce and leveraging
technology. We believe that these measures will enable us to operate
more efficiently and effectively, and ultimately drive bottom-line growth.
Through these actions, we are confident that we can stabilize our
bottom line and position ourselves for sustainable growth over the
long-term.

Committed to deliver bottom-line growth
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Strengthen TTIPP partnerships & robust
financial resources to execute M&A
=88 roadmap

We will continue to form and strengthen strategic partnerships with key
players in TTIPP to expand our integrated one-stop healthcare
ecosystem in Hong Kong. In addition, we have identified several
attractive acquisition targets that align with our core values and long-
term growth objectives, and the successful arrangement of two
sustainability-linked loans has put our Group in a strong financial
position to execute our M&A roadmap. With this financing, we plan to
pursue several strategic acquisitions focusing on businesses that
complement our existing operations and allow us to expand our
geographical reach. Our commitment to delivering high-quality
healthcare services remains unchanged, and we are confident that our
M&A strategy will enable us to achieve our strategic objectives and
drive long-term sustainable growth.

Sustainable growth strategy

The Group is committed to embracing sustainability and
social responsibilities in all aspects of its operations. As the
largest non-hospital medical group in Hong Kong, EC
Healthcare recognizes its responsibility to contribute to a sustainable
future and make a positive impact on society. The Group’s
commitment to sustainability is reflected in its business practices,
service offerings, and partnerships, and it will continue to focus on
building a sustainable business that benefits everyone.

@

FINANCIAL REVIEW

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has drawn down HK$489.0 million of
bank borrowings and undrawn bank facilities available was HK$220.0
million. Together with cash and deposits of HK$710.9 million, the
Group has sufficient liquid assets to satisfy its working capital and
operating requirements.
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Use of Proceeds

The Company has carried out a placing of new shares on 8 July 2021.
The net proceeds of approximately HK$248.8 million have been raised.
Please refer to the announcement dated 8 July 2021 for more details.

The net proceeds have been fully utilised as at 31 March 2023
according to the intended use previously announced by the Company.
The details of the use of net proceeds are set out in the table below.

FreRERZ

ARER B —FLANBREFKRND - 2F
SASHIAFHEL2488AE BT ELZ 5
BLHBRRE_—FtANBHLRE -

RZFB-=F=A=+—0 " FABHREFHECR
BARRBEXMOEERGESHIA - BF
FRSSRFRMFBHIIMT -

Actual amount Unutilised

Planned Unutilised utilised during  amount as at

Intended use of net proceeds amountto amountasat the Reporting 31 March

as announced be utilised 31 March 2022 Period 2023

R=Z==%F REE RZB==F

HEKF =A=t+-A HENER =A=1+-8

OGRS RERERERE BANEE MNADALE CBALE MNABALE

HK$ million HKS million HK$ million HK$ million

BEBTT BEBT BEBT BEBT

Expand the clinic network of BAKNREEER 99.5 99.5 99.5 -
the Company in Hong Kong and B KE R R BT

the Greater Bay Area in the PRC

Mergers and Acquisitions EHRNEBER 112.0 - - -

General corporate purposes —MEERE 37.3 - - -

Total Bt 248.8 9.5 995 -

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS H#%EE

HK$1.0 billion Sustainability-linked Syndicated Loan

In May 20283, our Group achieved a groundbreaking milestone by
securing a HK$1.0 billion sustainability-linked syndicated loan, setting a
new standard for healthcare companies in Hong Kong. The loan, which
includes a revolving credit of HK$300.0 million and term loan of
HK$700.0 million, is the first-of-its-kind for a healthcare services
provider in Hong Kong, and further cements our position as a leading
industry pioneer. It also reflects our unwavering commitment to
sustainability, which is a crucial component of our future growth
strategy. The funds will be used to support our expansion plans and
working capital needs, and this achievement marks a significant
milestone in our sustainability journey. It reinforces our leadership in
sustainability financing within the healthcare sector and underscores
our dedication to driving positive change.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENTS
Capital Expenditure

Capital expenditure was mainly spent on purchases of operation
equipment and expenditure in leasehold improvements to the net
increase of 21 service points, (approximately 173,000 sqg. ft.) opened
during FY23. The capital expenditure was financed by cash flows
generated from operating activities.

Capital Commitment

There was capital commitment of approximately HK$30 million as at
31 March 2023 to acquire certain property, plant and equipment for
the abovementioned new service points.

In addition, the Group has committed on 31 March 2023 to enter into
certain few new leases that is not yet commenced, the aggregate lease
payments without taking into account the extension options amounted
to approximately HK$380 million.

INDEBTEDNESS
Debt Maturity Profile

BEARATHRELE
BRI

EASHETERRNBEELRERAE-S =
R 21 AR (49173,000 F 75 R) #77
HEMERE - BARIALEEHEENRS
B -

BARENRE

REZE-=F=A=1+—HBHHERAENR30A
EBTT - AR EAE RIS B E TWE - WA
A e

O AREER T -_=F=A=+—HF=%

A MAMBONETHEE Tt REHEER
MHENRERORBBOARET °

&%
B HR

Debt Maturity Profile &5 iR

As at 31 March 2023 A=—Z—=

in HK$ million
BEET

FY24 FY25
2481 2581 F

- Bank Borrowings (unsecured)
IRITRER(RIEA)

Figures may not sum due to rounding
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Interest-bearing Liabilities

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had outstanding interest-bearing
unsecured bank borrowings in the amount of HK$489.0 million and
convertible bonds of HK$230.1 million.

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had no significant contingent liabilities
and guarantees.

Charge of Assets

As at 31 March 2023, there was no charge over investment properties,
ownership interests in land and building held for own use as all of them
had been released during FY23.

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio equals total debt (total debt refers to the aggregate sum
of bank borrowings and convertible bonds excluding lease liabilities
relating to properties leased for own use) divided by total equity. As at
31 March 20283, the Group had interest-bearing liabilities, except for
the properties leased for own use, of HK$719.1 million and the gearing
ratio is 30.3%.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group carries out certain operating transactions in foreign
currencies, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk, mainly
pertaining to the risk of fluctuations in the Hong Kong dollar and U.S.
dollar against Renminbi.

The Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management manages the currency risk
by closely monitoring the fluctuation of the foreign currency rates and
will consider hedging against significant foreign exchange exposure
should such need arise.

Interest Rate Risk

As at 31 March 2023, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease
of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables remaining
constant, would have decreased/increased the Group’s profit after
taxation and retained profits by approximately HK$4 million.

BEERRER 41

FTEAEE

RZEZZFZA=+—8  AEEHEF489.0
AEBITHRER BEKFRITHER KX 230.1
BEBTHAIRKRES -

FARBERER

MRIBZ=F=A=+—0 FEETE\EEKRK
REERER -

BEEEH

R=B-=F=A=+—0 LEREVE #
B {EE M L R TS RS (R -
BES2HEN T M EEER -

EERMBHER

BERBEEREFNEH AR (EFRBERTE
REABRBESEN  EHEFERNMEEH
MEHERERIN RAERBE R_FT_=F
ZA=1T—8 AEEFRAGBCEEFARN
MEBIN BT BEE T BEABELER
30.3% °

ShEE LB

REBMUIINERETETLERS  EZHRBT
FETHAARENER SRR - AEBE LA
FE HNFE [ g2 o

AEBEREREMITEAOE TEERR - B2
Jﬁﬁiﬁﬁ PIB T SMERE KRB R E B TERER -

ELHBRBERR  EEESERUEBRINERR
T

R-ZF-_=F=ZA=+—H et EEEL
H/TE 100 EEE - M ATAEMEBIRRET

» AEE AR R T R R EE N KR L1
jJD%’MEE/%TEG

FEHE 2022/23



Management Discussion and Analysis

IR A am Mo AT

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES, AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL

ASSETS

During the Reporting Period, the Group has entered into the following

significant investments and acquisitions.

NOTIFIABLE TRANSACTIONS

(a) Discloseable transaction — Subscription of

Shares in Joint Venture Company for Building a
New Commercial Property to be Leased and
Used as Medical Centre

On 5 June 2022, Healthy Cameron Property Limited (“Healthy
Cameron”) and Union (Group) Investment Limited, both being
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, entered into
a subscription agreement with Creative Profit Development
Limited (the “JV Company”), pursuant to which Healthy Cameron
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and the JV Company
conditionally agreed to allot and issue to Healthy Cameron, the
subscription shares, which will represent 30% of the total
enlarged issued share capital of the JV Company immediately
after closing and the initial capital contribution is
HK$253,658,100 which comprises of (a) the subscription price in
the amount of HK$7,200 as consideration for the subscription
shares; and (b) the shareholder’s loan in the amount of
HK$253,650,900, which is determined based on 30% of the total
capitalisation of the JV Company immediately after closing. The
JV Company will become an associate of the Company and its
financial results will not be consolidated into the financial
statements of the Company.

The JV Company currently owns and possesses the title to the
property which is located in the core commercial district of Tsim
Sha Tsui at Cameron Road. The JV Company intends to acquire
the remaining units and re-develop the combined sites of the
land parcels of the property into the building with an estimated
lettable floor area of approximately 103,000 sg. ft. mainly as a
medical centre and for other clinical use.
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(b)

Healthy Cameron OpCo (HK) Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, shall also undertake to lease all of the
floor areas of the Building (as defined in the announcement of the
Company dated 6 June 2022) for an initial term of 5 years at the
total rentals and signage licence fees of approximately
HK$97,000,000 per annum payable monthly, with an option to
renew for a further term of 5 years at the then prevailing open
market rental. Healthy Cameron OpCo (HK) Limited shall have
exclusive right to name and manage the building and be entitled
to sublease any part of the building during the term of lease.

The subscription of shares in the joint venture was part of the
Group’s expansion strategy to customise medical space
configurations in the building designed to accommodate
specialised medical equipment, enabling the Group to deliver
one- stop premium medical and medical aesthetic services.
Completion of the above acquisition took place on 29 July 2022.
For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 6 June and 1 August 2022.

Share transaction — Acquisition of additional
7.5% equity interests in a non- wholly owned
subsidiary

On 30 September 2022, Team Expert Investment Limited (“Team
Expert”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with Champion Epoch Ventures
Limited (“CEVL”"), the sole shareholder of CEVL (the “CEVL
Shareholder”), Dynamic Team Holdings Limited (‘DTHL”), and the
shareholders of DTHL (the “DTHL Shareholders”) to acquire 7.5%
equity interests in Prime Inspire Limited (“Prime Inspire”, the
“Target Company”), at a consideration of HK$4,375,515, which
shall be satisfied by allotment and issue of an aggregate of
852,922 consideration shares of the Company (the
“Consideration Shares”) to CEVL Shareholder and DTHL
Shareholders (together, the “Sellers”) under general mandate.
Prime Inspire is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
owned as to 70% by Team Expert, 9.6% by CEVL and 20.4% by
DTHL as at 30 September 2022. Upon completion of the
acquisition, the Company’s interests in Prime Inspire will increase
from 70% to 77.5% and the financial results of which will
continue to be consolidated into the accounts of the Group.
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(c)

The issue price of the Consideration Shares of HK$5.13
represents a premium of approximately 5.12% over the closing
price per Share of HK$4.88 as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on the date of the Sale and Purchase Agreement and a discount
of approximately 0.08% of the average of the closing price per
Share of HK$5.134 as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the 5
consecutive trading days ending on the trading day immediately
preceding the date of the Sale and Purchase Agreement. The
Consideration Shares represent (i) approximately 0.07% of the
existing issued share capital of the Company as at 30 September
2022; and (i) approximately 0.07% of the issued share capital of
the Company as enlarged by the issue of the Consideration
Shares. The Consideration Shares were allotted and issued on
10 November 2022 under the general mandate granted by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 23 August
2022, and was not subject to Shareholders’ approval.

The Directors are optimistic about the development prospects of
the Target Company and consider that an increase in stake in the
Target Company through the Acquisition would be in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The allotment
and issue of the Consideration Shares to the CEVL Shareholder
and the DTHL Shareholders will also align their interests with that
of the Company for long-term value creation for the Group.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 30 September 2022.

Discloseable transaction — Acquisition of Pioneer
Evolution Limited

On 30 September 2022, Team Expert (as the purchaser), entered
into a sale and purchase agreement to acquire 60% equity
interests in Pioneer Evolution Limited (“Pioneer Evolution”) at a
consideration of HK$36,400,000 (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”).

Pioneer Evolution is principally engaged in investment holding,
which holds 50.54% issued share capital in Sure-Care Cayman
(“Sure-Care”).
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(d)

Sure-Care is principally engaged in the provision of multi-
disciplinary healthcare services in Hong Kong with a focus on the
provision of specialty services under the business name of Sure-
Care Medical and Health Network. As at 30 September 2022,
Sure-Care operates 9 clinics in Hong Kong including Mong Kok,
Tai Po, Causeway Bay, Tsuen Wan and Jordan with 23 full-time
registered medical practitioners.

A profit guarantee arrangement is included in the Sale and
Purchase Agreement. Under the arrangement, Dr. Chang Shao
(the “Seller”) has agreed to give profit guarantee to each of Team
Expert and the Company that the accumulated Net Profit (as
defined in the announcement of the Company dated 30
September 2022) for 5 years shall be no less than
HK$70,000,000. The Seller shall compensate Team Expert for
any shortfall in accordance with the Sale and Purchase
Agreement. Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the
Seller shall have the right, upon exercise of an option, to require
Team Expert to purchase from him, (i) up to 50% interests then
held by the Seller in Pioneer Evolution following the end of the
year ending 31 December 2025, and (i) up to all interests then
held by the Seller in Pioneer Evolution following the end of the
Profit Guaranteed Period (as defined therein) provided that the
accumulated Net Profit is not less than the accumulated
Guaranteed Net Profit for the year ending 31 December 2027 (the
“Option Shares”). The consideration of the Option Shares payable
by Team Expert to the Seller shall be determined by specified
formulas, the aggregate of which shall be no greater than
HK$70,800,000.

The acquisition represents a good opportunity for the Group to
enhance the specialty offerings in New Territories East and it was
part of the Group’s expansion strategy in medical services. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
30 September 2022.

Discloseable transaction — Acquisition of
Excellent Connect Limited

On 7 February 2023, Union Medical Technology Limited (“UMT”)
and Union (Group) Investment Limited (“Union Group”), both
being wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group, entered into a
sales and purchase agreement with the seller (“Excellent Connect
Seller”) to acquire 100% equity interest in Excellent Connect
Limited (“Excellent Connect”). The maximum consideration
consists of (1) the maximum total cash consideration of
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HK$125,000,000 comprising (i) the initial cash consideration in
the amount of HK$100,000,000 to be payable to the Seller, and
(i) the contingent consideration in the maximum amount of
HK$25,000,000, and (2) the consideration shares of UMT with a
fair value of HK$12,500,000 to be transferred from Union Group
to Mighty Able Limited.

Excellent Connect is an investment holding company of
companies engaged in the distribution of aesthetic medical
devices and beauty related consumables in Hong Kong.

On 1 April 2023, the completion of the acquisition and the
disposal pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement took
place, and the initial cash consideration of HK$100,000,000 has
been settled in full and the consideration shares of UMT have
been transferred by Union Group to Excellent Connect Seller.

A profit guarantee arrangement is included in the sales and
purchase agreement. Under the arrangement, Excellent Connect
Seller has agreed to give profit guarantee to the Purchaser that
the accumulated net profit (as defined in the agreement) for 3
years shall be no less than HK$75 million. The Excellent Connect
Seller shall compensate UGI any shortfall in accordance with the
sales and purchase agreement. Based on the latest management
account, management expected that the guaranteed profit for
the year ending 31 December 2023 could be met. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 7
February 2023 and 11 April 2023.

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no significant investments
held by the Company during the Reporting Period, nor were there any
material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures during the Reporting Period and there is no plan authorised
by the Board for other material investments or additions of capital
assets as at the date of this report.

There are other transactions entered into by the Group in the prior
years which profit guarantees have been given. However, those profit
guarantee periods have not yet expired as at 31 March 2023 nor the
date of this report.
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Overview of our Sustainability Goals

The Group endeavours to incorporate sustainability as a key element of
its future growth strategy. In 2022, the Group signed its inaugural dual-
tranche sustainability-linked facility, the first-of-its-kind for a healthcare
services provider in Hong Kong. This transaction reinforces our status
as a leading industry pioneer and our commitment to sustainability in
the long-term.

As a next step, we have identified 11 focus areas that will form the
pillars of our ESG strategy and outline our approach to promote a
culture of sustainability across the Group. These priorities have been
mapped against eight of the United Nations’ Sustainable Development
Goals (SDGs) that we believe are most relevant to our business:
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R FEERKEE - RO K2
1 L LA Waste Implement the best practices of Set up a new paper recycling
g FEEY) waste management procedures programme
across business units to monitor and il 72 2 A A o 12 ka2

&

minimize waste generation
EEXBENEHEREYERZFHR
EER  UEERRERPELEREREY
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Include a sustainability score in
procurement system for medical
consumables

ERARMEBRFRMATE
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Sustainability Approach
Al EE R

Respective SDGs Focus Area 2030 Target 2023 Update
—E=EFHE “BCCEEH

MR SERREER |
Social Training and
He development

SEHIERER

R4 42 BEELE AL
GOOD HEALTH AND
WELL-BEING

e

MRIFE
GENDER EQUALITY

¢

Annual increase in the average
training hours of employees
8 T 55305 21 g F 180

Create a tailored training and
development plan for the main
business units
REEEBBEMGITEE F T ERNEIIR
EEGE

130% increase in employee
training hours
8 T3 808 h130%

We have engaged an
external consultant to provide
training on operation and risk
management; the consultant
has also reviewed our current
practice and policy

B ERI BRI 2E X
R ERAERE ;BRI
RIFRITHN BB RBGRETTH
=

Maintain workplace safety
performance
BEIIESMNZ2EXN

Obtained ISO 9001:2015 to
implement quality management
system that covers all aspect
for our operations

SIS0 9001 : 2015 * LAE
RERMELEETENES
EEER

Established the Medical
Advisory Board to give
guidance on medical safety;
and elevate medical service
quality and risk management
and strengthen corporate
governance capability

K EREREZ S S EEREY
2 REARERBE R RER
BEKTE - UREEEERE

Stakeholder engagement

Safety
2%
1 RERAEBABADE
PARTNERSHIPS
FOR THE GOALS
RHE2HE

Continuous involvement of our
stakeholders to steer our ESG
strategy

BROERES2E BEMNERE 48
RERRBIRMIES

Incorporated the insights from
stakeholder engagement
exercise into the ESG targets
of the sustainability-linked loan
15 &2 EEFH) R EAA
AIREEEENERRRE -
HERERAE

Community investment

HERRE

Increase total volunteer service hours
and provide healthcare services the
underprivileged through community
outreach program

& T RIS AR BUE I KB B @ IMNR &
I RBPEBIRHERRG

Organized 415 sessions of
community outreach to provide
medical services. involving
around 286 doctors under our
Group, and reaching about
58,810 cases

HET M5 REEINRIEED - B
RAOAEEETH286 L EER
#)58,810 17 Il 12 f & B AR 75

Diversity and inclusion
Ll RBAN

" Compared to base year 2022
VB FARERE

EC Healthcare

Promote gender equality via
education and sharing
BRHERD ZRENRTE

48

Females currently hold 52%
of senior management and
department head roles

LB AR 52% e & B 2R
i REPFIEE
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Sustainability Approach
Al EE R

Respective SDGs Focus Area 2030 Target 2023 Update
HEEEERAE | L —E2=Z2EFER “ECCZFEH
Governance Board Increase the Board’s participation in o Quarterly meeting held by the
&R S sustainability issues Sustainability Working Group,
ENESSHRELRSENSE reported ESG progress to the
1 B ey Boarq at each regular board
B AHE meeting

PEACE, JUSTICE AND

g AHEER T MIGEER
i MEH ESREFEHIEL
MEFGRERSE  HERE

i RERE
FORTHE GOALS Anti-corruption Implement anti-corruption policy to o Reviewed AML policy in
R&ES strengthen internal control accordance with our strategies
B R E5BER A hnog A 2R b and development on

governance issues
BEEMRE R EENER R

ERige ROEBEEOR
Risk management Develop risk management policy to o Adhered to the ISO
R EE ensure consistent delivery of services 31000:2018 Risk Management
across our brands standards
11 3 [ i 32 IR DA AR 5% m R 10 PR 7% HSFISO 31000 : 2018 @R E I
ER—= RaE

° Appointed Chief Advisor for
data protection to advise on
controlling and safeguarding
our customers’ information
ZREBREGEEER  BE
FAREREGIREES

° Regular meeting by the

medical advisory board
BEBERZE T HRTeR
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Co-Owners

RE A

OVERVIEW

The reasons, purposes and objectives of the Co-Ownership Plan are to
incentivise skilled and experienced Eligible Participants to remain with
the Group and to motivate them to strive for the future development
and expansion of the Group in order to create value for the
Shareholders, by providing Eligible Participants with an opportunity to
acquire equity interests in the Company according to the Co-
Ownership Plan, and further aligning their interests with those of the
long term Shareholders.

With the unprecedented triumph of the Co-Ownership Plan 1 since its
adoption on 16 April 2020, the highly motivated Eligible Participants
have played an instrumental role in propelling the Group’s remarkable
growth and expansion throughout the preceding years.

Against this backdrop of resounding success, the Board is delighted to
unveil the Co-Ownership Plan 2 in May 2023, continuing to incentivize
our skilled and experienced Eligible Participants to strive for nothing
short of excellence in driving the Group’s performance to new heights.
By aligning efforts and goals, we aim to conquer the challenges ahead
and achieve a rewarding revenue target for the Group over the next
three years, concluding in the financial year ending 31 March 2026.

Considering the foreseeable circumstances, which render the grant
conditions of the Co-Ownership Plan 1 unlikely to be met, the Board
has made the prudent decision to terminate the plan early. This will
release the investment shares contributed by the Eligible Participants,
allowing for their reinvestment in the promising Co-Ownership Plan 2.

APPROVAL

On 29 May 2023, the ordinary resolutions approving the termination of
Co-Ownership Plan 1 and the adoption of Co-Ownership Plan 2 have
been duly passed by the Shareholders by way of poll at the EGM. For
details of the Co-Ownership Plan 2, please refer to the Company’s
circular dated 12 May 2023.

(*Unless otherwise indicated, terms used herein shall have the same meanings as
ascribed to them in the circular of the Company dated 12 May 2023.)
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Co-Owners
FRE IR A

© Eddy Tang Bf51E

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer & Executive
Director

TR TRAHMITES

QOur co-owners consistently demonstrate an
entrepreneurial mindset, remaining resilient in
the face of short-term fluctuations. They are
the backbone of EC Healthcare, embodying
unwavering dedication and unwavering

® LeslieLu TEEIE

Executive Director & Co-CEO
HAITE R R B THARE

Despite facing challenges and obstacles
throughout the year, our company’s progress
remained steadfast. Our co-ownership
scheme, built upon a shared foundation of
professionalism, has proven to be a driving

force behind our success.

BEAAT2FMBHE LR - BRAT
HOHREE AR ERE S S8R - A BAEET - RMORRERAHEIDRE
ST Sl llee ) LB o WARFERES - CBEARDR R

MWRENE  RAHEBHARRRBELRE &7 o
P 2R R R SR 4R a0 — G

commitment to our company’s mission.

Levin Lee Z=[0) 58
Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer

WTEERERMBE

Although we faced challenges throughout the year, FY23 has been a remarkable journey for our
closely-knit community of co-owners. We remain committed to attracting passionate and driven
leaders to join our co-ownership scheme, enabling them to share in our collective success. As we
reflect on our achievements, let us also celebrate the milestones we have accomplished together.

BERME2FEEBRY BT _—FFRSNERAZRTREMN S AELN—F - D
NRBEEIFERBED T ROFEGEMAFRERAGE  EREFEHDZHMANERKLR - 1
CIEEFTEAR R 2 B - BRPIMENHMALRER 22 -

@ Gemini Wong =258

Executive Director & Chief Digital Officer
HITESEREFEEE

As our colleagues become co-owners of the Company, they not only benefit from being
valued employees but also have the opportunity to share in the rewards of their
dedication and hard work at EC Healthcare. It is a testament to our commitment to
fostering a culture of ownership and shared success.

BERMORENAEATFREEA  REMEXANKABEENES - BA%
BENERENEDREERERM N FHLERTROEIR o HRFABIREZEA
B R AR AL R o

@ Eric Chu REB © !ris Mak BT

Chief Business Officer Chief Operating Officer
[Ehra LERE

Despite challenges, our co-owners
have demonstrated unwavering
commitment to their roles and have
diligently served a multitude of
customers with unwavering integrity.

The Co-ownership scheme continues to
thrive on the principles of talent delegation
and empowerment. Our company firmly
believes in entrusting our talented
individuals with the authority to “lead and
BERBEE  BRANEEEEA co—own”l through purpose-driven leadership
B FRHERES  SERE W and a mindset focused on shared success.
DRBEEPRERE FREEAGTEIBEN AT BRI
JREITESNER - NARIR(E - @i@%&ﬁ
BiEgMEE N RBFEERRKIIE L
B AR T AAAOER [EEHA] -
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Co-Owners

FERREIEA
Karl Wong (&= @

Assistant General Manager &/4845 5%

CeciliaLee ZEE ©

Assistant General Manager 2l#24£1%

Yani Lau 2|75k @

Assistant General Manager &/4845 %

Tim Ho {A[{ X @

Assistant General Manager
omhE B IR 4R A IR

® Maggie Lam FREET] ®

Business Development Manager
FEERKE
3 EX
® Katylp £FE 6

Sales Director #4825

® Daniel Chow B}t @

Business Integration Manager
FBEAKE

EC Healthcare

® KelyTsang EEX

Associate Director, Accounting & &1 &I 4285

Our unwavering dedication to our mission has played a pivotal role in our
rapid expansion. | firmly believe that by persistently staying true to our
vision, the market will increasingly acknowledge our unwavering
commitment.

BPBRETBMEBTRMANESD - REPIREBBERPBIEERIER - X
ABE  BARB IO BERLMANESR KA aRA RANEE

)

Co-owner possess a profound
awareness of how their efforts can
profoundly influence our business,
instilling a stronger emphasis on
optimizing value creation for our
cherished customers.

FE R ANRAMEL KR KL
MRAFERPINEY - WER
MR RRFNEETPE((E
ERIER B3 -

® Julie Chow F & X

Chief Proposition Officer (Healthcare) B fE %755k #1488 (BERE)

EC Healthcare consistently broadens its business framework to provide enhanced
support to customers at every juncture of their lives, thereby aiming to cultivate
well-being, aesthetic excellence, and enduring joy for all individuals.

BERETHMARHER REPEEANBESERERRERAEIXF BE
REANBREERE  PESEEXALTRHA ML

As co-owners, our decisions hold significant
weight and possess the potential to profoundly
shape the future trajectory of the Company. This
deliberative process has enabled us to
meticulously evaluate the potential outcomes and
advantages for various stakeholders, thereby
fostering our growth as proficient managers.

ERFREEA  RANREEZHEE TAH
RABERRBRKTEE S - ZBEHRBER
HAIREMUET B R0 EH ARFBEFEEERR
REBE  KmEERMAKSEREEA

52

Annual Report 2022/23



Awards and Recognitions
HRIA N 575

Corporate Awards {S¥4E

Core Asia
Results

BOENKRE

Asia ex-
Mainland
China
ENE

(BRAP B KBE)

Asia s_mall
ESG Award PADOE
B oHERLEEREE

BERREE 53

Best CEO

REGRNT

Best CFO

r&%ﬁ%

Best IR T

ﬁ&hé%@%l%

Best IR Pro ram

E§1:t FIEE

Bes

EEFP e RARAE

Best Board of Dlrectors
BlEEEE

The Most Honoured Company
BRXHERE
Best CEO
Ei1:—.§
Best C
r&%ﬁﬁﬂ
Best IR T
Ehﬁ%@%l%
Best IR Pros ram
ﬁ&&ﬁ%
Best E
EEFP e RARARE
Best Board of Directors
RIE
Best Investor Relations Professional
REREEREES

The Most Honoured Company
BEMELE

Best CEO
REEFRAMIE

Best CFO

Eﬂiﬂzﬁr%%

Best IR T
Eﬂ:?ﬁé%ﬁﬁf?l%

Best IR Program

EEn %%E Fs
Best E

E;E%P & RARAE
Best Board of Directors
REESE

Best Investor Relations Professional

SEREEMESS
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Awards and Recognitions
#RIA 5%

Brand Awards @G E
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Investor Relations Report

REEBRHRE

INVESTOR CALENDAR

24 November 2022
—EooF+—H-+mA

20 January 2023

—EC=F—-HA=+H

23 June 2023

—E=FXA=+=H

18 to 23 August 2023 (Both days inclusive)

—ZE_=FN\ATNREZT=ZH(EEMARBEELEN)

23 August 2023
—EC=FAAZ+=H
4 September 2023

—ZE-=%FNAWMA
18 September 2023
—E-=FhA+N\H

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The year has been daunting for most investor relations professionals.
We were highly adaptive in switching to the online environment,
ensuring the best deliverance of two-way communication between the
Company, shareholders and the whole investment community. We
held several reverse roadshows successfully at our Shenzhen
headquarters after the border reopening to provide the most up-to-
date information to mainland investors. Through various channels,
including domestic and international roadshows, investor meetings,
annual general meetings, company meetings, teleconferences and
emails, we have made transparent, efficient and timely commmunication
with our shareholders, analysts, fund managers and potential investors.

BRRER 55

REEZEB®

2022/23 interim results announcement

TR =FREEERE

Payment of interim dividend

AR R

2022/23 annual results announcement

TR CCRERENE

Closure of Register of Members (for
determination of shareholders who are
entitled to attend and vote at annual general
meeting)

HiEHERMNBEELFE (TG RLRE
BREBFAEGINE FREZRRHD)

Annual General Meeting

RERBFRE

Record date for determination of shareholders
who qualify for the final dividend (if approved)

Fo8% A B (LA & B IR ERRR S, (e #E)6)
ZBER S

Payment of final dividend in form of cash
(if approved)

B H AN RS (HELE)

REEBE

HRARZBREEMEEEALIME  AMEFA
RIEWROIBINATE - ZFERERR LR
5 BRARE - RRRBERERZHEERR
ERMERIEE - NBER  RAERYIEE
BB Z R MBI - RAMIREERR
EBER o AR IGINEE  REEEH
BRBEFAE AFAEH BFESHNMEBHS
EZBRE RABRKRR O B2LER
BEREEERERAE  AREERHRIT
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Investor Relations Report
KEEBEREBS

This year, our emphasis has been put on ensuring a free flow of
information to all interested parties. To achieve the said objectives, we
have an ambitious plan to digitalize the whole investor journey, from
point of touch to maintaining long-term supportive relationships. The
digitalization process begins with attracting sources of the public
domain into our closely-managed private pools. To infiltrate investors at
multiple levels, we are powered by big data analytics to locate investors
with different expectations and concerns. In the meantime, the Group
has spared no effort to maintain diversified communication channels
with the capital market through virtual roadshow, participating in online
roadshows and one-to-one meetings so that investors could keep
abreast of the latest developments of the Group.

Apart from proactively engaging with the investment communities, we
also treasure the two-way communication with investors through our
feedback mechanism. We noticed there were raising interests
regarding the additional disclosure of ESG issues, consolidation
strategies and corporate governance practices. In particular, several
concerns were brought-up including 1) adopting international
frameworks such as GRI, UNSDG, CDP and TCFD to strengthen the
ESG context; 2) continuing to improve board independence and board
diversity, and establishing anti-corruption policy; 3) shedding more light
on our long-term M&A strategy; and 4) disclosing long-term operational
targets and aligning management’s compensation with performance.
We discussed the matter with the Board and agreed to work with the
concerned investors in providing supplementary disclosure to the
public without compromising our internal protocol. Ultimately, the
investor relations team is made of the people and for the people, and
hence we continue to welcome valuable feedback from investors at all
levels.

During the Reporting Period, our management team and IR team
attended over 306 one-on-one and Group meetings and actively
participated in investor conferences and non-deal roadshows in Hong
Kong, Shenzhen, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Beijing meetings with over
1,300 investors.
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Investor Relations Report
KEEBEREBS

SHARE INFORMATION

Company Name
NSIER
Listing

il

Stock Code
A& 5
Listing Date
A
Board lot

BFEEEN

Issued share capital as at 31 March 2023

RIBE-=F= A=+ ETIRAK

INVESTOR RELATIONS DEPARTMENT

EC Healthcare — Corporate Communications and Investor Relations

Department
Tel: (852) 3975 4798
Email: ir@echealthcare.com

SHAREHOLDERS SERVICE AND ENQUIRIES

For enquiries about your shareholding including change of name or
address of shareholders, transfer of shares, loss of share certificates or
dividend cheques, registrations and requests for copies of annual or
interim report, please contact the Company’s branch share registrar

and transfer office:

Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Ltd.

Suite 1601, 16/F

Central Tower

28 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

RO ER

EC Healthcare
ERREE
The Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEABAERIARATER

2138

2138

11 March 2016
—ET-R"F=A+—H

1,000 shares
1,000 B i 5
1,185,211,265 shares
1,185,211,265 &% {3

REEBER

BREE — CEEARREERER

EE : (852) 3975 4798
E#[ : ir@echealthcare.com

REBHERERA

B ETHRR(BERRMAIHUESE - IR
NEE  BRAREIMELFEURELTRRIEF
B HRE) WEH  FHREARARNEP

BRSH -

Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Ltd.
B

ERREH 285

K=

1611601 =
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Corporate Governance Report

[

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board acknowledges the vital importance of good governance to
the Group’s success and sustainability by providing a framework for
the Company to formulate its business strategies and policies, and to
enhance its transparency, accountability and shareholder value.

The Board is committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory
standards and adhering to the principles of corporate governance
emphasising on transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness.

The Company has adopted the principles as set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with all code provisions set out in the CG Code during the
Reporting Period, save for the deviation from code provision C.2.1 as
disclosed below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Specific enquiries have been made to all
the Directors, and the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code throughout the Reporting Period.

Co-owners, senior management, executives and staff who, because of
their offices in the Company, are likely to possess inside information,
have also been requested to comply with the Model Code. No incident
of non-compliance with the Model Code by such co-owners,
employees was noted by the Company during the Reporting Period.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERWmE

THE BOARD AND THE DIRECTORS
Board Composition

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report,
the composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Tang Chi Fai (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Lu Lyn Wade Leslie (Co-Chief Executive Officer)

Lee Heung Wing (Chief Financial Officer)

Wong Ka Ki Ada (Chief Strategy Officer and Chief Investment Officer)
Wong Chi Cheung (Chief Digital Officer)

Non-Executive Director
Luk Kun Shing Ben (Chief Information Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors
(“INEDs, each an “INED”)
Ma Ching Nam
Look Andrew
Lam Chi Hang Josekin (resigned on 1 September 2022)
Au Tsun (appointed on 1 September 2022)

Throughout the Reporting Period, the Board has complied with the
requirements of the Listing Rules to have three independent non-
executive Directors who represent one-third of the Board and with one
of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Board has received from each INED a written annual confirmation
that he satisfied the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules, and the nomination committee of the Board (the
“Nomination Committee”) has assessed the independence of each
INED and the Company considers that each of their independence is in
compliance with the Listing Rules during the Reporting Period and as
at the date of this annual report. Each INED will inform the Company in
writing as soon as practicable if there is any change of circumstances
with may affect his independence.

To the best knowledge of the Company, the Directors do not have
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships with
each other.

After annual assessment by the Nomination Committee, the Board
considers the current structure, size and composition of the Board is
able to perform a balanced and independent monitoring function on
management practices to complement the Company’s corporate
strategies. The Directors and their biographical details as at the date of
this annual report are set out on pages 12 to 20 of this annual report.

BRRER 59

EEERES
EEEMAM

RREMEIBERNFRAE - EFGNARD
T

HITES

BEE(EERITEARE)

SR (BT ARE)
FRR(EEMFE)
IRB(EEREAEREERERE)
BLE (BRHGRE)

FHITES
MR (BRI RAAE)

BYkHITES
((BIFBTEE]
551
2359
T (R —ZE-—FAA—BET)
BREMNZE-__FNA—BESE)

REERSHE EFSCETLETRYIZA
TEEREPURBUINTESR HEF
BAB=p2z— HPh—BUERNTEEAR
HERXERUETHRBYMBEEER -

EXEGC RIS BIIFRTESRELTHRANE
BABIRZ B IR RRERENT AR LML ZE
FHERALN MEFSREZES(REZEE))
SRR E R RN AF IR B AT RSB IENTT
BEEZHIMN MARRRREESEENBILMN
e LTHRA - MEREATESFELBIE
MEEBER  BBUIFATEEENERATTIE
MTIBRAZHBNARF -

RARBIRM EFZHEBEFAVE %
% REIEMERFEEOERE -

RAZECHTFETNZE EeRAEES
REFHEHE  ABUMAAR B IR B 1EFIpE s3I
NIERBIHERBE LA R AT ES
B - EERBMENAFERBAHBEREABEHNA
FHRFEI12HE20H

FEHE 2022/23



Corporate Governance Report
TEERWmE

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

During the Reporting Period, the roles of the Chairman of the Board
(the “Chairman”) and the chief executive officer of the Company (the
“CEQ”) have been performed by Mr. Tang Chi Fai (“Mr. Tang”).
Although the dual roles of the Chairman and the CEO constitute a
deviation from the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the Board
believes that having Mr. Tang acting as both the Chairman and the
CEO provides a strong and consistent leadership to the Company and
allows the Company to have more effective planning and management.
Further, in view of Mr. Tang’s extensive experience in the industry,
personal profile and roles in the Group and the historical development
of the Group as mentioned in the Prospectus under the section headed
“Our History, Reorganisation and Corporate Structure” and publications
of the Company from time to time, the Board considers that it is
appropriate and beneficial to the business prospects of the Group that
Mr. Tang continues to act as both the Chairman and the CEO. Mr. Lu
Lyn Wade Leslie, an executive Director, was a co-chief executive officer
(the “Co-CEQ”). The Board will keep regularly reviewing the operations
of the Company under Mr. Tang’s leadership, and considers that the
balance of power and authority has been maintaining amongst each of
the Board members, the Co-CEQ, and the management team of the
Group (the “Management”), when the respective roles and
responsibilities of the Chairman and the CEO are being divided in
writing and carried out as below:

The role of the Chairman focuses on the formulation and determination
of the overall strategies, direction and goal of the Group. The Chairman
is also responsible for leading the Board to effective management of
the Company by, among others, ensuring good corporate governance
practices and procedures, encouraging the Directors to make full and
active contribution to the affairs of the Board, developing a culture of
openness and active discussion among the Directors so that Board
decisions could fairly reflect consensus.

The CEO and the Co-CEO, within the powers delegated by the Board
from time to time, are responsible for day-to-day management of the
Company and to implement strategies and major policies decided by
the Board with the support of other executive Directors and the
Management.
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Board Diversity

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy to comply with the
code provision on board diversity. Under such policy, the Nomination
Committee is delegated with the responsibility to review, assess and
recommend any appointment, re-election or any succession plan of
any directors to the Board from time to time after considering a number
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, or professional experience, to accommodate
the Company’s business model and specific needs.

During the Reporting Period, the Board had 8 male Directors and 1
female Director. As of 31 March 2023, the Group employed a total of
2,579 people, 17% of which were male and 83% were female.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The executive Directors are responsible for formulating the Company’s
corporate strategies, monitoring its implementation and reviewing
operational and financial performance of the Group.

The non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors
have diversified industry expertise and professional knowledge, and
provides advisory, adequate check and balances for effective and
constructive contribution to the executive Directors to safeguard the
interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

The Board makes decisions on major aspects of the Company’s
business operations and other matters, including but not limited to
approving and monitoring key policies, material transactions, business
plans, annual budgets, risk management and internal control systems,
annual and interim results, major capital expenditure and appointment
of Directors.

Delegation to Management

The day-to-day operational management and administration functions
of the Group and implementation of the corporate strategies of the
Group are delegated to the Management led by the executive
Directors.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for the performance of functions of corporate
governance. During the Reporting Period, the Board has performed the
functions as set out in code provision A.2 of the CG Code.
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Appointment, Re-election, Rotation and Removal of
Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment, re-election, rotation, and removal of
the Directors. The Nomination Committee is responsible for considering
the suitability of an individual to act as a Director and making
recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-election of
Directors, succession planning of Directors and assessing the
independence of the INEDs as set out below under sub-section
headed “NOMINATION COMMITTEE".

All other Directors entered into a service contract or letter of
appointment with our Company, which shall be renewed as determined
by the Board or the shareholders. Their term of office each is the
period up to his retirement by rotation or retirement, but they are
eligible for re-election at annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Company may by
ordinary resolution at general meetings of the Company elect any
person to be a Director. The Directors shall have power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so
appointed shall hold office only until the first general meeting after his
appointment, and shall then be eligible for re-election at such general
meeting.

At each annual general meeting of the Company, not less than one-
third of the Directors (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that each Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting at least
once every three years.
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Induction and Continuing Professional Development
of Directors

The Company encourages all Directors to participate in continuous
professional development to further enhance and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Directors have attended the following
trainings during the Reporting Period on various regulatory topics:

EEMARBIRSEERRE

ARRSBAAEE2EBETEERNE—D
RENMEMRE 2 MBRXE  ERESERR
EEHEARIABEATHESS(ELER - &%
ERHmEHEH2ETIARSRE S SEMNE
Al

Nature of Trainings

EIEE
Type 1 Type 2
ERicR ¥A2

Executive Directors HITES
Tang Chi Fai B &= v/ v
Lu Lyn Wade Leslie = E v/ v
Lee Heung Wing ESEES v v/
Wong Ka Ki Ada FRHE v/ v/
Wong Chi Cheung =EE v/ v
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Luk Kun Shing Ben kR v v/
INEDs BIUFHTES
Ma Ching Nam L] v v/
Look Andrew PSR v v/
Lam Chi Hang Josekin (resigned on MET(R—ZE-_—FNA—BET)

1 September 2022) v v
Au Tsun (appointed on 1 September 2022) BER_ZE-—FNLA—BEZMT) v/ v
Type of trainings: B
1. Reading materials. 1. BREM AL
2. Attending training sessions/conference/forum/workshops/seminars. 2. IR gk wiE TS, g -
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Supply of and Access to Information

Notices of regular Board meetings and draft agendas thereof are made
available to the Directors with sufficient times and at least 14 or 3 days
respectively in advance to encourage the Directors’ involvement. All
Directors have full and timely access to the Management for any
information to enable them to make informed decisions at the Board
meetings. The Company Secretary of the Company ensures that the
regulatory Board procedures are followed.

Relevant members of the Management are usually invited to attend the
Board meetings to promote an effective communication within the
Group. Each Director is authorized to hire external consultants or
experts for independent professional advice at the Company’s
expenses to discharge the Director’s responsibilities.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The Directors actively participated in meetings and a summary of the
attendance records of each Director during the Reporting Period are as
follows:

B AR K BB

REBEF2H EXeTHERRSREEH
BRI RIS A R & 14 3R AR H
TEE 2REFHIAEFEIANEEER
T3 N B BRAS AR &5V H IBRTE PR 2 (AT &
B ARRM AR WERRETSERIEFEY
1& -

HEBIEENERFESLEESTSSH - UE
HEAEBMAZERNGE - SRESERBERIN
EENSKERSKBECEERR - BAAKRAR
EE - UBITESEE -

EENZEEHENHFETE

RS EFRB2EEE MEEFOH
R RN

Meeting attendance/eligible to attend

BRLER SERHE
Audit Nomination Remuneration General

Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting

EEg EREE® REZEE FHEES BRAE
Executive Directors HITESE
Tang Chi Fai il 7/8 N/A7~iE R 1/2 N/AE A 1/1
Lu Lyn Wade Leslie B E 8/8 N/ATiE A N/ATiE A N/AiE 11
Lee Heung Wing EEES 8/8 N/ATNEH N/ATER N/ATER 1/1
Wong Ka Ki Ada TR 8/8 N/A 8 N/A 38 N/A 38 11
Wong Chi Cheung BEE 8/8 N/ATNEH N/ATNEHR N/ATER 1/1
Non-executive director  F#{TEE
Luk Kun Shing Ben FEER 7/8 N/A 3 A N/A 3 F N/A 3 A 11
INEDs BUFHTES
Ma Ching Nam 551 8/8 2/2 N/ATNE A 2/2 1/1
Lam Chi Hang Josekin (Note) #hn17 (i) 3/3 1/1 2/2 2/2 1/1
Look Andrew 59 8/8 2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1
Au Tsun (Note) &5 (fisE) 5/5 1/1 N/A 3 F N/A 3 A N/A 3 A
Note: Au Tsun was appointed on 1 September 2022. Lam Chi Hang Josekin iz RER-_Z__FNA-BEEE - MATHR-Z

resigned on 1 September 2022. ZZFNA—HABHT -
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The Board has established three Board committees on 19 February
2016, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
Nomination Committee. Each of the aforesaid committees reports to
the Board on their decisions or recommendations. Each committee or
committee member is authorized to hire outside consultants or experts
for independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses to
discharge their responsibilities.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board with its written
terms of reference in compliance with code provision D.3.3 of the CG
Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are set out in the
written terms of reference which include reviewing and supervising the
Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and internal
control systems, and providing advices and comments to the Board.
During the Reporting Period and as at the date of this annual report,
the Audit Committee consists of Mr. Look Andrew as its chairman, and
Mr. Ma Ching Nam and Mr. Au Tsun as its members, all of whom are
INEDs. The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2023. The Audit Committee
has also reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Company and discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held two meetings
with the Management, the external auditor of the Company and an
external professional engaged by the Company to review the interim
results and report for 2022/2023 and annual results and reports for the
year ended 31 March 2022 and the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and to consider significant issues on
the financial reporting and compliance procedures, internal control and
risk management systems, effectiveness of the Company’s internal
audit functions, the scope of work and appointment of external auditor,
connected transactions and arrangements of the Company for
employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board with its
written terms of reference in compliance with code provision E.1.2 of
the CG Code adopting a model of making recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior
management. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are
set out in the written terms of reference which include regular
monitoring of the remuneration of all the Directors and senior
management to ensure that the levels of their remuneration and
compensation are appropriate and review of matters relating to share
schemes of the Company.

During the Reporting Period and as at the date of this annual report,
the Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. Au Tsun as its chairman,
and Mr. Ma Ching Nam and Mr. Look Andrew as its members, all of
whom are INEDs.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held two
meetings for considering and recommending to the Board the
remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company to the Directors
and senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board with its
written terms of reference in compliance with code provision B.3.1 of
the CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are set
out in the written terms of reference which include selecting and
recommending candidates for directorship, review of the structure, size
and composition of the Board and assessment of the independence of
INEDs.

During the Reporting Period and as at the date of this annual report,
the Nomination Committee consists of Mr. Tang as its chairman,
executive Director, and Mr. Au Tsun and Mr. Look Andrew as its
members, both of whom are INEDs.

Directors’ nomination policy

The Nomination Committee may invite nominations of candidates from
Board members for its consideration. The Nomination Committee may
also put forward candidates who are not nominated by Board
members. The factors in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate for director include, inter alia, reputation for integrity,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that are
relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy, willingness
to devote adequate time to discharge duties as Board member,
diversity of the Board, and such other perspectives appropriate to the
Company’s business. The Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and approval.
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During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held two
meetings and reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board and made recommmendation to the Board on the re-election of
Directors with reference to the board diversity policy adopted by the
Company and assessed the independence of INEDs.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Siu Chun Pong Raymond fulfills the
requirement under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules and is responsible for,
inter alia, provision of advice to the Board on corporate governance
matters and regulatory compliance during the Reporting Period. Mr.
Siu had taken no less than 15 hours of professional training during the
year ended 31 March 2023.

REMUNERATION OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the remuneration paid to KPMG in
respect of the annual audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 and non-audit services
which represent tax compliance services and agreed upon procedure
on the Company’s preliminary results announcement amounted to
approximately HK$2,950,000 and HK$120,000, respectively. In
addition, HK$3,131,000 was charged by other auditors for statutory
audit of financial statements for certain subsidiaries of the Group. Save
as disclosed above, there was no remuneration paid or payable to the
external auditors of the Company for other non-audit services during
the year ended 31 March 2023.

The Board and the Audit Committee were satisfied with KPMG,
Certified Public Accountants, of their findings, independence, objectivity
and effectiveness in the annual audit and their audit fees. KPMG,
Certified Public Accountants, are proposed for re-appointment as the
Company’s external auditor at the forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2023 to give a true and fair presentation of the financial position of the
Company in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and for timely financial disclosures under the
Listing Rules and any other regulatory requirements.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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The statement as to the auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the
financial statements is set out in the independent auditor’s report on
pages 106 to 108 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and reviewing
their effectiveness. The risk management and internal control systems
are designed and being implemented to manage, rather than eliminate,
the risk of failure to achieve the business objectives of the Group, and
can only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Directors and the management would identify any risks associated
with the businesses of the Group by considering both internal and
external factors and events from time to time which include but not limit
to political, economic, technology, environmental, social and human
resources. Two approaches are used for risk identification and
evaluation, which are (1) to identify the root causes of risks, that is,
identify the undesirable events or things that could go wrong and then
identify the potential impacts of each factor and event on the businesses
of the Group; and (2) to identify all the essential functions that the
Group are performing or businesses objectives that the Group are
achieving and then identify all the possible modes by which such
functions might fail to perform. Five strategies are adopted by the
Company to manage risks, including (1) to accept the risk, (2) to avoid
the risk, (3) to transfer the risk, (4) to mitigate the risk, or (5) to exploit
the risk.

The Company has adhered to the ISO 31000:2018 Risk Management
standard, showcasing a structured and systematic approach to risk
management. Additionally, the Company has engaged an external
professional firm to further its internal audit function and to conduct an
annual review on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company in respect of the Group’s financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management for the
Reporting Period and discussed its findings with the Audit Committee
and then reported to the Board. The Board is not aware of any areas
of concern that would have a material impact on the financial position
or businesses of the Group and considers that the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company are generally adequate
and effective and that the Company could maintain the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and
budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions during the Reporting Period.
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The Company has been implementing a policy within the Group to
ensure that all unpublished inside information of the Group shall be
kept confidential until such information is published on the websites of
the Company at www.echealthcare.com and Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited at www.hkexnews.hk in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules or other applicable laws and
regulations.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
shareholders holding not less than 10% of the paid up capital of the
Company may deposit at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong as set out below a written requisition which specifies the
transaction of any business at such meeting and is signed by the
requisitionists to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
convened by the Board. However, there are no provision merely
allowing shareholders to put forward new resolution at a general
meeting under the Companies Act of the Cayman lIslands or the
Articles of Association. Shareholders who wish to propose a resolution
may request the Company to convene an extraordinary general
meeting following the aforesaid procedures.

Pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles of Association, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by
the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any
general meeting unless a notice signed by a member (other than the
person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting
for which such notice is given of his intention to propose such person
for election and also a notice signed by the person to be proposed of
his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the head office
or at the registered office of the Company provided that the minimum
length of the period, during which such notice(s) are given, shall be at
least fourteen (14) days and that (if the notices are submitted after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election) the period for lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on
the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than fourteen (14) days
prior to the date of such general meeting.

Procedures for shareholders to require an extraordinary general
meeting or propose a person for election as a Director are detailed in
the Memorandum and Articles of Association published on the
websites of the Company at www.echealthcare.com and Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited at www.hkexnews.hk.
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The Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar serves the
shareholders with respect to all share registration matters. Specific
enquiries of shareholders and other stakeholders to the Board could
be sent in writing to the Company Secretary of the Company by mail to
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong set out
below:

EC Healthcare

L50, Langham Place Office Tower,
8 Argyle Street,
Mong Kok, Hong Kong.

Shareholders’ rights are further protected when separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantially separate
issue, including but not limited to election or re-election of individual
director at annual general meeting. All resolutions proposed at
shareholders’ meetings are put to vote by poll in accordance with the
Listing Rules and the Articles of Association.

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

In February 2016, the Company adopted a shareholders’
communication policy. Under the policy, the Company communicates
with its shareholders and investors through various means. Timely
publication of interim and annual results announcements on the latest
development of the Company and press release on the Company’s
website at www.echealthcare.com and Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited’s website at www.hkexnews.hk could keep the
shareholders updated of the Company’s financial position and latest
development. Shareholders are highly recommended to pay attention
to these public information. Annual general meetings could provide an
effective forum for the shareholders to share their views with the Board.
Shareholders are welcome to attend the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The Directors and the external auditor of the Company would
be available at the forthcoming annual general meeting to answer
shareholders’ questions about the annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2023 and the business and prospects of the
Group. The Company considers that, in light of the above measures,
its shareholders communication policy is effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Listing Rules have been amended with effect from 1 January 2022
which requires, among others, listed issuers to adopt a set of “Core
Standards” for shareholder protections for issuers. Given the aforesaid,
a special resolution was passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 23 August 2022 to adopt an amended and restated
Memorandum and Articles of Association.
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The Board is pleased to present their report and audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company is the provision of medical and
healthcare services in Hong Kong, Macau and the Mainland China. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries during the Reporting Period are set
out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31 March
2023 by businesses including geographical segment information is set
out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. The geographical
location of customers is determined based on the location where our
services or goods are provided or delivered.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business and an indication of the likely
future development in the Group’s business are set out in the sections
headed “CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT” and “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” on pages 9 to 11 and 27 to 46 of this
annual report respectively. Certain financial key performance indicators
which complement and supplement our financial disclosures are set
out on page 4 of this annual report.

Key Risks and Uncertainties

The following highlights some of the key risks that affect our business:

Reputation Risk

We rely significantly on our brand image and reputation. Any failure to
maintain and enhance, or any damage to, our brand image or
reputation could materially and adversely affect the level of market
recognition of, and confidence on our services, and in turn our
business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects.
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Talent Risk

If we are unable to attract and retain skilled Registered Practitioners
and other competent staff, our business, results of operations, financial
condition and prospects may be materially and adversely affected.

Customer Risk

Our service focuses on improving our customers’ health condition and
physical appearance, and customers have varying expectations of the
magnitude of improvement that may result from our services. If we falil
to properly manage a customer’s expectations of the results from our
services, a customer may in turn be dissatisfied with the results of our
service, and a disappointed customer may, among others, request
refunds, complain to the media and/or the Hong Kong Consumer
Council and file legal claims against us. Such actions from a customer
may have a material adverse effect on our reputation, business, and
results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group considers the importance of environmental affairs and
believes that business development and environment affairs are highly
related. The Group has implemented certain environmental protection
measures to save energy and reduce the consumption of resources.
These policies were supported by our staff and were implemented
effectively.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

As a listed company mainly engaging business in Hong Kong, the
Group is subject to various laws and regulations, including, among
others, Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Business Registration Ordinance (Chapter 310 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), Inland Revenue Ordinance (Chapter 112 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws
of Hong Kong). The Listing Rules is also applicable to the Company.
Being an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability, it is also subject to the Companies Act, Chapter 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
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Our Group has put in place internal controls to ensure compliance of
the same. In addition, as the Group also engages business in more
than one jurisdictions, compliance procedures are in place to ensure
adherence to applicable laws, rules and regulations in those
jurisdictions. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations
are brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operation units in the Company and its subsidiaries from time to time.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief on the
date of this annual report, the Company has complied in all material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Company.

Relationship with Key Stakeholders

The Group fully understands that co-owners, talents, customers and
suppliers are the key to our sustainable and stable development. We
are committed to establishing a close relationship with our staff,
enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and providing high-quality
services to our customers so as to ensure the Group’s sustainable
development.

Staff

Our staff members are regarded as one of the most important assets
of the Group. The Group has been endeavouring to provide our staff
with a fair and harmonious workplace. We offer competitive
remuneration packages and great opportunities for career
advancement based on employees’ performance. The Group intends
to grant share options to outstanding employees to recognise and
reward the employees who have contributed to the Group’s
development. The Group also provides our staff with regular trainings
to keep them abreast of the latest development of the Company and
our industry, and medical related knowledge and skill sets.

Customers

Professionalism and safety have always been our core values. We are
committed to providing the best customer experience to our
customers. Meanwhile, we have a customer phone survey system in
order to further our active solicitation of customer feedback.
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Suppliers

Reliable and quality suppliers are of equal importance in facilitating us
to provide services with high standards of safety and professionalism.
When selecting suppliers, we consider, among other factors, the
suppliers’ reputation, safety record, track record of performance,
quality of goods supplied, price competitiveness, punctuality of
delivery, relationship with our Group, completeness of certification and
credentials provided, service quality and product offerings. We regularly
review and assess our suppliers’ performance and their qualifications
to ensure the quality of our suppliers and that such suppliers have
obtained the applicable licenses (if any), and update our approved
supplier list accordingly.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 109 to 265 of this
annual report.

Operating Segment Information

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of medical and
healthcare services in Hong Kong, Macau and the Mainland China.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of this annual report.

The Board recommends the declaration of a final dividend of 4.2 HK
cents per Share for the year ended 31 March 2023. The proposed final
dividend, if approved by the shareholders at the AGM, will be paid on
or around 18 September 2023 to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 4 September
2023 (record date). Details of the dividend for the year ended 31 March
2023 are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”).
The Board would consider, inter alia, the following factors before
declaring or recommending dividend to the shareholders:

1. financial results of the Company;

2. shareholders’ interests;

3. general business conditions, strategies and future expansion
needs of the Company;

4. the Company’s capital requirements;

5. the payment of cash dividends to the Company from its
subsidiaries;

6. possible effects on liquidity and financial position of the
Company; and

7. the amount of profit that can be distributed under applicable
accounting standards and other factors that the Board may
deem relevant and appropriate.

Any dividend shall be declared by the Company in accordance with the
Cayman lIslands Companies Act, the Memorandum and Articles of the
Company and other applicable laws and regulations, and shall not
affect the normal operation of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy, as appropriate, which will
include an assessment of the effectiveness of the Dividend Policy and
approve any amendments thereto if necessary.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital and reserves
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2023, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to shareholders under the Companies Act of the Cayman
Islands amounted to HK$1,255,773,000 (2022: HK$1,364,063,000).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group made charitable
donations amounting to HK$3,660,000 (2022: HK$297,000).

INDEBTEDNESS

The Group’s indebtedness as at 31 March 2023 is set out on notes 25,
28 and 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD
SCHEME

During the Reporting Period, the Company operated a share option
scheme and a share award scheme for the purposes of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 19 February 2016 by way of a
written resolution of the then sole shareholder of the Company and the
Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for 10 years from the
Listing Date (both dates inclusive). The Share Option Scheme was
terminated on 29 May 2023.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share
options, which were granted under the Share Option Scheme, during
the Reporting Period:

BT S

BANBRERTIERE  ARRR T —AR"F A
FTHBEBBARRERE—BRENEEARER
R AT B ([EEARAERT 81 )) - MEEARIERT IR
EMEHERHTFR(BEEEMA) R EAR
71 BRE SN S =F R A=+ BKL -

TEREERHREABALRRREBIE S
REmBEEES

Directors
i
LU Lyn Wade Leslie 10,000,000 - - - - -
)7
LEE Heung Wing 100,000 - - - - -
BN
1,000,000 - - - _ _
1,000,000 - - - _ _
2,500,000 - - - _ _
2,500,000 - - - _ _
WONG Ka Ki Ada 8,000,000 - - - - -
5%

10,000,000 2/09/21 1080 26/09/22-23/09/31 1160
(Note 20) (F¥20)

100,000 02/10/18 471 0201190110128 600
(Note 1) (3E11)

1,000,000 1200719 708 02/01/20-11/07/24 708
(Note 14) (Fi3t14)

1,000,000 16/10/19 578 1110191010129 70
(Note 16) (B3 16)

2,500,000 15/03/21 655 15/08/22-14/08/31 655
(Note 18) (B3t 18)

2,500,000 01/12/21 1200 01/12/22-30/11/31 1330
(Note 21) (3¥21)

8,000,000 01/12/21 1200 01/12/22-30/11/31 1330
(Note 22) (¥ 22)
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WONG Chi Cheung 500,000 - - - - - - 500,000 21/08/18 549 02/01/19-13/08/28 600
EEE Note 8)(Fi3£8)
1,500,000 - - - - - - 1,500,000 28/11/18 528 02/0119-27/11/28 600
(Note 12) (i 12)
450,000 - - - - - - 450,000 0112121 1200 01/12/22-30/11/31 1330
(Note 23)(Hz23)
Employees (Note 24)
EB ()
In aggregate 100,000 - - - - - - 100,000 10/07/18 522 02/0119-3112123 660
@t (Note 7)(i5£7)
50,000 - - - - - - 50,000 070918 507 02/01/19-06/09/28 600
(Note 9)(FiE£9)
290,000 - (17500) - - - - 272,500 02110118 471 02/01A9-0110/28 600
(Note 27) (fi3t27) (Note 1) (E11)
95,000 - - - - - - 95,000 28/11/18 528 02/0119-27/11/28 600
(Note 12) (3H12)
150,000 - - - - - - 160,000 020719 600 02/01/20-01/07/23 600
(Note 13) (FH3E13)
100,000 - - - - - - 100,000 05/03/20 499 05/03/20-07/11/29 600
(Note 17) (R3E17)
380,000 - - - - - 30,000) 350,000 29/07/21 1232 29/07/21-28/07/31 1246
(Note 19) (HE19)
- 1,300,000 - - - - - 1,300,000 01/08/22 674 31/07/23-31/07/32 9.15
(Note 25) (3t 25)
- 2,200,000 - - - - - 2,200,000 01/08/22 674 31/07/23-31/07/32 804
(Note 25) (3t 25)
- 900,000 - - - - - 900,000 05/01/23 438 0/01/24-04/01/33 9,00
(Note 26) (¥ 26)
- 900,000 - - - - - 900,000 05/01/23 438 0/01/24-04/01/33 10.00
(Note 26) (¥ 26)
28,715,000 5,300,000 (17500) - - - (30000) 33,967,500
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The Total of 7,350,000 share options shall be exercisable in ten equal
tranches from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2026. The weighted average
closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the share
options were exercised was HK$14.36.

The Total of 735,000 share options shall be exercisable in one tranche from 1
January 2027 to 17 September 2027.

The Total of 1,000,000 share options shall be exercisable in four equal
tranches from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2021. The weighted average
closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the share
options were exercised was HK$11.89.

The Total of 860,000 share options shall be exercisable in four equal tranches
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2021. The weighted average closing
price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the share options
were exercised was HK$12.08.

The Total of 300,000 share options shall be exercisable in three equal
tranches from 1 April 2018 to 4 December 2027.

The Total of 1,000,000 share options shall be exercisable in four tranches
from 3 July 2018 to 23 May 2028.

The Total of 100,000 share options, shall be exercisable in five equal tranches
from 2 January 2019 to 31 December 2023.

The Total of 800,000 share options shall be exercisable in four tranches from
2 January 2019 to 20 August 2028. The weighted average closing price of the
Shares immediately before the date on which the share options were
exercised was HK$13.80.

The Total of 100,000 share options shall be exercisable in four equal tranches
from 2 January 2019 to 6 September 2028. The weighted average closing
price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the share options
were exercised was HK$11.30.

The Total of 735,000 share options shall be exercisable in one tranche from 3
January 2028 to 1 October 2028.

The Total of 840,000 share options shall be exercisable in four equal tranches
from 2 January 2019 to 1 October 2028. The weighted average closing price
of the Shares immediately before the date on which the share options were
exercised was HK$11.30.

The Total of 1,620,000 share options, shall be exercisable in seven tranches
from 2 January 2019 to 27 November 2028.

The Total of 150,000 share options shall be exercisable in three equal
tranches from 2 January 2020 to 1 July 2023.

The Total of 1,000,000 share options shall be exercisable in four equal
tranches from 2 January 2020 to 11 July 2024.
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The Total of 735,000 share options shall be exercisable in one tranche from 2
January 2029 to 15 October 2029.

The Total of 1,000,000 share options shall be exercisable in five tranches from
16 October 2019 to 15 October 2029.

The Total of 150,000 share options shall be exercisable in one tranche from 5
March 2020 to 7 November 2029. The weighted average closing price of the
Shares immediately before the date on which the share options were
exercised was HK$11.30.

The Total of 2,500,000 share options shall be exercisable in eight tranches
from 15 March 2022 to 14 March 2031.

The Total of 380,000 share options shall be exercisable in four tranches from
29 July 2021 to 28 July 2031. The estimated fair value per share was
HK$4.65, totalling HK$1,767,000.

The Total of 10,000,000 share options shall be exercisable in ten tranches
from 26 September 2022 July 2021 to 23 September 2031. The estimated fair
value per share was HK$5.44, totalling HK$54,400,000.

The Total of 2,500,000 share options shall be exercisable in four tranches
from 1 December 2022 to 30 November 2031. The estimated fair value per
share was HK$5.84, totalling HK$14,600,000.

The Total of 8,000,000 share options shall be exercisable in five tranches from
1 December 2022 to 30 November 2031. The estimated fair value per share
was HK$5.85, totalling HK$46,800,000.

The Total of 450,000 share options shall be exercisable in nine tranches from
1 December 2022 to 30 November 2031. The estimated fair value per share
was HK$5.81, totalling HK$2,614,500.

All grantees in this category are employees or staff of the Group.

The Total of 3,500,000 share options shall be exercisable in five tranches from
31 July 2023 to 31 July 2032. The estimated value per share was HK$2.99,
totalling HK$10,465,000.

The Total of 1,800,000 share options shall be exercisable in three tranches
from 5 January 2024 to 4 January 2033. The estimated value per share was
HK$4.10, totaling HK$7,378,000.

The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the
exercise date was HK$7.14.
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Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is to provide an incentive or reward for the
Grantees (as defined below) for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group.

Eligible Persons

Under the Share Option Scheme, eligible persons include any full-time or
part-time employees, potential employees, executives or officers (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive Directors) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, and any suppliers, clients, consultants,
agents and advisers who, in the sole opinion of the Board, has contributed
or will contribute to the development, growth or benefit of the Group
(collectively, the “Eligible Participants” or “Grantees”) and whom the Board
may in its absolute discretion select.

Maximum Number of shares

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the Listing Date, which is
98,000,000 shares, being 9.99% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report. The limit may be refreshed
at any time provided that the new limit must not exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ approval.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Share Option Scheme, the
maximum limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of our Company must
not in aggregate exceed such number of shares which represent 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time. No options may be granted under
any schemes of our Company or subsidiaries if such grant will result in this
30% limit being exceeded.
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Maximum Entitlement of Each Eligible Participant

Subject to the requirements under the Listing Rules relating to the grant of
share options to the Directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders,
unless approved by the shareholders at general meeting in the manner
prescribed in the Listing Rules, the maximum entitiement of each Eligible
Participant is that the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the outstanding options granted and to be granted to such
Grantee (including both exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
under the Share Option Scheme and other scheme(s) of the Group in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of grant (the “Maximum Entitements”).

Option Period

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme during a period notified or to be
notified by the Board, provided no option period shall exceed 10 years.

Minimum Period for which an Option must be held
before it is Exercised

There is no requirement of minimum period for which an Option must
be held before exercise under the Share Option Scheme. The period
within which an option may be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme is determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, provided
that such period is consistent with any other terms and condition of the
Share Option Scheme.

Payment on Acceptance of the Option

A consideration of HK$1 is payable on or before the last day for
acceptance of the option granted under the Share Option Scheme set
out in the offer document from time to time.

Basis of Determining the Subscription Price

The subscription price for shares under the Share Option Scheme shall
be at the absolute discretion of the Board, provided that it must be at
least the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of offer; and (i)
the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the five Business Days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (jii) the nominal value of a
share (the “Benchmark Price”).
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The Remaining Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme remained in force from the Listing Date to
29 May 2023, the same of which was terminated by way of ordinary
resolutions of the Shareholders.

NEW SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Share
Option Scheme”) on 29 May 2023 by way of ordinary resolutions
passed at the extraordinary general meeting. The New Share Option
Scheme is valid and effective for 10 years from 29 May 2023 (both
dates inclusive).

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to provide an
incentive or reward for the grantees for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Company and/ or any of its subsidiaries. Under the
New Share Option Scheme, eligible participants include (i) any director
and/ or employee of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, (i) any
director and/ or employee of the holding companies, fellow subsidiaries
or associated companies of the Company; and (jii) service providers,
which mainly comprise individual medical professionals who provide
services 1o, or on behalf of, the Group.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the New Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 29 May 2023, which is
59,260,563 shares and the maximum number which may be granted
to the service providers shall not exceed 2% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at 29 May 2023, which is 23,704,225 shares. The
aforesaid limits may be refreshed at any time provided that the new
limits must not exceed 5%/ 2% of the total number of shares in issue
as at 29 May 2023. The maximum entitlement of each eligible
participant shall be the Maximum Entitlement. As at the date of this
report, no option has been granted nor outstanding under the New
Share Option Scheme.

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance with the
terms of the New Share Option Scheme during a period notified or to
be notified by the Board, provided no option period shall exceed 10
years. The vesting period in respect of any option granted to any
eligible participant shall not be shorter than 12 months from the date of
acceptance of the offer, provided that where the eligible participant is (i)
an employee participant who is a Director or a senior manager, the
remuneration committee of the Board shall; or (i) an employee
participant who is not a Director nor a senior manager, the Directors
shall have the authority to determine a shorter vesting period under
specific circumstances.
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A consideration of HK$1 is payable on or before the last day for
acceptance of the option granted under the New Share Option
Scheme set out in the offer document from time to time. The
subscription price for shares under the New Share Option Scheme
shall be at the absolute discretion of the Board, provided that it must
be at least the Benchmark Price.

SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED OTHER THAN
THOSE UNDER SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement in connection with the
acquisition of additional 24% equity interest in Hong Kong Pain and
Wellness Solution Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, during the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group issued
warrants which allow the sellers to subscribe an aggregate number of
10,000,000 shares of the Company within 1-5 years at an exercise
price of HK$4.20. The warrants would vest in stages in 5 years
following the completion of the acquisition, 2,000,000 shares were
allotted and issued upon exercise of the relevant warrants during the
year ended 31 March 2023.

As at 31 March 2023, the warrants granted to the sellers had a
remaining contractual life of 2.4 years.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company also adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) on 27 June 2016 with a summary of the Share Award
Scheme rules published in the announcement dated 29 June 2016. On
30 September 2016, the Company entered into a deed of variation to
the trust deed of the Share Award Scheme (the “Deed of Variation”) to
make certain changes to the said trust deed, to the effect that as from
30 September 2016, all core connected persons (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company be excluded from participating in the
Share Award Scheme. Under the Share Award Scheme, the Group’s
employees, selected by the Board are entitled to participate.

The objectives of the Share Award Scheme are (i) to recognize the
contributions by certain employees and to provide them with incentives
in order to retain them for the continual operation and development of
the Group; and (i) to attract suitable personnel for further development
of the Group.
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The Share Award Scheme is subject to the administration of the Board
and the independent trustee in accordance with the Share Award
Scheme rules and the trust deed of the Share Award Scheme. The
Share Award Scheme is valid and effective from the date of adoption
for 10 years or such date of early termination as determined by the
Board, provided that such termination shall not affect any subsisting
right of any eligible persons selected for participation in the Share
Award Scheme.

The Board shall not make any further award of awarded shares which
will result in the nominal value of the shares awarded by the Board
under the Share Award Scheme exceeding 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time. The maximum number of
shares which may be awarded to a selected employee under the Share
Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. As at 31 March 2020, all awarded shares
granted were forfeited. During the Reporting Period, no awarded
shares were granted.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors

TANG Chi Fai (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

LU Lyn Wade Leslie (Co-Chief Executive Officer)

LEE Heung Wing (Chief Financial Officer)

WONG Ka Ki Ada (Chief Strategy Officer & Chief Investment Officer)
WONG Chi Cheung (Chief Digital Officer)

Non-Executive Director

LUK Kun Shing Ben (Chief Information Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

MA Ching Nam

LOOK Andrew

AU Tsun (appointed on 1 September 2022)

LAM Chi Hang Josekin (resigned on 1 September 2022)
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty, or supposed duty in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate liabilities insurance to
indemnify the Directors against any liabilities and costs arising from the
business of the Group.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out in the section headed “BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT” on pages 12 to 26 of this annual report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed below or in this annual report, there has been no
change in information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Ma Ching Nam has retired as an independent non-executive
director of Time Watch Investments Limited (stock code: 2033) by

rotation on 24 November 2022.

Mr. Lam Chi Hang Josekin resigned as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 1 September 2022.

Mr. Au Tsun was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
with effect from 1 September 2022.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. After review by the
Nomination Committee, the Company considered all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent during the
Reporting Period and as at the date of this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The remuneration paid to and/or entitled by each of the Directors and
the five highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 March 2023 is
set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments and
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office during the Reporting
Period.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS OR
LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract or a letter of appointment with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the Company’s business was entered into or existed during the
Reporting Period.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

On 21 February 2020, the Board approved the conditional adoption of
the Co-Ownership Plan. The Co-Ownership Plan was approved by the
Shareholders at the EGM on 16 April 2020. Capitalized terms used
herein in connection with the Co-Ownership Plan shall have the same
meanings as ascribed to them in the circular of the Company dated 31
March 2020. For details of the Co-Ownership Plan, please refer to the
circular of the Company dated 31 March 2020. Under the Co-
Ownership Plan and as of 31 March 2020:

(i) Mr. Lee Heung Wing and Mr. Wong Chi Cheung, each an
executive Director and an Eligible Participant, accepted
HK$2,024,298 and HK$2,000,000, respectively, as Investment
Amounts under the Co-Ownership Plan.

(i)  The Plan Trustees may satisfy the settlement of the grant of
Award Shares to the relevant Grantee by means of purchasing
such Shares held by the Connected Sellers, i.e. Mr. Tang Chi Fai
(an executive Director and a controlling shareholder of the
Company) and Mr. Lee Gabriel (an executive Director).

Save as disclosed above and in this annual report, no Director or his
connected entity had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any transactions, arrangements or contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party during the Reporting Period and required to be disclosed
under the Listing Rules.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Interests in
Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts” above and elsewhere in this
annual report, no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
in relation to the Group’s business in which the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries or a controlling shareholder of the Company or any of the
controlling shareholder’s subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the Reporting Period or at any time during the Reporting
Period.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, save for the competing businesses as
disclosed below, none of the Directors had any interest in a business
other than the Group, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, and required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Tang was interested in a
company which is not included in the Group (the “Relevant Company”).

Name of the
Relevant Company Nature of business
HEARER ERHE Ezg
Healthy Concept (HK) Limited Supply of skincare and Mr. Tang
(“Healthy Concept”) (note 1) beauty products/
Operation of call centre
(note 2)

Healthy Concept (HK) Limited ~ {tJER S #12 R = RER, ot

Board of Directors

EERBFERBHESR

RBEMEAR - BT ORBENBFEBI  HE
EERERIMEEREERB BT EREK
BRNER (BRAEEIN) FHAEMER XA
RIE FTRAIE 810 RMIRE T AKE -

RAFHRBEH - BAERAENFF AR KB RA]
(MMABAR D h AR -

Size of business
ERRE

Revenue in 2022: less than
HK$5.1 million

Net profit in 2022: less than
HK$2.6 million (note 3)

N

([Healthy Concept ) BRI L (B E2) PREABEBT
GERD SR FEFEA
L2688 (HiES)
Notes: Mk -
1. Healthy Concept is a company incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong 1. Healthy Concept@ —RHW =—TZTFHA=+XH
with limited liability on 26 May 2006, and is wholly-owned by Mr. Tang. BEEBENFMAINERARREABLELEE

2. Healthy Concept operates its business in Hong Kong. Its target customers in
respect of the supply of skincare and beauty products are primarily aesthetic
medical or traditional beauty service providers. Separately, it also operates a
call centre which targets individual customers. The personnel of the call centre
contact individual customers and refer them to the providers of body
screening services, beauty products and beauty services, respectively, for
referral income. However, Healthy Concept does not provide any aesthetic
medical or traditional beauty services, nor body screening services.

3. The figures are determined by reference to the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2022 of the Relevant Company.

The Group offers a broad range of services and products, including
medical services, aesthetic medical services, beauty and wellness
services, skincare, healthcare and beauty products, primarily of private-
label brands, PRODERMA LAB, Swissline, Suissebeaute and
re:HEALTH. The Group does not focus on mass market retailing of
products and substantially all skincare, healthcare and beauty products
are sold to the customers of the Group’s services.
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The Directors are of the view that the Group’s business activities are
clearly delineated from that of the Relevant Company, since the Group
does not focus on the supply and distribution of medical consumables,
devices and equipment, or skincare, healthcare and beauty products.
Instead, the Group only focuses on (i) applying medical consumables,
devices and equipment during the course of provision of services; and
(i) selling skincare, healthcare and beauty products to the customers of
the Group’s services. In contrast, the Relevant Company focuses on
the supply and distribution of such goods to aesthetic medical service
providers and traditional beauty service providers in Hong Kong.
Furthermore, the Relevant Company does not supply and distribute
any skincare, healthcare and beauty products of the Group’s private-
label brands, PRODERMA LAB, Swissline, Suissebeaute and
re:HEALTH.

In light the above, the Directors are of the view that the businesses
conducted by the Relevant Company do not form part of, and are not
in line with, the core business of the Group, and as such, do not
compete and are unlikely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the Group’s business.

Deed of Non-competition

As disclosed in the Prospectus, pursuant to the non-competition
undertakings set out in the deed of non-competition dated 19 February
2016, each of Mr. Tang and Union Medical Care Holding Limited
(“Union Medical Care”), our controlling shareholders, have undertaken
to the Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) that,
amongst other things, each of them is not or will not, and will procure
each of their respective close associates not to, to be interested,
involved or engaged in or concerned with, directly or indirectly, any
business which is in any respect in competition with or similar to or is
likely to be in competition with the business of the Group during the
period commencing from the Listing Date and ending on the
occurrence of the earliest of (i) the day on which its shares cease to be
listed on the Stock Exchange or other recognised stock exchange; (ii)
the day on which Mr. Tang and/or Union Medical Care cease to be
controlling shareholder(s) of the Company; and (iii) the day on which
Mr. Tang and/or Union Medical Care beneficially own or are interested
in all the issued ordinary shares of the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
implementation of the deed of non-competition and are of the view that
the controlling shareholders have complied with its undertakings given
under the deed of non-competition for the year ended 31 March 2023.
As at 31 March 2023, no new business opportunity has been notified
by the controlling shareholders.
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Independence from the controlling shareholders

The Board believes that the Group is capable of carrying on its
business independent of, and does not place undue reliance on, Mr.
Tang and/or Union Medical Care or their respective close associates,
taking into consideration the factors of financial independence,
operational independence and management independence when the
facts and reasons as disclosed in the Prospectus applied to the Group
during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, the “SFQ”)), which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or (b) as recorded in the register kept by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or (c) otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
were as follows:
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Interests in shares and underlying shares of the

Company

Name of Director/
Chief Executive

EE XE
THRABHSA

Tang Chi Fai
HEE

Lu Lyn Wade Leslie
aiE

Lee Heung Wing
EARES

Wong Ka Ki Ada
IXH

Wong Chi Cheung

BEE
Luk Kun Shing Ben
BER

Ma Ching Nam
55

Notes:

Capacity

&4

Beneficial owner, interest of spouse and
interest in a controlled corporation
EnfEBA  RBERMRZES
EER

Beneficial owner

ESHBA

Beneficial owner
BEnEAA

Beneficial owner
EREBA

Beneficial owner
E=nEAA

Beneficial owner
EnEAA

Beneficial owner
EREBA

L denotes long position.

1. Total number of issued shares as at 31 March 2023 was 1,185,211,265.

RAEDQTRAD RAABR D B S

Approximate

Number of percentage of
underlying the total issued
Number of shares held share capital of
shares under equity the Company
interested derivatives (Note 1)
RREATE BAERRE BT
BEER IATEEZ R BEEREA
ZRBEE HERGEA B (KfiEE1)
722,204,610 (1) - 60.93%
(Note 2)
(H&E2)
- 10,000,000 0.84%
(Note 3)
(P=E3)
680,500 (L) 7,100,000 (L) 0.66%
(Note 4)
(Pi7E4)
- 8,000,000 0.67%
(Note 5)
(FHi£5)
476,624 (L) 2,450,000 (1) 0.25%
(Note 6)
(H=E6)
2,822,992 (L) - 0.24%
300,000 (L) - 0.03%
WTEE -

L f8IFRE °

1. R-ZT-Z=F=-A=1+—HNCBTROLEE S
1,185,211,265 % ©

2. Mr. Tang and Union Medical Care Holding Limited (“Union Medical Care”) are 2. &5t 4 J Union Medical Care Holding Limited ([ Union
the controlling shareholders of the Company. Union Medical Care is entirely Medical Care |) 7752 R &Y#ZE AR AR R © Union Medical
owned by Mr. Tang. Out of 722,204,610 shares that Mr. Tang was interested CaceHE A2 EMA - EH A ERAERZD
in, (i) 5,403,000 shares were held by Mr. Tang personally, (i) 4,181,000 shares 722,204,610 B 8% 19 7 - (i) 5,403,000 A% F &P 5 A4 1
were held by Ms. Yau Ming Li, the spouse of Mr. Tang, and (iii) 712,620,610 AFEE (i) 4,181,000 A& 7Y B 86 e A4 1Y i 48 £ BE ) 2
shares were held by Union Medical Care and Mr. Tang was therefore deemed +#8 (i) 712,620,610 % B Union Medical Care
to be interested in such 4,181,000 shares and 712,620,610 shares under Part FA - Bt RBEES REEROIEXVE - L4
XV of SFO. W45 AP AEEA 4,181,000 Ak i (9 K 712,620,610 i ik
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10,000,000 share options (with their exercise period) include (i) 1,500,000
share options (26 September 2022 to 23 September 2031); (ii) 1,500,000
share options (25 September 2023 to 23 September 2031); (i) 1,500,000

share options (24 September 2024 to 23 September 2031); (iv) 1,500,000
share options (24 September 2025 to 23 September 2031); (v) 1,500,000
share options (24 September 2026 to 23 September 2031); (vi) 500,000 share
options (24 September 2027 to 23 September 2031); (vi) 500,000 share
options (25 September 2028 to 23 September 2031); (viii) 500,000 share
options (24 September 2029 to 23 September 2031); (ix) 500,000 share
options (24 September 2030 to 23 September 2031); (x) 500,000 share
options exercisable on 23 September 2031.

7,100,000 share options (with their exercise period) include (i) 25,000 share
options (2 January 2019 to 1 October 2028); (ii) 25,000 share options (2
January 2020 to 1 October 2028); (i) 25,000 share options (4 January 2021
to 1 October 2028); (iv) 25,000 share options (3 January 2022 to 1 October
2028); (v) 250,000 share options (2 January 2020 to 11 July 2024); (vi)
250,000 share options (4 January 2021 to 11 July 2024); (vii) 250,000 share
options (3 January 2022 to 11 July 2024); (vii) 250,000 share options (2
January 2023 to 11 July 2024); (ix) 200,000 share options (11 October 2019
to 15 October 2029); (x) 50,000 share options (4 January 2021 to 15 October
2029); (xi) 100,000 share options (3 January 2022 to 15 October 2029); (xii)
150,000 share options (2 January 2023 to 15 October 2029); (xii) 500,000
share options (2 January 2024 to 15 October 2029); (xiv) 312,500 share
options (15 March 2022 to 14 March 2031); (xv) 312,500 share options (15
March 2023 to 14 March 2031); (xvi) 312,500 share options (15 March 2024
to 14 March 2031); (xvii) 312,500 share options (15 March 2025 to 14 March
2031); (xviii) 312,500 share options (15 March 2026 to 14 March 2031); (xix)
312,500 share options (15 March 2027 to 14 March 2031); (xx) 312,500 share
options (15 March 2028 to 14 March 2031); (xxi) 312,500 share options (15
March 2029 to 14 March 2031); (xxii) 625,000 share options (1 December
2022 to 30 November 2031); (xxii) 625,000 share options (1 December 2023
to 30 November 2031); (xxiv) 625,000 share options (1 December 2024 to 30
November 2031); (xxv) 625,000 share options (1 December 2025 to 30
November 2031).
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8,000,000 share options (with their exercise period) include (j) 1,600,000 share
option (1 December 2022 to 30 November 2031); (i) 1,600,000 share option (1
December 2023 to 30 November 2031); (iii) 1,600,000 share option (1
December 2024 to 30 November 2031); (iv) 1,600,000 share option (1
December 2025 to 30 November 2031); (v) 1,600,000 share option (1
December 2026 to 30 November 2031).

2,450,000 share options (with their exercise period) include () 125,000 share
options (2 January 2019 to 20 August 2028); (ii) 125,000 share options (2
January 2020 to 20 August 2028); (i) 125,000 share options (4 January 2021
to 20 August 2028); (iv) 125,000 share options (3 January 2022 to 20 August
2028); (v) 100,000 share options (2 January 2020 to 27 November 2028); (vi)
200,000 share options (4 January 2021 to 27 November 2028); (vii) 400,000
share options (3 January 2022 to 27 November 2028); (viii) 400,000 share
options (2 January 2023 to 27 November 2028); (ix) 300,000 share options (2
January 2024 to 27 November 2028); (x) 100,000 share options (2 January
2025 to 27 November 2028); (xi) 50,000 share options (1 December 2022 to
30 November 2031); (xii) 50,000 share options (1 December 2023 to 30
November 2031); (xiii) 50,000 share options (1 December 2024 to 30
November 2031); (xiv) 50,000 share options (1 December 2025 to 30
November 2031); (xv) 50,000 share options (1 December 2026 to 30
November 2031); (xvi) 50,000 share options (1 December 2027 to 30
November 2031); (xvii) 50,000 share options (1 December 2028 to 30
November 2031); (xviii) 50,000 share options (1 December 2029 to 30
November 2031); (xix) 50,000 share options (1 December 2030 to 30
November 2031).
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Interest in shares and underlying shares of associated
corporation(s) of the Company

Ejé%ﬁ’&ﬂ*ﬁﬂ%iﬁ B9 IR 43 B AR B AR 42 Y
=

Approximate
percentage of
Number of Number of  the total issued
shares underlying share capital
Name of Name of interested in shares held of the
Director/Chief associated the associated under equity associated
Executive corporation Capacity corporation derivatives corporation
DRASTETA 1EHEBEE 2
REEEBHES FAEKME BERITRAMN
EE IETBAEHS HEEEERE L) BENRAHA RGEE BARSL
Tang Chi Fai Union Medical Care Beneficial owner 2 - 100%
e Holding Limited ~ EZ#A A (Note 1) (FitsE 1)
Note: Bt
L denotes long position. L EIf R o
1. The 2 shares in which Mr. Tang was interested in were ordinary shares of 1. B 4 4 4G e 2 1 5% 2 AR BR 19 2 Union Medical Care

Union Medical Care.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, so far as is known to
any Directors or chief executives of the Company, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or (b) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein or (c) were required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER'’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2023, other than interests disclosed above in respect
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company, the following
persons had or were deemed or taken to have interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO or who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

RZA 2T RAD & AR B AR 4 Y fE ok

Beneficial owner

BEREBA

Union Medical Care (Note 2)
Union Medical Care (Fff3£2)

Beneficial owner and
interest of spouse
BB AR EER

Yau Ming Li (Note 3)

ERBAA (M E3)

712,620,610 (L)

60.13%

722,204,610 (L) 60.93%

Notes:
L Denotes as long position.

1. Total number of issued shares as at 31 March 2023 was 1,185,211,265.

2. Mr. Tang and Union Medical Care are the controlling shareholders of the
Company. Union Medical Care is wholly-owned by Mr. Tang.

3. Out of the 722,204,610 shares, (i) 4,181,000 shares were held by Ms. Yau
and (i) 718,023,610 shares were held/deemed to be held by Mr. Tang, the
spouse of Ms. Yau, and Ms. Yau was therefore deemed to be interested in the
shares of the Company in which Mr. Tang was interested under Part XV of the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, the Directors have not
been notified by any person (other than the Directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors
EFEgHnE

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save and except the Share Option Scheme, the Share Award Scheme
and the Co-Ownership Plan, at no time during or at the end of the
Reporting Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2023, the Group employed approximately 2,579 (31
March 2022: 2,674) permanent employees (excluding Registered
Practitioners) in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC.

The Group is aware of the importance of human resources and is
dedicated to retaining competent and talented directors and employees
by offering them competitive remuneration packages. Their salaries
and bonuses were determined with reference to their duties, work
experience, performance and prevailing market practices. The Group
also participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme in
Hong Kong, and provides employees with medical insurance coverage.
No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable
in the future years. The MPF contributions charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss represent the contributions payable to the
funds by the Group. A Share Option Scheme, the Co-Ownership Plan
and a share award scheme are in place to reward individual employees
for their outstanding performance and contribution to the success of
the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions of the Group undertaken
in the normal course of business during the Reporting Period are set
out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements. None of these
transactions is required to be disclosed under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.
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Report of the Directors
EFEgHnE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, during the Reporting Period and
up to the date of this annual report, there is sufficient public float of the
Company’s securities as required under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the aggregate amount of revenue
or sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers represented
less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue. The aggregate amount of
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers represented
less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases.

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their respective close associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any direct/indirect interest in these major
suppliers or customers during the year ended 31 March 2023.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the shares
of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The corporate governance report is set out on pages 58 to 70 of this
annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The environmental, social and governance report of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2023 is published on the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s website.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 have been
audited by KPMG, Certified Public Accountants, who will retire and,
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as the
auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Tang Chi Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2023

BRRER 99

BRIR  HERERERE

ARRBE-B-SGZAS+—ALFEIE
5 AR AR BB A AR R A 4B
g -

Bl

BE_Z-_=F=A=+—HBILFENIBRX
RHAEXSMEFHSAMEEMER  AE
HELER  HEFEERKBERERERRBSF
RERIBER - ENEERFHGHMELAA
ARRIZBEARFR N EERRBFAE L

RE -

RREZ=S

FEHE 2022/23



Independent Auditor's Report
ARV 2 TR ey

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
EC Healthcare
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of EC
Healthcare (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 109 to 265, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2023, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2023 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Independent Auditor's Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition: Provision of services

Refer to notes 5 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements and
the accounting policies in note 3.1.

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

Revenue mainly comprises income from the provision of medical,
aesthetic medical and beauty and wellness services.
WAFZEBERMEER Z28E  ERARBERBHIBA -

Revenue is recognised when the related services are provided to
customers.
WARBR RIS IR T B PREER

Certain services provided by the Group are sold on a prepaid basis.
Payments received for prepaid packages are initially recorded as
deferred revenue in the consolidated statement of financial position
at the time of receipt. The service period for a prepaid package is
generally one year.

ERERENE TRBZRBEMNEELE - BROTENEZRIER S
R RERE I BEARRRARIERELTEWA - ENEZOREH KR
_E °

Prepaid packages are non-refundable and customers may not utilise
all of their contracted rights within the service period. Such unutilised
services are referred to as “breakage”. An expected amount of
breakage is estimated by management based on historical
experience and is recognised as revenue in proportion to the pattern
of services provided to customers.

BNERIREREFRBRSHAARENEREL RIS LET - 48
BAAREANRGHEA [ REANEF | - FHRRERNRNEEHRE
BEREBELRG RIZRMTEPORBEXA L OIHRBBA -

Any residual deferred revenue at the end of the contractual service

period is fully recognised in profit or loss.
& KBRS BAR B0 (Rl ISR IR E Y A PN IE 28 AR BREE TR ©
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
RN FSNMAEEZEE

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition
of revenue from the provision of services
during the year included the following:

B EETIE 72T F A2k B 2 R B 80 i
AHER - BT ERIE ¢

° assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls over revenue

recognition;

. AL S AR F 2R EE IR
Bie S A8 FRIRRL

° inspecting, on a sample basis, sales

contracts and evaluating management’s
accounting treatment for the recognition
of revenue with reference to the terms
set out in the sales contracts and the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

. 2EHEANMENIEREIRITE LR
BARTE  MEEREESORMHERERERE
HIRATERO G R

o inspecting, on a sample basis, cash
receipts from customers during the year
and comparing such receipts with
relevant details in sales contracts entered
into during the year;

J MEERFANREEFHR DU - W8
ZEWFEFE RN LA IHE & KRR
TBIELLER

° comparing, on a sample basis,
customers’ signed acceptance of
services provided with the customers’
utilisation records;

. ML B P S AT R M AR 75 60 25 4 4 B
B AR
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The Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

We identified recognition of revenue from the provision of services
as a key audit matter because (1) revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Group and therefore there is an
inherent risk of manipulation of the timing of recognition of revenue
by management to meet specific targets; and (2) the estimation of
the utilisation pattern of services is inherently subjective and requires
significant judgement and estimation which increase the risk of error
or potential management bias.
BMHRBMARE B —HBRETEE - DA KRAR E%REH
BRERRIEE 2 — At —BEARR R EERERER AR RHEI
EINEEN  RQBBEAEANGIIAE FEFBIERFEEET
BEAHE LG SN THERIELERER L NER
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
RN FSNMAEEZEE

recalculating, on a sample basis, the
revenue recognised for services provided
during the year with reference to the
terms as set out in the sales contracts;
2EHEANMENGT  MEEEFR
PR AR O MR

analysing the Group’s historical data for
utilisation of prepaid packages and the
current year’s revenue recognised for
services provided to re-perform the
calculation of the breakage amount for
the current year; comparing our results
with the actual figures recorded by the
Group and investigating unusual items or
trends and assessing whether or not
there was an indication of management
bias;

A EEBERENERERBRINBE
R RN FE T IR AR TS TRV U A - A
BN ERNFEREANEN S BEK
MEsERE BEXERSENERETIEL
B WHAESEFERANBE RTERS
ERERANIR

assessing, on a sample basis, whether
residual deferred revenue had been
recognised in profit or loss at the end of
the contractual service period; and
MG A FIRRE WA RS R A KR
ARERAER &

inspecting underlying documentation for
journal entries relating to revenue and
deferred revenue which were considered
to meet specified risk-based criteria.
ERWATRTEWAFRBFESERR
TR e ABR 4D 82RO ME RS ©
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Impairment assessment of non-current assets in cash-

generating units of acquired businesses

Refer to note 13, 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies in note 3.1.

The Key Audit Matter
BREEE

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying values of the Group’s goodwill,
intangible assets and other property, plant and equipment of
the acquired businesses amounted to HK$743,544,000,
HK$609,859,000 and HK$364,090,000, respectively, which in total
represented 33% of the Group’s total assets.
RZBZ=F=A=+—H *&EENHE BFEENREK
BEBNEMDE  BFE MRENRBEED B R743,544,0008
JT ~ 609,859,000 7% 7T K& 364,090,000 7T * AFHEASBEER
BEH33% °

Management performs impairment assessments annually for cash-
generating units (“CGUs”) of the acquired businesses to which
goodwill has been allocated. In addition, impairment assessments
are performed for CGUs of the acquired businesses to which
intangible assets with finite useful lives and other property, plant and
equipment have been allocated if there is any indication of
impairment.
EREBFHEEASIERENRKBERReEFEM((REE
B ) EITIRERE o IO MBERDRETR - HEESE
BEABREBFRNEBIZEEKEMPE - WFE MR EOHKE
¥BREELEMN - MEETREG -

In performing impairment assessments, management determines
the recoverable amounts of the smallest CGUs of acquired business
to which the goodwill has been allocated; and compares the
carrying amount of each of the identifiable CGU with its value in use
based on discounted cash flow forecasts to determine if any
impairment loss should be recognised. Based on the impairment
assessments, impairment loss of HK$7,481,000 on goodwill was
recognised for the year.

REITREN R BEREETD D REAENREEEE &/ NR
CEEEMHITKREEE  URESEBEA#HIBEeEEEMHRE
EEEEZERRESRBANCREBEETLR  UEERERE
WREMBEEE - RERETG FABEIBEREEE
7,481,000 7T °
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
RMWESTNMEEZSEE

Our audit procedures to assess impairment of
non-current assets in CGUs of acquired
businesses included the following:

BN EARF R AHBEEBREELE
UHERBEERE  SIFMTEE -

° evaluating the management’s assessment
of impairment indicators, appropriateness
of identification of CGUs of the acquired
businesses and the allocation of goodwill,
intangible assets and other property, plant
and equipment to each CGU,;

. S EEENNERENR EERWE
%%fﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁuﬁﬁﬂ mEEER
EMYE BELREEBEIEEEREES
BERBEE

° with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, assessing the valuation
methodology and discount rates applied in
the discounted cash flow forecasts on a
sample basis;

. FEF A EB L EE K 1 B T B 45T
HALER IR € R TR R P A eV (B)E R L3R
pag

° challenging and evaluating the assumptions
adopted in the preparation of discounted
cash flow forecasts on which the value in
use calculations were based, including
future growth rates for revenue and
operating costs, with reference to our
understanding of the businesses, historical
trends and future business plans;

. SBERMEET - BEBE RRREBR
B TR BERMEEEECBEBE
P 6 5 19 BE 3R 3R & 07 78RN B BT R A B9 1R
#® o BREANRRIGRE R EERA
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The Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

The preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts involves
estimating future cash flows, particularly the underlying assumptions
relating to growth rates of revenue and operating costs; and
discount rates which are inherently uncertain.

MBI MIDAS R RRIRER - LEZSRIEARIE
REREBENANEBEBZARNE EEGTHABEMERBIRE -

We identified the assessment of impairment of non-current assets in
CGUs of the acquired businesses as a key audit matter because
the impairment assessments prepared by management are complex
and involve significant degree of management judgement in
forecasting future cash flows and estimating value in use of the
relevant CGUs of the acquired businesses which are inherently
uncertain and may be subject to management bias.

BB EKEESReEEEMNIERBEENRENGEEE
BREA TR DEEEEREBENGHRBEMR  WEFRBIR
REEREMAREEXBEEReEFEMNERBER IR
REEREHE  BAE FARETHBEMETHEERERZ
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
RN FSNMAEEZEE

comparing the revenue and operating
costs included in prior year’s discounted
cash flow forecasts with the current
year’s performance in order to assess
the reasonableness of prior year’s
forecasts and making enquiries of
management as to the reasons for any
significant variation identified;

BT FEAIRE € RIAPE AU
AREEKRRNERFERETHE
PAST & @ 1 5 2 T ORI 60 & 12 1% 30 E 28 7
HAEREANETINEEAEEBIEHS
3

performing sensitivity analyses of key
assumptions adopted in the discounted
cash flow forecasts and assessing the
impact of changes in these assumptions
on the conclusions reached in the
impairment assessments and whether
there were any indicators of
management bias; and

YRR MIDB ATERA = ERFHETT
BUREDT - WA h 2 F R F e ER
BRfEEENERTENTEARER
FEEEEBRENEATR &

assessing the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in
respect of the impairment assessments
with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.
2RAGGAERRE T RS M B
R MORER A RTEEIE
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor's Report
B Az BN S

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ho Wai Ming.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 June 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-ZT-_=F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& L 4177)
2023 2022
—=_= k== =
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET AT
REVENUE WA 5 3,875,377 2,919,500
Other net income and gains Hilg A R E%8 6 77,098 46,245
Cost of inventories and consumables FE REMKA (552,953) (349,603)
Registered practitioner expenses e AR (974,511) (655,852)
Employee benefit expenses EERAFZ (1,086,512) (728,631)
Marketing and advertising expenses TIgHERESRX (172,715) (139,383)
Rental and related expenses e RIEERX (77,743) (61,066)
Depreciation-right-of-use assets TE—(FRAREE (351,764) (264,955)
Depreciation-owned property, plant WE—BEVE  BENMKE
and equipment (137,204) (96,031)
Amortisation of intangible assets A (97,767) (71,379)
Charitable donations ERERE (3,660) (297)
Finance costs B T5 PR AR 7 (63,636) (48,907)
Credit card expenses FERARAX (77,502) (64,922)
Administrative and other expenses TR R EMFASE 8 (232,647) (162,640)
Share of profits less losses of joint ventures b & &1 2 % 8 E 18 10,705 (1,821)
Share of profits less losses of associates DG E R EE TR EE 1,623 1,153
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBE AT R 8 136,189 321,411
Income tax g% 11(a) (29,162) (50,908)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 107,027 270,503
Attributable to: AN B IR ¢
Equity shareholders of the Company RN ERERRAR R 69,654 197,501
Non-controlling interests FEIT AR RE RS 37,373 73,002
107,027 270,503
HK cents HK cents
AL I
EARNINGS PER SHARE SRAER 12
Attributable to equity shareholders R BRI R IEG
of the Company
Basic AR 5.9 17.1
Diluted s 5.9 16.8

The notes on pages 117 to 265 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note

29(0).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-ZT-_=F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& L 4177)

2023 2022
—E=-= k== =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET AT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRER 107,027 270,503
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREMZEmKE
FOR THE YEAR
ltem that may be reclassified HEgrnEFoEs
subsequently to profit or loss: BmmIEE -
Exchange differences on translation of BREBAFINTE AR
financial statements of subsidiaries B TSR A BE 5 =58
outside Hong Kong, net of HK$nil tax HBRZT AL IE 1,229 (1,057)
ltem that will not be reclassified to BrEFE DY BEENEE -
profit or loss:
Fair value loss on financial assets WAFEF AR E TR
at fair value through other WEmEENDTE
comprehensive income, net of HKS$nil tax B8 - BT B CHIE (7,807) -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRAZHEKREHE
FOR THE YEAR 100,449 269,446
Attributable to: AT S IEREA
Equity shareholders of the Company RRFRERRR 63,076 196,444
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR 37,373 73,002
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREEWFLEE
FOR THE YEAR 100,449 269,446
The notes on pages 117 to 265 form part of these financial statements. FENMTEFE265 B MMM F B MERH —F D °
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Are MR ILR

At31 March 2023 R-Z-_=%=A=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& L 4177)
2023 2022
—=_= k== =
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Fd 5 F#&T FHTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME -~ R NRE 13 1,586,655 1,193,316
Investment properties AW 13 199,300 197,100
Goodwiill [EES 14 743,544 709,073
Intangible assets B EE 15 662,424 691,937
Interest in joint ventures REeEbENER 16 45,986 48,381
Interest in associates RN e 17 263,934 1,153
Rental and other deposits HekEMES 20 115,130 104,436
Prepayments and other receivables TEATFRIE K2 EoAth e W R IE 20 281,157 211,961
Financial assets at fair value through AT EFFAEMEE R R
other comprehensive income TREE 21(a) 10,419 14,588
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABZENEREE
profit or loss 21(b) 124,195 142,054
Deferred tax assets FEEFRIBEE 27(b) 55,974 30,981
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 4,088,718 3,344,980
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories Ve 18 86,891 101,098
Trade receivables B 5 ElIE 19 211,886 155,493
Prepayments, deposits and other TETFRIE ~ e REM BRI
receivables 20 242,058 214,568
Deferred costs PRIERK AR 5 124,752 142,805
Financial assets at fair value through EBAFEFABESNEREE
profit or loss 21(b) 15,981 1,839
Current tax recoverable AU 3] BN AR 18 27(a) 32,185 27,597
Time deposits with original maturity over [RE|8] B 88 =18 A 8 F &R
3 months 22 1,000 2,000
Cash and cash equivalents HeRRESZEY 22 709,859 870,228
Total current assets MEEERE 1,424,612 1,515,628
CURRENT LIABILITIES ik =R
Trade payables 2 S RENKIA 23 70,093 75,201
Other payables and accruals Hib e RIBEREER 24 549,115 239,648
Bank borrowings RITIER 25 101,348 -
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 299,039 318,716
Deferred revenue PEIEUA 26 596,247 656,067
Current tax payable FESBNEATR I8 27(a) 59,752 73,799
Total current liabilities B A BT 1,675,594 1,363,431
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS HiE(&1&) &BEZ% (250,982) 152,197
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHAERARBEE
LIABILITIES 3,837,736 3,497 177
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e FBILR

At31 March 2023 R-Z-_=%=A=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& L 4177)
2023 2022
—E_-= T —F
Notes HK$’°000 HK$’000
B 5E TET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRERE 27(p) 103,233 105,249
Lease liabilities HERE 28 514,089 386,686
Other payables H e 3008 24 212,675 405,205
Bank borrowings RITIER 25 387,660 -
Provision for reinstatement costs EEKAEE 24 19,002 13,772
Convertible bonds AR ES 32 230,132 235,709
Total non-current liabilities SERBAGAERE 1,466,791 1,146,621
NET ASSETS BEEFH 2,370,945 2,350,556
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARGHE
Share capital A& AN 29(c) 12 12
Reserves Ea 1,854,472 1,881,242
Total equity attributable to equity AARERRREGERERHE
shareholders of the Company 1,854,484 1,881,254
Non-controlling interests IR ER 516,461 469,302
TOTAL EQUITY AR 2,370,945 2,350,556

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23

June 2023.

Lu Lyn Wade Leslie
EEE
Director
BE

The notes on pages 117 to 265 form part of these financial statements.
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Lee Heung Wing
EAEE
Director
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Consolidajed Statement of Changes in Equity
SOEREHE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-ZT-_=F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& IT317)

1ol 21 5o-fmA-E SURRY A - b [ < opsy  mSB umME WM 1E7
Changes in equity for 2022: CECCFRERE.
Profit for the year FRgH - - - - - - - - 197,501 197,501 73,002 270,603
Other comprehensive income Efp2ENE - - - - (1,057) - - - - (1,057) - (1,057)
Tod compretensie ncome A - - - - [1057) - - ] R 2048
Issuance of shares Upon exercise of share options TR BREREARA 20 - 4401 (10499 - - - - - - 33,608 - 33,698
Issuance of shares for the Co-ownership Scheme ~ SH4RERASBIZARA 2() B 1591 - - - - - - - 16918 - 16916
Issuance of shares Upon exercise of warrants AEAREEREIRG %) - 283,149 - - - [1,749) - - - 281400 - 281400
Otherssuance ofshares AfpERS 290 1 480,760 - - - - - - - 480761 - 430761
Acqistion of subsidiaries WEHEAF ) - AV - - - - - (165,273) - (158,146) 86,625 (71,521)
Disposal of partal nterests i subsicaries LENBARSMER - - - - - - - - (16,269 (16,269) 2269 6,000
Recognion of equity-setled share-based B EREEINENA
compensation: Share option RS : R - - 2042 - - - - - - 20426 - 20426
Recogniton of shere-based payment for shares of -~ BAA FHE R SAMBAR
subsidiaries granted to non-controling interests AR BRRHR - - 3963 - - - - - - 3963 329 1262
Conversion o convertle bonds BRTARES 290) - 19,000 - - - [4121) - - - 14813 - 14873
Aoquisiion ofpartel nres's 1 subsiaries YERELAHAER - - - - - - - - 1140 11400 (21948 (16546)
Dividends peid to non-contrling nrests IR SERERORE - - - - - - - - - - 40,988 40,988
Dhidend decied BERRE ) - - - - - - - - gy e - %
At31 March 2022 and 1 Aprl 2022 RE-F=A=+-Ak

S 21 = 12 1983326 45429 20 (1511 70,667 - (375,943 159,254 1881254 469,302 2,350,556
Changes in equity for 2023: CECCERERE.
Prot forthe year ERET - - - - = = = = 69,654 69,654 31313 for.021
Other comprehensiv income Et2mEhE - - = = 129 = (7807) = = (6,578) = (6578)
Tote comprehensive ncome 2ENEEE - - - - 1,229 - (7,807 - 69,654 63,076 31378 100,449
Issuance of shares upon exercise of share options TR BREREARA 20 - 1% 9 - - - - - - 105 - 105
Issuance of shares Upon exercise of waranis RAREREEARE %) 4 8400 = = = = o o @ 8400 - 8400
Aoqistion of subsidaries Pé il - - - o o = = 29,703) o (29,709) 33,869 4,166
Disposelof partl nerests i subsicaries HENBATHARR - = = = o = = = (10,085) (10,085) 2860 16,775
Recogriton of equiy-setted share-based B EREENRB
compensafon: Share opton HRMe : BRE - - 55,854 - - = @ o o 55854 - 55,854
Recogriton of shere-based payment for shares of T kg RHIBAT
subsidaes granted fonon-controling nerests  RAAMAEHAERHE - - 3963 - - - - - - 3963 329 1262
Conversion of convetbl bonds BUTARES 20 - 21,449 - o - (4:345) - @ - 1,14 - 17,104
Acquiston of partl inerests i subsicaries HEHEL AR 20 - 4393 - - - - - - (36M1) 8 (182 -
Contriouton to non-wholly owned subsidiary MR ENBAAE - - - - - - - - - - 9,000 9,00
Changein consderation payablearsng fomthe AR SRR ABRAELY
put optons granted tonon-contoling nterests - AT ESE - - - - - - - (18,262) o (18,262 o (18.262)
Dividends peid to non-contrllng nfrests THTERERNRE - - - - - - - - - - (62460) 62,460)
Dividend declared BERRE 2b) o = o o o O - - (118,004) (118,004 - (118,004
At31 March 2023 R-B-ZEZfzt-R 2 2010 105217 2 (282) 66,322 (e0n (428908 9208 1854484 516461 2370945
* Amount less than HK$1,000 * S EEER 1,000 7T

The notes on pages 117 to 265 form part of these financial statements. F17TEF 265 AN EHEA L ST HIRTH—
o o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
/\‘/\ Eﬁ/\/ ;ﬂtb%%%

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-ZT-_=F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& L 4177)

2023 2022
—E=-= T —F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Fd 5 FExT FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KT
Profit before tax BB BE T 136,189 321,411
Adjustments for: FEE
Interest on bank borrowings RITEZFE 7 14,152 3,399
Interest on convertible bonds AR EHFILE 7 18,604 19,173
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEF L 7 16,569 14,948
Imputed interest expenses on FERREZ HEFLE
consideration payables Fx 7 14,311 11,387
Bank interest income RITFLBUA 6 (3,418) (954)
Other interest income H R B U A 6 (1,108) (410)
Depreciation e 8 488,968 360,986
Impairment loss on goodwill B EEE 6 7,481 -
Impairment loss on other receivables H b U R IE R B E 1 8 - 3,792
Amortisation of intangible assets B 8 97,767 71,379
Share of profits less losses of GG s N R EE
joint ventures (10,705) 1,821
Share of profits less loss of associates 2554 A % FIFE 12 (1,623) (1,183)
Equity-settled share-based payment UHESEE AR BER 2
expenses MEAX 8 63,116 27,688
Gain on disposals and write-off o R EE 2 - RS R
of property, plant and equipment H S 6 (3,636) (19,115)
Unrealised and realised losses on BRATEFABRNEREE
financial assets at fair value HIREIR LB HR
through profit or loss, net 183 6 19,093 11,565
Fair value gain on investment REMEN RN THER S
properties 6 (2,200) (10,800)
Foreign exchange differences YN Z= 5B 5,825 (4,664)
859,385 810,453
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEERL, () 19,974 (45,191)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables & 5 fEU R IE (#8:40), 5> (36,321) 51,225
Increase in prepayments, deposits and  FERTFRIE ~ 14 R EH AL FEL
other receivables FRIEIE AN (43,534) (84,424)
Decrease/(increase) in deferred costs B AR A, (5 ) 18,053 (79,623)
Decrease in trade payables B 5 A RER (14,239) (342)
Decrease in other payables and H bR M BT E A
accruals D (52,709) (67,561)
(Decrease)/increase in deferred revenue  JEIEUA GRi2>),/ 10 (59,820) 91,144
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-ZT-_=F=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& L 4177)

2023 2022
—=_= k== =
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Fd 5 FExT FAT
Cash generated from operations REEANRS 690,789 675,681
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BERBEAFER (82,689) (65,029)
Tax paid outside Hong Kong B EBEINGIE (2,822) (2,293)
Net cash generated from operating KL EEARIR G R
activities 605,278 608,359
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETH
Bank interest received BUERTTFI B 3,418 954
Payments for purchases of financial BEERATEFAERD
assets at fair value through profit CREEMNTR
or loss (14,066) (568,352)
Payments for purchases of financial BERATEF AR MEE
assets at fair value through other R & a8 ERT K
comprehensive income (3,638) (14,588)
Contribution to an unlisted equity MO EAEAFEFABEN
investment classified as financial assets & @& E M FE_E IR
at fair value through profit or loss BEEE (1,310) (1,710)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWME - BEMEREDN
plant and equipment FriS /1A 12,376 43,560
Other interest received BURE M F B 1,108 410
Dividend received from a joint venture BER—HEERENRE 13,100 3,002
Acquisitions of businesses, net B 75 558 33 (42,109) (286,947)
Prepayments for business acquisitions % 7 Us B Fa 1~ 7% (20,000) -
Investment in an associate R—EBE R RRIEE (7) -
Loan to an associate m—fEHE R RIER (261,151) -
Decrease in time deposits REEAABB=EAK
with original maturity over 3 months T BF R 1,000 2,751
Payments for purchases of property, BEYE  BELRE
plant and equipment IR (411,012) (260,269)
Payments for purchase of BEELEEMNTR
intangible assets (1,480) -
Net cash used in investing activities BEEHARE FHE (7283,771) (571,189)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE—-Z—

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (///</7§7E§//T )

=F=A=t—HIFE

2023 2022
—=_= k== =
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FHTT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RESEE
Interest paid on bank borrowings BAHRITIE ST E 22(p) (13,142) (3,399
Interest paid on convertible bonds B AR EH TS 22(b) (1,441) (5,850)
Capital element of lease rentals paid Eﬁﬁffﬂ%ﬁ’]éﬁ% 152 22(b) (350,782) (267,691)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENBEEESHF S 22(b) (16,569) (14 948)
Proceeds from new bank borrowings I RITE RS RIE 22(b) 494,334
Repayment of bank borrowings 15 BIRTER 22(b) (6,336) (287,348)
Proceeds from exercise of warrants TERRREFNE A 8,400 281,400
Acquisition of partial interests in Hﬂl,ﬁﬁ MIB A RIS H s
subsidiaries - (16,546)
Proceeds from disposal of partial HE M E /“ﬂ%[(’;ﬂéé = HY
interests in subsidiaries FT15 70 16,775 6,000
Dividend paid R A% B 29(b) (118,004) (271,956)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ,ﬂ%ﬁ%iﬂ A% #E 2 RS (62,460) (49,988)
Proceeds from issuance of shares BTN B AT IS I8 105 530,374
Contribution to a subsidiary by FEFE RS I B A BT R
non-controlling interests 9,000 -
Net cash used in financing activities mE AT AR SRR (40,120) (99,952)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRASEEYRDEH
CASH EQUIVALENTS (158,613) (62,782)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April MMA—HHIRE RIRESEED 870,228 931,064
Effect of changes in foreign SN TE R B ) R
exchange rates (1,756) 1,946
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS =ZA=+—HHEER
AT 31 MARCH ReEEY 22(a) 709,859 870,228

The notes on pages 117 to 265 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the

B 75 R B

2.1

il

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office of the
Company is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal
place of business of the Company is located at L50, Langham
Place Office Tower, 8 Argyle Street, Mong Kok, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the provision of medical and healthcare
services.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group.

° Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, plant and equipment:
Proceeds before intended use

° Amendments to HKAS 37, Provision, Contingent liabilities
and contingents assets: onerous contracts — costs of
fulfilling a contract

° Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business Combinations
Reference to the Conceptual framework

o Annual improvement to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

None of these developments have had a material effect on how
the Group’s results and financial position for the current and prior
periods have been prepared or presented. The Group has not
applied any new standard or interpretation this is not yet effective
for the current accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 2.2 MBHmREEEE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2023 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries and the
Group’s interest in joint ventures and associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise stated
in the accounting policies.

Notwithstanding the net current liabilities of HK$250,982,000 as
at 31 March 2023, the Group’s consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis because the
directors are of the opinion that the Group would have adequate
funds to meet its obligations, as and when they fall due, having
regard to the following:

(@ the Group is expected to generate positive operating cash
flows in connection with its principal activities; and

(o)  deferred revenue of approximately HK$596 million as at 31
March 2023 mainly relates to non-refundable prepaid
packages for which settlement (i.e. recognised as revenue)
is expected within one year without material cash outflow.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 3.2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXSTBERME

POLICIES
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EAREHEEME @

POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
or where appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXREHEEME @

POLICIES (continued)
Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share control
of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

Interest in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any
excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes purchase
price, other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
investment and any direct investment into the associate or joint
venture that forms part of the Group’s equity investment.
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment. At each reporting
date, the Group assesses whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment is impaired. Any acquisition-date excess over
cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items
of the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EAREHEEME @

POLICIES (continued)
Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For this
purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate or the joint venture (after applying the
ECL (as defined below) model to such long term interests where
applicable).

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associate and joint venture are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in that investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence or joint control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
associates and joint ventures are stated at cost less impairment
losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXREHEEME @

POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred (except those segregated
from business combinations) is measured at the acquisition date
fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the sellers of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date.

If the business acquisition is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred or received by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a
financial instrument and within the scope of HKFRS 9 is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXREHEEME @

POLICIES (continued)
Business acquisitions and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill at the
end of each financial year. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business acquisition is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units
or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.

Other investments in debt and equity securities
and unlisted funds

The Group’s policies for investments in debt securities and
unlisted equity securities and unlisted funds, other than
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and an associate, are
set out below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXREHEEME @

POLICIES (continued)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
and unlisted funds (Continued)

Investments in debt securities, unlisted equity securities and
unlisted funds are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investment. The investments
are initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable transaction
costs, except for those investments measured at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) for which transaction costs are
recognised directly in profit or loss. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their
classifications.

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified into one
of the following measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection of
contractual cash flows which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest income from the investment
is calculated using the effective interest method.

—  fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)
(recycling), if the contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both the collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition in profit or
loss of expected credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and foreign exchange
gains and losses. When the investment is derecognised, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.

—  FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes
in the fair value of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXREHEEME @

POLICIES (continued)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
and unlisted funds (Continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL unless
the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and on
initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an
irrevocable election to designate the investment at FVOCI (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be
made if the investment meets the definition of equity from the
issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained
profits. It is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an
equity investment, irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL
or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets arising
from leases of underlying property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1 EXEEERE @)

M BERRBURTE @

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

FEDNRAGHAIERFHNERETE
HmE - BEAXB(BREREEE)S

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment (including

right-of-use assets) to its residual value over its estimated useful

B MRAMEERREREE - BLULATE

life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as AREZFERINT

follows:

Properties leased for own use Over the lease term HEEERNYE MHEFEH

Building held for own use Over the shorter of the lease FEE RN HEFHEEER

situated on leasehold land term and their estimated HELHmmESF A[ s A £F B

useful lives (AR E AE)

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease HEYHERE HEFHZ25%
terms and 25% (AR EH %)

Furniture and fixtures 10-25% RAMEE 10-25%

Operation equipment 10-20% LERE 10-20%

Office equipment 15-20% LN 15-20%

Computers 20% FHE 20%

Motor vehicles 20% =2 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EAREHEEME @

POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being constructed
or developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still
in the course of construction or development at the end of the
reporting period and their fair value cannot be reliably measured
at that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or
from the retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 3.1 section
“Revenue recognition”.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities is capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources and
the intention to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct labour, and an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing costs, where
applicable. Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business acquisition is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are
subsequently amortised over the assets’ estimated useful lives
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXREHEEME @

POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of an
intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation of intangible assets
with finite useful lives as set out below.

The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Customer lists and relationships 1010 50%
Licence 20%

Club memberships and school debentures Indefinite
Trademark 510 10%
IT applications platform 14.3%
Others 12.5%

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. For an intangible asset with an indefinite
useful life, the recoverable amount is estimated annually, whether
or not there is any indication of impairment.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right to
direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and
leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
The lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, and
any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost
of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
except for right-of-use assets that meet the definition of
investment property are carried at fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits is
accounted for separately from the right-of-use assets in
accordance with the accounting policy applicable to
investments in debt securities carried at amortised cost (see
note 3.1 section “Other investments in debt and equity
securities and unlisted funds”). Any difference between the
initial fair value and the nominal value of the deposits is
accounted for as additional lease payments made and is
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a
lease that is not originally provided for in the lease contract
(“lease modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured
based on the revised lease payments and lease term using
a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification. The only exceptions are rent concessions that
occurred as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and met the conditions set out in paragraph 468
of HKFRS 16, Leases. In such cases, the Group has taken
advantage of the practical expedient not to assess whether
the rent concessions are lease modifications, and
recognised the change in consideration as negative variable
lease payment in profit or loss in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the rent concessions
occurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

As a lessee (Continued)

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the
current portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined as
the present value of contractual payments that are due to
be settled within twelve months after the reporting period.

For sale and leaseback transactions, the Group considers
whether the initial transfer of the underlying asset to the
buyer-lessor is a sale. The Group applies HKFRS 15 to
determine whether a sale has taken place.

When the transfer to buyer-lessor is a sale, the Group
derecognises the underlying asset and applies the lessee
accounting model to the leaseback — the Group measures
the right-of-use asset at the retained portion of the previous
carrying amount (i.e. at cost), and recognises only the
amount of any gain or loss related to the rights transferred
to the lessor.

When the transfer to buyer-lessor is not a sale, the Group
continues to recognise the underlying asset, and
recognises a financial liability for any amount received from
the buyer-lessor.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this
is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. The rental income from operating leases
is recognised in accordance with accounting policy as
described in note 3.1 section “Revenue recognition”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXREHEEME @

POLICIES (Continued)
Credit loss and impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit loss
(“ECLs”) on the financial assets measured at amortised cost,
including time deposits, cash and cash equivalents and trade
and other receivables.

Financial assets measured at fair value are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the following
discount rates where the effect of discounting is material:

— trade and other receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an approximation
thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest rate;
and

— lease receivables: discount rate used in the measurement
of the lease receivable.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that is available without undue cost
or effort. This includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EAREHEEME @

POLICIES (continued)

Credit loss and impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to
result from possible default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result
from all possible default events over the expected lives of
the items to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and lease receivables are
always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors or based on the
probabilities of default with reference to available market
information. The estimation also includes an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXREHEEME @

POLICIES (continued)

Credit loss and impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any
is held); or (i) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation
to the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EAREHEEME @

POLICIES (continued)

Credit loss and impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is performed on
either an individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes
in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition.
Any change in the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 3.1 section “Revenue recognition” is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e.
the gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a financial
asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXEHEEBME@

POLICIES (continued)

Credit loss and impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the
following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;
—  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or lease receivable
is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the
asset becomes 90 days past due or when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject
to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off
are recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EAREHEEME @

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises and is included in “other net
income and gains”.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXREHEEME @

POLICIES (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the effect of discounting is
material, the amount recognised for a provision is the present value
at the end of each reporting period of the future expenditure
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time
is included in profit or loss.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, a
separate asset is recognised for any expected reimbursement
that would be virtually certain. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of the provision.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXREHEEME @

POLICIES (continued)
Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

Trade receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component are initially measured at their transaction price. All
receivables are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method and including allowance for credit
losses as set out in note 3.1 section “Credit loss and impairment
of financial assets”.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy as set out in note 3.1 section “Credit
loss and impairment of financial assets”.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and other payables are
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy as set out in note
3.1 section “Borrowing costs”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXREHEEME @

POLICIES (continued)
Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be converted into ordinary shares at
the option of the holder, where a fixed number of shares are
issued for a fixed amount of cash or other financial assets, are
accounted for as compound financial instruments, i.e. they
contain both a liability component and an equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the convertible
bonds is measured at fair value based on the future interest and
principal payments, discounted at the prevailing market rate of
interest for similar non-convertible instruments. The equity
component is the difference between the initial fair value of the
convertible bonds as a whole and the initial fair value of the
liability component.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost.
Interest expense recognised in profit or loss on the liability
component is calculated using the effective interest method. The
equity component is not remeasured and is recognised in the
capital reserve until the bonds are converted.

If the bonds are converted, the capital reserve, together with the
carrying amount of the liability component at the time of
conversion, is transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EAREHEEME @

POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the
Group when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Macau are required
to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the central
pension schemes. The contributions are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension schemes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXREHEEME @

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment
Share option scheme

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as employee expenses with a corresponding increase
in share-based compensation reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial lattice model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the revision, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based compensation
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share-based compensation
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
share-based compensation reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is included in the amount recognised in share
capital or share premium for the shares issued) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EAREHEEME @

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment (Continued)
Share Award Scheme

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan (the “Share Award Scheme”), under which
the Group receives services from employees as consideration for
equity instruments (shares) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of the
shares is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
shares granted:

— including any market performance conditions;

— excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions; and

—  excluding the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of shares that are expected to vest. The total
expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of shares that are expected to vest
based on the non-market vesting conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXREHEEME @

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment (Continued)
Share awards given by the Group’s subsidiaries

Shares in subsidiaries of the Group are awarded to certain registered
practitioners in respect of their future services for the Group. The fair
value of such shares is recognised as registered practitioner
expenses with a corresponding increase in either the share-based
compensation reserve or non-controlling interests within equity,
depending on such shares awarded are attributable to the Group or
the non-controlling shareholders of the subsidiaries.

The fair value of such share awards is spread over the expected
vesting period, which is consistent with the expected service period
of these registered practitioners. The expected service period is
reviewed annually and the expense charged to profit or loss is
adjusted prospectively from the date of change of the expected
service period.

Co-ownership scheme

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan under which the invited employees who
accepted the scheme offer are required to purchase shares
through an independent trust or transfer the shares previously
owned by the employees to the trust (“Co-ownership scheme”),
and such purchased and transferred shares would be kept in the
independent trust until the end of the vesting period. Upon the
end of the vesting period, the Group would grant shares to the
invited employees based on the rules as stated in the Co-
ownership scheme.

The fair value of shares granted to employees (“Award Shares”) is
recognised as employee expenses with a corresponding increase
in share-based compensation reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the Award Shares were granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the Award Shares, the total estimated fair value of the Award
Shares is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the Award Shares will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EAREHEEME @

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment (Continued)
Co-ownership scheme (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of Award Shares that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the revision, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based compensation
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of Award Shares that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve). The equity amount is recognised in the
share-based compensation reserve until either the Award Share
is granted through new issuance and allotment of shares (when it
is included in the amount recognised in share capital or share
premium for the shares issued) or the Award Share is settled by
share to be acquired by the Group from market (when it is
recycled to retained profits, for the difference between the grant
date fair value and the Group’s costs to acquire such shares, if
any).

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of each reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the end
of each of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business acquisition and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
acquisition and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and an
associate, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXETHBERBE @

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from
the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use by others
of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary course of the
Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is
transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to use the
asset, at the amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(@)

Most of the services are sold on a prepaid basis. The
service period of a prepaid package is generally one year.

Generally there are multiple components within the
package, the deferred revenue of each component is an
appropriate proportion of the total transaction price under
the contract, allocated between all the goods and services
promised under the contract on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

Deferred revenue is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue, such deferred revenue is regarded as contract
liability in accordance with HKFRS 15.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be
recognised.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised when
the services have been rendered to customers.

The Group’s customers may not utilise all of their
contracted rights within the service period. Such unutilised
services are referred to as breakage. An expected
breakage amount is determined by historical experience
and is recognised as revenue in proportion to the pattern of
services utilised by the customers.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(@

(Continued)

Any residual deferred revenue at the end of the service
period, after the effect of previously recognised expected
breakage amount, is fully recognised in profit or loss.

Services which are not sold on a prepaid basis is
recognised in full when the services have been rendered to
customers.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
customer takes possession of and accepts the products.

Commission income and marketing service income are
recognised when the relevant services are rendered.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established. Dividend from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Government grants are recognised in the statement of
financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXREHEEME @

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$”), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines its
own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities
in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of each reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries outside Hong
Kong are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the average exchange rates
for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of an operation outside
Hong Kong and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated
as assets and liabilities of that operation and translated at the
closing rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 EXREHEEME @

POLICIES (continued)
Deferred costs

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer,
which represent sales commissions and bonuses paid or payable
to the staff or third party agents, are capitalised as deferred costs
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Such costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the deferred
revenue to which they relate is recognised as revenue.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiy  is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

U

(i)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group.

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity).

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.1

3.2

EC Healthcare

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

Estimation uncertainty

Notes 30 and 31 contain information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to fair value of share awards and share
options granted. Other key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below.

154

3.1

3.2

ERETHEBE @

pi)

ok

PR &

REDHRIFEMBRRMESNE 2 EE
BNEE  DRANAEEZGREBRR
IR E ) B &R M AF 14 R 3 1 E B A
AEESSTREEERHENTBERD
ARl 2R o

AP BERNE - ENEZNEEDHD
SAME BRI MABRULE
FEEBEERMRGEE - FETHFMEES -
BEPERHKERE - »IHERIIRERER
AN REERBEAESF T EAEAL
AERIG » @RI NEENKE D BIFTA
WA EREBD 64T - RIAI B BFRTE -

BEREFHHE R A

ETRERSR

MiFE30 M 31 H A BB KAL) 2B M
BEAFENBRRLERREZRZER
TS St B R 2 B R O R R S B A R ET A
BERZNEIERREANEBERRE
ZEBRAFET —EVRFEANEE
ke ERmEERNERNFARNERER -

Annual Report 2022/23



Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3.2 EREFHE R @

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Business acquisitions

For the business acquisitions undertaken by the Group, the Group
first segregates the amount related to transactions other than
business acquisition and then allocates the costs of the acquisition
to the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed based on their
estimated fair value on the date of acquisition. This process is
commonly referred to as the purchase price allocation. As part of
the purchase price allocation, the Group is required to determine the
fair value of any identifiable intangible assets acquired. The
determination of the fair value of the intangible assets acquired
involves certain judgement and estimates. These judgements can
include, but are not limited to, the cash flows that the intangible
assets is expected to generate in the future.

The fair values of the identifiable intangible assets were determined
by the Group with inputs from the independent valuers using mainly
the discounted cash flow method of the income approach. Future
cash flows are predominantly based on the historical pricing and
expense levels, taking into consideration the relevant market size
and growth factors, and involves making a number of assumptions
including growth rates. The resulting cash flows are then discounted
at a rate reflecting specific risks related to the relevant operation.

A change in the amount allocated to identifiable intangible assets
would have an offsetting effect on the amount of goodwill
recognised from the acquisition and would change the amount of
amortisation expense recognised related to those identifiable
intangible assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3.2 EREFHE R @

AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Revenue

Revenue recognition on provision of certain services is dependent
on the estimation of the utilisation pattern of each type of
services. Based on the Group’s historical experience, the Group
makes estimates of an expected amount of breakage. Actual
utilisation may be higher or lower than those estimated at the end
of each reporting period, which would affect the revenue and
profit recognised in future years.

Impairment of assets

The Group performs annual impairment test on goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, and also performs
impairment assessment on the carrying amounts of other assets
when indication of impairment is identified to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. Management assesses
the differences between the carrying amount and recoverable
amount and makes provision for impairment loss. Any change in the
assumptions adopted in calculating the recoverable amount would
increase or decrease the provision for impairment loss and affect the
Group’s profit or loss and financial position.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purpose, the Group is organised into business
units based on their services and products. Accordingly, the
Group has three reporting segments as follows:

(@ Medical,

(b)  Aesthetic medical and beauty and wellness; and

(c) Veterinary and other.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

Medical segment represents all medical services (excluding
aesthetic medical services) and dental services. Aesthetic
medical and beauty and wellness segment represents aesthetic
medical, traditional beauty, haircare and ancillary wellness
services and sale of skincare, healthcare and beauty products.
Veterinary and other mainly represents multi-channel networking
and related services and veterinary services.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
management monitors the results attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and current
assets with the exception of investment properties, interest in
associates and joint ventures, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Segment liabilities include trade payables,
other payables and accruals, provision for reinstatement costs,
lease liabilities relating to properties leased for own use, deferred
revenue, current tax payable and deferred tax liabilities.

The segment revenue of the Group is based on the type of
services provided to the customers. Revenue and expenses are
allocated to the reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses incurred by
those segments or which otherwise arise from the depreciation
or amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The
adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with the
Group’s profit before tax except that bank interest income, other
interest income, dividend income from unlisted investment funds,
unrealised and realised gains/losses on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, net, fair value gain/loss on investment
properties, rental income from investment properties, share of
profits less losses of joint ventures and associates and head
office and other corporate expenses are excluded from such
measurement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

(Continued)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

A

4, RBREPHER @)

DHEE  BEERAE@

Aesthetic medical and

Medical beauty and wellness Veterinary and other Total
BERE REBBURAERELRE BRREM &t
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2022
ZECCE Bl CFC-F e “&-= “3-CF 5
HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thx ThL TET T TET Thr ThL
Reportable segment revenue THREHRA 2,547,354 1,688,958 1,101,896 1,091,204 244725 152,941 3,893,975 2,933,103
Less: Inter-segment revenue B PEERA (5,187) - - - (13,411) (13,60) (18,598) (13,609)
Revenue from external customers MIRFIA 2,542,167 1,688,958 1,101,896 1,091,204 231,314 139,338 3,875,317 2,919,500
Segment result PEES 72,196 202,816 114,657 106,603 20,190 26,383 207,043 335,802
Bank nterest income RIHERA 3418 954
Other interest income EABRA 1,108 40
Dividend income from Unlisted FrmREELN
investment funds LN b -
Unrealised and realised losses wLTEAERD
on financial assets at fair value SREENFERR
through proft or loss, net BEBFRTE (19,093) (11,565
Fair value gain on investment RENFLATEYS
properties 2,200 10,800
Rental income from investment REMERLUA
properties 4,708 5417
Share of profts less losses of AlhAEREER
joint ventures HEE 10,705 (1.821)
Share of profts less losses of associates S HEE A FRFIHER 1,628 1,153
Others 1) (75,867) (19,739
Consolicated profit before tax ARRAEH 136,189 321,411
Depreciation and amortisation for FRAEREH 377,553 241,875 172,184 174,650 36,998 15,840 586,735 432,365
the year
Impairment loss on goodwil BEREEE 7481 - - - - - 7,481 -
Impairment loss on other receivables R ft NG EER - - - 379 - - - 3792
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SR

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFTER @)
(Continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) PEEE - EEREE@W)

Aesthetic medical and

Medical beauty and wellness Veterinary and other Total
BRER ZERBURZAREERE BRRAM &t
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

- Skt -2 Bk

ZECCE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FhT TER i TH7T T T T

—3-—¢ [l —3-—i [ =

—<—— ——— -]—= —R——

Reportable segment assets THEITEE 3,135,484 2,610,624 1,154,718 1,547,459 563,313 297,410 4,853,515 4,455,493
Investment properties RENE 199,300 197,100
Interest in oint ventures REELENER 45,986 48,381
Interest in associates REERARER 263,934 1,153
Financial assets at fair value BATEHAEMZE

through other comprehensive AteHEE

income 10,419 14,588
Financial assets at fairvalue through R A T A B3¢0

profitor loss SRHEE 140,176 143,893
Consolidated total assets GRS 5513330 4860608
Addions to non-cunent segment  ERFEFRRHHTEE

assets during the year (excluding (PEEEREE)

husiness acquisitions) 395,215 186,980 218,132 97,347 10,980 861,296 624,327
Reportable segment liabilities TRELHEE 1,157,724 921,596 1,004,765 101,525 111,854 2,423,245 2,274,343
Bank borrowings FER 489,008 -
Convertible bonds maRES 230,132 235,709
Consolidated total liabities GREREES 3,142,385 2,510,052
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SR

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers and (i)
the Group’s investment properties, property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, goodwill and interest in joint ventures and
associates and non-current portion of prepayments (“specified
non-current assets”). The geographical location of customers is
based on the location at which the services were provided or the
goods delivered. The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on () the physical location of the asset, in
the case of investment properties and property, plant and
equipment, (i) the location of the operation to which they are
allocated, in the case of intangible assets and goodwill, and (iii) the
location of operations, in the case of interest in joint ventures and
associates and non-current portion of prepayments.

4,

g EER (#)

PEEE - EEREE@W)

TRENEBEATEENMIEMENER
()AL B 2K B I Ef % P e WA K (i) A< &=
MEEYE - WE BERRE BVE
E BEMRAZLERBEARMER
AR IENFIENIERE B ((FFEIFRE
BE] - TRHMIBAEERRERS
RN ERNUE - HEFRBDEEN
WENEERNEENERLE GLRED
KUAEME - BERREMS) - (i) EED
AENEEUE (B EERBEMS)
Ki)E2ME(RNEELEREERT
MR AR TBN RIBRSERE MO S ) ©

Information about geographical areas ERtwENER
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMEBEF YA BHEFRBEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E=-= S —E=-= T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET FHET THET
Hong Kong B 3,577,659 2,632,960 3,563,923 2,800,971
Macau SR Y 128,828 113,374 20,914 26,078
The PRC H 168,890 173,166 93,976 168,521
3,875,377 2,919,500 3,678,813 2,995,570
Information about major customers EBXEEFNER

Since no revenue derived from sales to a single customer of the
Group has individually accounted for over 10% of the Group’s
total revenue during each of the reporting periods presented, no
information about major customers in accordance with HKFRS 8,
Operating Segments, is presented.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

=+ 23
RS MY T
5. REVENUE 5. A
Revenue represents the value of services rendered and the net WARBRERENEEREEHE R
invoiced value of goods sold, excluding value added tax or other EREE (Tt MG ER S EMEER - WK
sales taxes and is after deduction of trade discounts. An analysis HBRERE ST o WA RBELELH DT
of revenue and deferred balance is as follows: LUNNE
2023 2022
—E_=F B
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ET FHT
Revenue A
Medical services B RIS 2,542,167 1,688,958
Aesthetic medical and beauty and ZERBEINERREERBE R
wellness services and related revenue MR A 1,101,896 1,091,204
Veterinary and other services BREE N HAth AR 7S 231,314 139,338
3,875,377 2,919,500
All of the above revenue is recognised in accordance with HKFRS LR BEWATIRIEE BV REERSE
15. 155 IR ©
Deferred balances B
The following table provides information about deferred liabilities TREINERZRFFFIAEMMEL A FE R
from contracts with customers and related deferred costs. RAIRIER AR E L o
2023 2022
—=2-= —E_—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FH&T
Deferred revenue (note 26) EEWA (I 5E26) (596,247) (656,067)
Deferred costs PEIERL AN 124,752 142,805
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SR

REVENUE (continued)
Deferred balances (Continued)

The deferred costs primarily relate to the incremental costs of
obtaining a contract with a customer, which represent sales
commissions and bonus paid or payable to the staff and third
party agents, and are recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position. Such costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which the deferred revenue to which they relate is
recognised as revenue.

All of the capitalised deferred costs are expected to be
recognised in profit or loss within one year.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the amount of such
incremental costs charged to profit or loss was HK$371,020,000
(2022: HK$308,283,000) and there was no impairment loss in
relation to the costs capitalised.

WA &)
IEAE & B8R (48)

BERATBEDEEFLENEERLE
BUEENRENEIRE=FRENHHE
e RIEAL) - WERA MR RFER -
B BARCA T S A B VIR FE MR A FERR B UK
ABHR AR S A FER

FEEERNMEREERANTBEHRER —F R
RIBERTER ©

REBEE-Z-_=ZF=ZA=+—HILLtFE R
BENBWEHEEEREANCEA
371,020,000/ 7T (== = —4F : 308,283,000
YETT) - W B EAME MR ARRERE

OTHER NET INCOME AND GAINS HA R K= FEEE
2023 2022
—E-=HF T
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
FHT FABT

Bank interest income ERITHBUA 3,418 954
Other Interest income E A B UA 1,108 410
Dividend income from unlisted FELEMIREE SR BIMA

investment funds 344 -
Unrealised and realised losses on BEAFEFAEBZSNSREERN

financial assets at fair value through REH R B EIBFE

profit or loss, net (19,093) (11,565)
Impairment loss on goodwill AR AR (7,481) -
Fair value gain on investment properties WEMENQNFERE 2,200 10,800
Rental income from investment properties &£ S UA 4,708 5,417
Gain on disposals and write-off of HERMEDE - BEL

property, plant and equipment BAEHIES 3,636 19,115
Government grants (note (i) BT 8 B (B & (1) 51,877 2,280
Others EHib 36,381 18,834

77,098 46,245
EC Healthcare 162 Annual Report 2022/23



Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

6. OTHER NET INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 6. HMWARWKZEFHE@®

Note: BIEE -
(i) Government grants for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 mainly i HE-_Z-_=FfR-FT--F=AF=+—H
include subsidy income received from the Government of the Hong IFFENBAHDEEBEE B BRAITE
Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR Government”) to BEFA(EASRRERND KB AREHX
subsidise the corporations/industries impacted by the COVID-19 COVID-19Z B EME TTEMMBNKA -
pandemic.
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BIEREA
2023 2022
—=_= =4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET AT
Interest on bank borrowings RITERFE 14,152 3,399
Interest on convertible bonds R e Yalls 18,604 19,173
Interest on lease liabilities HERERNE 16,569 14,948
Imputed interest expenses on consideration JE BRI HE R B
payables 14,311 11,387
63,636 48,907
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8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

BR Bt A 2 A
7R B R BATE R VIR (GHA) M

(crediting): TEBEEL :
2023 2022
—==-= T F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Staff costs (including directors’ ETIKA(BIEESEHM) ¢
emoluments):*
Salaries, wages, allowances, bonuses, e TE - EBL - T4
commissions and benefits in kind AeREMHR 1,168,450 845,741
Equity-settled share-based NEREE RN RER 2
payment expenses NENEE3 59,153 23,725
Pension scheme contributions RIRSFT BB
(defined contribution scheme) (REHRETED 62,216 36,750
1,289,819 906,216
Equity-settled share-based payment M FE 28 & S 5 AR R 4
expenses to registered practitioners ARG BERENAREAS
(excluding those included in staff costs) (FFABIAERIN) 3,963 3,963
Auditors’ remuneration* Z LR BN & 6,201 4,541
Depreciation e
— owned property, plant and equipment —BEWE - BEREXE 137,204 96,031
— right-of-use assets —EREEE 351,764 264,955
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#E 97,767 71,379
Impairment loss on goodwill* B REEE" 7,481 -
Impairment loss on other receivables* H At EUGRIB R B & 18 = 3,792
Foreign exchange differences, net* SNFE ZE REF R 3,639 898
Rental income from investment REWEMRS WA REE
properties less direct outgoings of % §5619,0007%8 7T
HK$619,000 (2022: HK$544,000) (ZZ =4 : 544,000 7T) (4,089) (4,873)
Utilities™ IKEE* 31,501 21,278
Legal and professional fees* FEREEER 6,502 9,732
Repairs and maintenance expenses* HENREER" 22,147 16,508
IT related and office expenses* BB SRE R AERE " 37,902 18,063
Laundry and cleaning expenses* B MOF R 9,857 7,437
Bank charges* BITEA" 8,033 3,903
Insurance expenses REgFT*
(excluding those recognised as financial (TBIEEREZRAFETA
assets at fair value through profit or loss)* EBiHFASREERY) 8,639 4,816
Supplies and consumables* FEM A ROEFRESR 8,937 10,515
Delivery and travelling* HE R ZEIR* 17,705 14,765
# Included in staff costs are employee benefit expenses of # 8 T AR TEE 818 FIF 2 1,086,512,000 7

HK$1,086,512,000 (2022: HK$728,631,000) and registered
practitioner expenses of HK$203,307,000 (2022: HK$177,585,000)
paid/payable to certain registered practitioners who are also employees

of the Group.

EC Healthcare

Included in administrative and other expenses.
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9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9.

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation are as follows:

Salaries,

allowances
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary
fees inkind bonuses

e BH
Bz RENAE 20
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
T TR T

Year ended 31 March 2023 BE-Z-=F

ESHM

RIEFE D a5 5 383(1) & KA a) (HFE
BENEER)BROIE 2O WENESH
BAEEB T

Retirement
scheme Share
contributions Sub-total options Total
&I
HE L5 ) FRE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiEn TiEn TiEn

ZAZT-HLEE
Executive directors HZZE
Tang Chi Fai HiE - 1,100 - 17 1,117 - 1,117
Lee Heung Wing Fmz - 3,984 - 18 4,002 8,018 12,020
Wong Chi Cheung £38 - 3,544 £ 18 3,562 721 4,289
Lu Lyn Wade Leslie BiE - 4,468 - 18 4,486 16,159 20,645
Wong Ka Ki Ada IZ% = 7815 - 18 7,833 18,231 26,064
- 20,911 - 89 21,000 43,135 64,135
Non-executive dlrectors HiEE
Luk Kun Shing Ben 32 - 112 - 6 118 - 118
Independent-non-executive directors - B 34/72 2
Ma Ching Nam A 240 - - - 240 - 240
Look Andrew EE 220 - - - 220 - 220
Lam Chi Hang Josekin (resigned 315 Sk
on 1 September 2022) NA-BE) 50 - - - 50 - 50
Au Tsun (@ppointed on BEW-Z-ZF
1 September 2022) NA-BREZH) 10 = = = 10 = 0
580 - - - 580 - 580
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9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (cContinued) 9. EEHM @

* Lee Gabriel resigned from the Group on 1 October 2021, and certain FTESN _ZE-_—F+A AR AEEE
share options previously granted to him were forfeited. Accordingly, B RARRTENE TOBEBRES UK -
HK$5,262,000 was recorded as a reduction of share-based payment o REE_T-_—_F=A=1+—HItHF
expenses during the year ended 31 March 2022. [E + 5,262,000 & ST A0 8% A ARR 1D A ETE A

A B o
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme Share

fees in kind bonuses  contributions Sub-total options Total

5 2 0N
g2 REDIE Bigka L[5 gt Bk st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TAL TAL Tin TR TATL TARL THAL

Year ended 31 March 2022 Bz-g-cE
ZAZt-BLEE

Executive directors HTEZ

Tang Chi Fai HiE - 1,117 - 17 1,134 - 1,134

Lee Heung Wing EE - 3,383 - 18 3,371 5870 9,241

Wong Chi Cheung R - 3,319 - 18 3,337 938 4,275

Lu Lyn Wade Leslie RiE

(appointed on 23 August 2021) (R=B=-F

NAZTZHEZT) - 2414 - 12 2,426 10,503 12,929
Wong Ka Ki Ada 5%
(appointed on 11 October 2021) (R=B=-%

TA+—REZA) - 3,618 - 9 3,627 7,066 10,693

Lee Gabriel 3EF

(resigned on 1 October 2021) (R=B=-F
TA-HER) - 3728 - 9 3,732 = 3732
- 17,544 - 88 17,627 24317 42,004

Non-executive directors FHTEE

Luk Kun Shing Ben EER - 118 - 6 124 - 124

Wong Steven Dasong TR

(resigned on 19 July 2021) (R=B=-
tAThAEHE) - - - - - - -
- 18 - 6 124 - 124

Independent-non-executive directors B #BTEE

Ma Ching Nam SiEt 240 - - - 240 - 240

Look Andrew 63 220 - - - 220 - 220

Lam Chi Hang Josekin AT 120 - - - 120 - 120

580 - - - 580 - 580

* Lee Gabiriel resigned from the Group on 1 October 2021, and certain FRER-_ZZ—F+A-AHRAEEE

share options previously granted to him here forfeited. Accordingly,

HK$5,262,000 was recorded as a reduction of share-based payment
expenses during the year ended 31 March 2022.

EC Healthcare
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10. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2022:
three) of the individuals are directors for the year ended 31 March
20283 and their emoluments are disclosed in note 9. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two (2022:
two) individuals for the year ended 31 March 2023, are as

follows:

Salaries, allowances and other benefits

10. REFMA L

¥ RRREMEYH R

BE

T =FZA=+—BItFE &
AEEFMALTR=R(ZZE_2F : =8)
ATHBES  HEMWRWTORE - BE=
E-=F=ZA=+—HIFE BIWAE
(Z2=—=

AT -

CER) ATEVEEAEER D B

2023 2022
e = =

—_——= —_—<

HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET TET

in kind 6,500 6,188
Performance related bonuses HRIBEENES 14,200 13,380
Equity-settled share-based payments AR EE AR ABER 7 AR - -
Pension scheme contributions (defined RIS FHEE R (R EHZEED

contribution schemes) 36 35

20,736 19,603

The emoluments of the two (2022: two) individuals with the
highest emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2023 are within

the following bands:

BHE-_Z-_=F-A=+—HItFE ¥
MSEEammE(CE-_—_F :WE) ALTH

D BT RIA T EE

2023 2022

—E_-= —E-_—F

HK$9,000,001 — HK$9,500,000 9,000,001 /7T — 9,500,000 7% 7T = 1
HK$9,500,001 — HK$10,000,000 9,500,001 7T — 10,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$10,000,001 — HK$10,500,000 10,000,001 7T — 10,500,000 7T = 1
HK$10,500,001 — HK$11,000,000 10,500,001 #7¢ — 11,000,000 7T 1 -
2 2
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11. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

1. HEBERANFEHR

EC Healthcare

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represents:

(@) MERAERRANBIARE

2023 2022
—=_= =4
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE T FAT
Current — Hong Kong BNEf — BF
Provision for the year FREE 58,371 65,395
Over-provision in respect of prior years AT FEBEERE (4,138) (8,923)
54,233 56,472
Current — Outside Hong Kong BVER — HARIN
Provision for the year FREE 12,564 8,435
Under-provision in respect of prior years BEFEREBETE 543 1,229
13,107 9,664
Total current tax BVERFH TR 42 %8 67,340 66,136
Deferred tax WEEF A (38,178) (15,228)
Tax charge for the year FAMIES L 29,162 50,908

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and BVI.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2022: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
for the year. Taxes on profits assessable outside Hong
Kong have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
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11. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

1. KEBRBERANFAEHR @)

(b)  Reconciliation between tax charge and accounting profit at (b)
the applicable tax rates:

BERREXGFENHAR B
Mz ERSRREINOT

2023 2022
—E=-= —E - F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FATT
Profit before tax BR 5 AR A 136,189 321,411
Tax on profit before taxation, calculated — BRFEATEFI 2 5518 - 1240
at the rates applicable to profits in BB aliERERZ
the tax jurisdictions concerned mRR R E 21,695 54,412
Over-provision in respect of prior years A FEREERE (3,595) (7,694)
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEEFRHUWA ZTHRIBATE (14,026) (11,494)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A kAT 2 HIBTE 23,912 16,642
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses AERHIEEEZHIEBETE 3,707 836
Tax effect of utilisation of unused BB FEH AR
tax losses not recognised in prior years FEERBERZHBEYE = (246)
Temporary differences not recognised BEFE AR
in prior years but recognised ERAFEERT
during the year TR (2,531) (1,548)
Tax charge for the year FRFELH 29,162 50,908
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. ZRAEERRELGEREF
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE

COMPANY
Basic earnings per share BREXRER
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit BRERBADEREAR AR R EWS
for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of F W& 769,654,000 L ( ZF = =4 :
HK$69,654,000 (2022: HK$197,501,000) and the weighted 197,501,000 7 ) & F B %17 N F19
average share of 1,180,602,000 ordinary shares (2022: TR EE 1,180,602,000 8 (Z T - —4 :
1,152,860,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year, 1,152,860,000 % @R ) sFE T ¢
calculated as follows:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares: LA N e 8K
2022
—E - F
‘000
Tz
Issued ordinary shares at the beginning R BFEEYNEZEITE R
of the financial year 1,178,372 1,071,016
Effect of share options exercised ITEERENTE 8 5,615
Effect of issuance of shares during the year R ERZEFTAR 5 (17 BERRHERR H1)
other than exercise of share options o) -Z=4 2,222 76,229
Weighted average number of ordinary RZAZ=Z+—BMT BRI
shares at 31 March 1,180,602 1,152,860
Basic earnings per Share (in HK cents) GREARZEF () 5.9 17.1

EC Healthcare
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 120 AR R EERRECERER

EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE (#)
COMPANY (continued)
Diluted earnings per share BREBEER
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the BREERANDEREAR AR R EWS
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of & 769,654,000 L( = & = = F:
HK$69,654,000 (2022: HK$197,501,000), and the weighted 197,501,000 7 Jr ) & 3 i f% o0 # 39 £k
average number of ordinary shares of 1,184,284,000 (2022: 1,184,284,000% (== = —4F : 1,173,282,000
1,173,282,000) shares is calculated as follows: O LAT HRETE -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted): EIEAR (EE) NRE e 8y -
2022
—E-_F
‘000
T
Weighted average number of ordinary R=A=1+— B8 mahngE
shares at 31 March Fig 1,180,602 1,152,860
Effect of deemed issue of shares under RIEA N BB AR RT BRI
the Company’s share option scheme EETRMNHTE 363 6,555
Effect of exercise of warrants TERREENTE 3,319 13,867
Weighted average number of ordinary R=ZRA=+—HrLER(#E)
shares (diluted) at 31 March DN 588 1,184,284 1,173,282
Diluted earnings per Share (in HK cents) S ERN OB 5.9 16.8
The diluted earnings per share amount is increased when taking TR EE 2 P B R R 2 AT R IR (R 25 5 3
convertible bonds into account. The convertible bonds had an me MR ESHENGRERBTNES
anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share for the year RESEWE - MR ESREERF L
and were not included in the calculation of diluted earmings per BETEAER -
share.
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 13. %X BERRBUARREY
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES E 3

(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount: (@ EREEYIER:

Ownership

interests in

land and Properties

building held leased for Leasehold Furniture  Operation Office Motor Investment
for own use ownuse improvements  andfixtures  equipment  equipment  Computers vehicles  Sub-total properties

REERN
1HEEFH  REERN
faks fEhE HENRRE BERKE  gERR BORR HEL] it Nt RENR
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TiEn TiEn Tin Tin TiEn Tin TiErn TiEx TiEn TiEn

Cost or valuation: RAGfE:
At 1 Aprl 2021 S 37,000 792,058 22107 101,465 261,939 10,562 17472 7492 1,450,115 186,300 1,636,415
Additions AE - 374,687 150,017 10,778 74,153 6,500 6,877 1,320 624,321 - 624,327
Business acquisiions 2BkE - 105,538 9,729 2,188 20,348 467 405 - 138,675 - 138,675
Disposals HE = (6,153) (3,0%9) (6,016) 88) @ (4 = (15,345) = (15,345)
Exchange adjustment ExAR - 5,034 1,662 579 24 - - - 7,499 - 7,499
Fair value adjustment AFEEE - - - - - - - - - 10,800 10,800
At 31 March 2022 R-B--%=fA=+-R 37,000 1,271,164 380,476 108,989 356,576 17,544 24,110 8812 220521 197,100 2,402,371
Representing: f%:
Cost A 37,000 1,271,164 380476 108,989 356,576 17,544 24,710 8812 220521 - 220521
Valuation 2022 “EoCERE = = = = - - - - - 197100 197,400
37,000 1,271,164 380476 108,989 356,576 17,544 24,710 8812 220521 197,100 2,402,371
At 1 Aprl 2022 37,000 1,271,164 380,476 108,989 356,576 17,544 24,710 8812 220521 197,100 2,402,371
Addtions - 444118 176,363 9,314 216,763 3,110 7,203 2,345 850,816 - 859,816
Business acquisitions - 34,004 6,250 1,512 3,190 310 422 225 45913 - 45913
Digposals - (5,317) (8929) (225) (640) 1) (241) - (15,353) - (15,353)
Exchange adjustment EHHE - (10,641) (2692) (1,209) (545) - 4] - (15,090) - (15,090)
Fair value acjusiment ATESE = - - - - - - - - 2200 2,200
At 31 March 2023 RZZZ=F=A=1-H 37,000 1,733,928 551,468 118,381 575,344 20,963 32,091 11,382 3,080,557 199,300 3,279,857
Representing: f%:
Cost A 37,000 1,733,928 551,468 118,381 575,344 20,963 32,091 11,382 3,080,557 - 3,080,557
Valuation 2023 ZRoERE = - - - - - - - - 199300 199,300

37,000 1,733,928 551,468 118,381 575,344 20,963 32,001 11,382 3,080,557 199,300 3,279,857

Accumulated depreciation:  ZHH7E :

At1 Apr 2021 RZZZ-FmA-A 2,162 345929 146,578 19,825 124,618 5301 10464 3233 658,110 - 6510
Charge for the year FRZI 1,321 258,302 47954 6,112 39,893 2745 2,903 1750 360,986 - 360986
Witen back on disposals it el - (2,478) (1,500) (5,976) (76) “ ¢] - (10,042) - (10,042)
Bxchange adjustment EiAE - 1,804 813 213 il - - - 2,901 - 2,901
At31 March 2022 RZZZZF=A=1-R 3,489 603,557 193,845 0,174 164,506 8,042 13,359 4983 1,011,955 - 1,011,955
At1 Apr 2022 R-B-—4mA-R 3489 603,557 193,845 20,174 164,506 8,042 13,359 4983 1,011,955 - 1,011,955
Charge for the year ERTH 1,327 350,017 61,494 9,785 56,791 3,107 4610 1,837 488,068 - 433,968
Written back on disposals REERER - 87 @ (149) (258) - 211) - (708) - (708)
Exchange adusiment EXRE - (4,256) (1,185) (685) (185) - @ - (6:313) - (6:313)
At31 March 2023 R-B-=4=f=t-8 4816 949,231 254,151 20125 220854 11,149 17,756 6820  1493,902 - 1493002
Net book value:

At31 March 2023 32184 784,697 297,317 8925 354,490 9814 14,335 4562 1586655 199300 1,785,055
At31 March 2022 33514 667,607 186,631 83,815 192,070 9,502 11,351 3829 1193316 197,00  1,390416
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 13. %X BERRBUARREY

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) ¥ )
(b) Fair value measurement of investment (b) REWMENATFETE
properties
()  Fair value hierarchy i)y DFEER
The following table presents the fair value of the TREFREEREY ERN R
Group’s investment properties measured at the end HFHARREEEEEFEZR
of the reporting period on a recurring basis, FE - WIRRH BT BmE%E
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as RIB13 A FEFENTEED
defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement . The ABZEAFEZEL - AFER
level into which a fair value measurement is classified ENERH2REERMAA
is determined with reference to the observability and MASBOIBERMEMEZ T
significance of the inputs used in the valuation SR

technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using .
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using o
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail
to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using .
significant unobservable inputs
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment

properties (Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Recurring fair value measurement
Investment properties

Recurring fair value measurement
Investment properties

EC Healthcare

Fair value at
31 March
2023

i

—E-=
=A=t-H
WATE
HK$°000
TR
BERUHLTENE

KEME 199,300

Fair value at
31 March
2022
—E--F
=A=t+-H
HATE
HK$000
T
REHATESE

REME 197,100
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ME BERIREURKREY
¥

(b) BEVMENQAFEE @)

i) DFEBRE

Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2023 categorised into
R=B==f=A=+-AH
SEBUTERNALETE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

F—-BR EER E=EH
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FER TER
- - 199,300

Fair value measurements as at

31 March 2022 categorised into

R-ZE-—#=A=1+—H

HBABATEANNATEHNE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E—ER FER FZER
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THET FHET
- - 197,100
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b)

Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

@i

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

The valuations of investment properties were carried
out by an independent firm of surveyors, AP Appraisal
Limited, who have among their staff fellows of the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors with recent
experience in the location and category of property
being valued. The Group’s finance director and the
chief financial officer have discussions with the
surveyors on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at annual
reporting date.

Valuation techniques
HER %
Investment properties Market comparison approach
REME MG LENA
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13. % BMERKBURREY

¥

(b) BEVMENQAFEE @)

Unobservable input
TABRRGARE

Premium (discount) on quality

of the properties
MELEHE(R)

DNV EER(HE)

RBE-_T-_=K_FT__
FZA=+—BHLFE F—
BRME_[ER I EE
B rEEARENE=E
Ho AEBZHEAENATE
[E & 2 [ B 7% M 3R 45 HA
RIEREHERS o

BEYENEEHRBLAZR
7T AP Appraisal Limited # 17 °
HETARERFEASMES
g8 R L EMEMTH
MR B ERBELR A&
B XE2UBREREREVE
ERAAEMAREFERS
AEITHERNRERMER -

Range

gE

-10%-10%

-10%-10%

(2022: -10%-10%)
(ZZZZF 1 -10%-10%)
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(ii)

EC Healthcare

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurement

The fair value of properties is determined using
market comparison approach by reference to recent
sales price of comparable properties on a price per
square foot basis, adjusted for a premium or a
discount specific to the quality of the Group’s
properties compared to the recent sales. Higher
premium for higher quality properties will result in a
higher fair value measurement.

The movements during the year in the balance of

13. % BMERKBURREY

¥

(b) BEVMENQAFEE @)

(ii)

FZEBRAFEIFEEH

Wy AFE T BT L &
EEE - RS ETHLERY
SRGTHREREELEY
FEEE AERAEEDE
BB Y B S (B
B ER S RAE)
B MYEERBRERETE
8% BERHEREZAT
ERES -

EZERATEFEZHEBE

these Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: FRZEEBHWOT
2023 2022
—EC-=HF T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T

Investment properties REYHE

At 1 April AEA—H 197,100 186,300
Fair value adjustment NEFE 2,200 10,800
At 31 March R=A=+—H 199,300 197,100

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
recognised in the line item “Other net income and
gains” on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

All the gains/losses recognised in profit or loss for the

year arise from the properties held at the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 13. %X BERRBUARREY

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) ¥ )
(c) Right-of-use assets (c) ERAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by RRAEERRN ST RAEEED
class of underlying asset is as follows: FREDFENT -
2023 2022
—E=-= T F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FExT FHT

Ownership interests in leasehold  #FH{rE AN EEHE
land and buildings held for own T RAEF R T A
use in Hong Kong, with remaining  #%5 @ FlgEE A

lease term between 10E504F
10 and 50 years (i) 32,184 33,511
Properties leased for own use HEEBRNYE (ii) 784,697 667,607
Operation equipment BB (iii) 840 1,260
817,721 702,378
The analysis of items in relation to leases charged/(credited) REZHIRGtA) EBHEENE
to profit or loss is as follows: BHAMMT :

2023 2022
—E_= —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE&T FAxT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use 18RI EE AR E D K Rk
assets by class of underlying asset:  BEZITEFRL ¢

— Ownership interests in leasehold  — #{EG BHAE i REFH
land and buildings PGk
held for own use 1,327 1,327
— Properties leased for own use — HEEEROME 350,017 258,302
— Operation equipment — BIERE 420 5,326
351,764 264,955
Interest on lease liabilities (note 7) TAEa @S (ME7) 16,569 14,948
Expense relating to short-term leases %8 B3FH SN X 5,659 5,378
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SR

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were
HK$478,722,000 (including HK$34,004,000 arising from
business acquisitions) (2022: HK$480,225,000 (including
HK$105,538,000 arising from business acquisitions)). This
amount primarily related to the capitalised lease payments
payable under new or renewed tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 22(c) and 28,
respectively.

@i

EC Healthcare

Ownership interests in leasehold land and
buildings held for own use

The Group holds a property for its medical business.
The Group is the registered owner of these property
interests. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire these property interests from their previous
registered owners, and there are no ongoing
payments to be made under the terms of the land
lease, other than payments based on rateable values
set by the relevant government authorities. These
payments vary from time to time and are payable to
the relevant government authorities.
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¥
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FN - ANBEFEAEEER 478,722,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its office, warehouses, clinics and
beauty centres through tenancy agreements. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to 6 years.
Lease payments are usually increased every 2 to 3
years to reflect market rentals.

Other leases

The Group leases operation equipment under leases.
The lease runs for an initial period of 8 years. Some
leases include an option to renew the lease when all
terms are renegotiated, while some include an option
to purchase the operation equipment at the end of
the lease term at a price deemed to be a bargain
purchase option. None of the leases includes variable
lease payments.

(d) Assets leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of 2 to 3 years, with an option to renew the lease after that
date at which time all terms are renegotiated. Lease
payments are usually increased every 2 to 3 years to reflect
market rentals. None of the leases includes variable lease
payment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 13. %X BERRBUARREY

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) E4¢ )
(d) Assets leased out under operating leases (d RELEHSEHENEE @)
(Continued)
Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable AREBERARKEAFE RN RS B BT
operating leases in place at the reporting date will be FEH A RS ESHE TR ARLIRTE
receivable by the Group in future periods as follows: ERNFMT -
2023 2022
s = —F——
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHET
Within 1 year 1FR 3,366 3,714
1-2 years 1Z2%F 2,120 3,625
2-3 years 2E3F = 2,400
5,486 9,639
14. GOODWILL 14. B
2023 2022
s = —F—
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 7t FE T FHET
At the beginning of the year =) 709,073 477,356
Business acquisitions R EE 33 41,952 231,717
Goodwill impairment GEDERE! (7,481) -
At the end of the year FR 743,544 709,073
2023 2022
—E|=-= —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Cost jp%N 760,650 718,698
Accumulated impairment losses 2FHREEE (17,106) (9,625)
Net carrying amount BREFE 743,544 709,073
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SR

14. GOODWILL (continued) 14. BHE @)

Impairment testing of goodwiill

The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the cash-

generating units (“CGUs”") is as follows:

BB RER A

MEEREENT

PEEZSReEEBU((ReEELEMN])

2023 2022
—==-= —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Spine treatment services in Hong Kong EEAHERERE 24,546 24,546
Aesthetic dental services in BB EHRTY — Conya
Hong Kong — Conya 20,885 22,051
Therapy services in Hong Kong — McKenzie & aBEIRTS — EEA 18,736 18,736
Child clinic operations and medical services — F#&E %) 72 i & B & AR
in Hong Kong — Prime Kids — Prime Kids
(“Prime Kids CGU”) (IPrime Kids IR & EEAE B ]) 35,823 35,823
Multi-channel networking and related services BERPHZRBEHEZH N
in Hong Kong and PRC — Prime Inspire 8RS — Prime Inspire 21,305 21,305
Provision of laboratory testing services LB AR T
— Pathlab (“Pathlab CGU”) — A (B BeEESAM]) 134,437 134,437
Clinic operations and medical services P EREERG
— New Medical (“New Medical CGU”) — New Medical
([New Medical & E4 AL ) 127,482 127,482
Provision of Obstetrics and Gynaecology RHFEZR RS
medical specialist services — Zenith — Sl (SRS EEENM])
(“Zenith CGU") 55,881 55,881
Provision of veterinary services TR LR EE iR 7%
— Dr. Tiong’s Clinics — SREREEZFT 39,760 39,760
Clinic operations and medical services DR E & B RS
— PMC — PMC 47,764 47,764
Dental services in Hong Kong — BEETRRE—EFIEE
Bayley & Jackson (“B&J CGU") (TEEMERREEESBN]) 94,042 94,042
Clinic operations and medical services DPTLE M EBERTS
— Excellent Power — Excellent Power 13,765 20,080
Clinic operations and medical services PRTEE R BERG
— Surecare (“Surecare CGU”) —ER(EEHRSELEN]) 21,952 -
Provision of comprehensive health screening REBIRE 2 EEES SRS
services in Hong Kong — Mobile Medical ([ Mobile
— Mobile Medical (“Mobile Medical CGU”) Medical 3R & E £ 87 |) 15,312 -
Other insignificant goodwill Hih W TSR HE 71,854 67,166
743,544 709,073
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SR

14. GOODWILL (continued) 14. BHE @)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of these CGUs have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. The value-in-use calculations
use cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by
senior management covering a five-year period (2022: 5 years).
The discount rates applied to the cash flow projections are
ranged from 13.1% to 17.5% (2022: 10.5% to 15.6%) and the
growth rates used to extrapolate the cash flows of the CGU
beyond the five-year period are ranged from 2% to 2.5% (2022:
2% 10 2.5%).

Based on the assessment of the recoverable amount of the
CGUs, no impairment loss was recognised for the year ended
31 March 2023 (2022: $nil).

Assumptions were adopted in the value-in-use calculations of all
CGUs, which include discount rate, long term growth rate and
revenue growth rate, on which management has based its cash
flow projections to perform impairment testing of goodwill.
Management determined the cash flow projections and growth
rates based on past performance and its expectations for the
market development. The values assigned to the key
assumptions are consistent with external information sources.
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SR

14. GOODWILL (continued) 14. BHE @)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Management has assessed whether a reasonably possible
change in key assumptions, discount rate, growth rate beyond
the five-year period or revenue growth rate during the forecast
period, could cause the carrying amounts of certain CGUs to
exceed the respective recoverable amounts.

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amounts of Conya CGU and
Excellent Power CGU exceeded their estimated recoverable
amounts. As a result, impairment losses of HK$1,166,000 and
HK$6,315,000 were recognised in the statement of profit or loss
on the respective goodwill of Conya CGU and Excellent Power
CGU.

As at 31 March 2023, the estimated recoverable amounts of
Prime Kids CGU, Pathlab CGU, Zenith CGU and B&J CGU
exceeded their carrying amounts by approximately HK$3 million,
HK$21 million, HK$4 million and HK$14 million, respectively. The
discount rate would need to increase by 0.5%, 0.7%, 0.3% and
1% or the growth rate beyond the five-year period would need to
decrease by 0.8%, 0.3%, 0.5% and 0.8% or the growth rate
during the forecast period would need to decrease by 0.4%,
0.4%, 0.7% and 0.6%, respectively, with all other variables
remain constant, for the estimated recoverable amounts to be
equal to the carrying amounts of Prime Kids CGU, Pathlab CGU,
Zenith CGU and B&J CGU, respectively.

As at 31 March 2022, the estimated recoverable amounts of
Pathlab CGU, Zenith CGU and B&J CGU exceeded their carrying
amounts by approximately HK$37 million, HK$8 million, and
HK$3 million, respectively. The discount rate would need to
increase by 1.1%, 0.5% and 0.3% or the growth rate beyond the
five-year period would need to decrease by 1.8%, 0.7% and
0.3% or the growth rate during the forecast period would need to
decrease by 0.9%, 0.6% and 0.1%, respectively, with all other
variables remain constant, for the estimated recoverable amount
to be equal to the carrying amount of Pathlab CGU, Zenith CGU
and B&J CGU, respectively.

For all other CGUs, management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of the key assumptions of cash flow
projections would not cause the respective carrying amounts of
these CGUs to exceed their recoverable amounts.
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B H5 R B et

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. B EE

Cost: BA:

At 1 Aprl 2021 R-E--£RA-A 30,788 3,077 3821 205,530 - 13718 38,604 575,538
Busingss acqisitions £BUE - 70,800 - 180,341 - - - 251141
Transfer & - - - - 14025 (14,025) - -
Exchange adjustment EfE - - ? - 260 07 - 659
At 31 March 2022 R-E--#=F=1-8 30,788 353,817 3918 385,871 14285 - 38,604 827,338
At1 Apr 2022 i 1R 30,788 353,817 3913 385,87 14,285 - 38,604 827,338
Addiions %E 1480 - - - - - - 1480
Business acquistions E3 0] - 11,704 - 55,987 - - - 67,691
Exchange adjustment EfE - - (186) - (1,072 - - (1,258)
At 31 March 2023 RZFZ=E=f=1-F 32,268 365,581 3721 441 858 18213 - 38,604 895,251
Accumulated amortisation: B3t

At Aprl 2021 R-E--£RA-A - 24529 3,288 17998 - - 18,09 63,911
Charge for the year ERgd - 42,083 544 2923 2,004 - 4,805 7379
Exchange adjustment B R - - 74 - 37 - - 11
At 31 March 2022 RZBZZ%=A=1-H - 66,612 3,906 30,921 2,04 - 291 135,401
At 1 April 2022 \“2--%@mA-§ - 66,612 3,906 30,921 2,041 - 2,91 135,401
Charge for the year Ep - 54,661 5 36,386 1,889 - 4,806 97,767
Exchange adjustment ERAZ - - (184) - (157) - - (341)
At 31 March 2023 \ZEZZE=A=T-R - 121,13 3720 76,307 3713 - 2,147 232,821
Net book value: REFE:

At 31 March 2023 R-E-ZE=f=1-A 32,068 244,308 - 365,561 9,440 - 10857 662,424
At 31 March 2022 RZFZZ%=A=1-H 30,788 267,65 7 345,950 12,204 - 15,683 691,937
The intangible assets with indefinite useful life are related to club WmERFHAFEHNEEEEVEEENS
memberships and school debentures in Hong Kong. No FefERERKELAEE -  FERAWEEZR
impairment loss was recognised during the year (2022: HK$nil). BEEB(ZE & THT) -
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SR

16. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

Share of net assets DIhEEFE

16. REELEMNER

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FAxT
45,986 48,381

(@) Details of the Group’s principal joint ventures, which are
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements, are as follows:

Place of Particulars of
incorporation and issued and
Name of joint venture business paid-up capital
EMRILR BEAR
RELELR ERmend  AREREE
Good Union Corporation Hong Kong HK$100
Limited (‘GUC")
BleEER AR ([8I2E]) BE 10077

Good Union Medical Limited (‘GUM’) Hong Kong HK$100

Good Union Medical Limited ([GUMJ) &% 10057

Hero Design Group Limited (‘HDG”) Hong Kong HK$3,100,000

MlERER BRARAR (TFHE]) B 3,100,000 7

Tengkang Healthcare (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$15,605,500
Limited (‘Tengkang”)

BREREE(FR)ERAA B 15,605,500 %7
(Teg))

GUC and GUM (together referred to as the “GU”), HDG
and Tengkang, the joint ventures in which the Group
participates, are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted
market price is not available.
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AEERTEAZEE(REEME
WREAEDEATR)FBFWAT

Proportion of ownership interest

ikl 4 34

Group’s Held

effective by the Heldbya

interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activity

rEH KEAR

EREE ADAfR i TEEE

50% - 50%  Provision of repairs and
maintenance services
for beauty equipment

50% - 50%  AXRHER{EE
RERE

50% - 50%  Sales of medication
products

50% - 50% HEEMER

35% - 35%  Provision of interior
design services

35% - 0% REEREHRE

45% - 45%  Provision of medical
services

45% - 4%  REBBRE

AEBHEENEE XA SER
GUM (FH8 [GU)) « E1ERER - B
WEAISMEGRENFELTAAE
E%o
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SR

16. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 16.

()

Summarised financial information of the material joint
ventures, GU, adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:

R&

(b)

EhENER @)

BT BEREMZREHFENEXN
BRECEGUIBERBIER EERE
M mREMENEREENT

2023 2022
—E_= —E-F
HK$000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Gross amounts of GU GU 4z
Current assets MEEE 55,193 58,355
Non-current assets FEMEEE 7,304 7,341
Current liabilities PEIE=RE (30,287) (26,108)
Equity T 32,210 39,590
Included in the above assets and SFALMEEREE :
liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEY 14,934 7,879
Current financial liabilities (excluding TEERMAE (B REMEN
trade and other payables and TRIB R BRI
provisions) (1,699) (4,585)
2023 2022
—E_=F T
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FABT
Gross amounts of GU GU 4258
Revenue A 84,832 76,791
Profit from continuing operations PNERSE FdE S ti0pap 15,670 9,856
Total comprehensive income EHEKEEEE 15,670 9,856
Dividend paid BT E (22,000) (2,000)
Included in the above profit: A _EHUEF] -
Interest income FEUA = 15
Interest expense MEMX (320) (294)
Income tax expense FTiSFiRX (3,482) -
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in GU B2 RSB Bt GU RE 25 H B
Gross amounts of GU’s net assets GUEEFE®RE 32,210 39,590
Group’s effective interest NEEER#EE 50% 50%
Group’s share of GU’s net assets REEEEGUEESE 16,105 19,795
Fair value adjustment on net assets kg & E 2 AT EFHE
acquired 591 591
Goodwill [EES 12,383 12,383
Carrying amount in the consolidated PR M BHRANREE
financial statements 29,079 32,769
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SR

16. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Summarised financial information of the Group’s shared portion
of joint ventures, excluding GU, that are not individually material
are disclosed below:

16. REELENER @)

AEBAOIEENFERELELE(TER
GU) D 2 BRI R BN T

2023 2022
—Eg-= = —
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#&T FHIT
Aggregate carrying amount of individually fEARIFFEXRE B EEmMAE
immaterial joint ventures 16,907 15,612
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations REBERLEBNGERN, (EE) 2,870 (902)
Other comprehensive income Efb 2w = -
Total comprehensive income EEIREAE 2,870 (902)
17. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 17. REEE QAR ER
2023 2022
—E_= T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T T
Share of net assets DIhEEFE 2,783 1,183
Advance to an associate (note 20) A — FE B & A B EVER (B 5 20) 19 17
Loan to an associate (note) M — R e A R E K () 261,151 -
263,953 1,170
Less: Advance to an associate classified NG i) NI E-
as current assets under (pfEA [FaNFE -
“Prepayments, deposits and e M E AR IE ]
other receivables” B RRRBNEE) (19) (17)
263,934 1,153
Note: In accordance with the terms of the shareholders’ agreement in Mt © BIBEHEAQ

connection with an associate, all the shareholders of the associate
have provided loan capital to this associate under equal terms. The
loans are unsecured, interest-free and subordinated to all external
borrowings obtained by the associate. Accordingly, this loan forms an
integral part of the Group’s equity investment in this associate and is
recognised as such.
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17. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

17. REEE DRI RER (@)

(@ Details of the Group’s associates, which are accounted for @ TXERINKEENBERBFE A
using the equity method in the consolidated financial DERAERENGEETBREFRA
statements are as follows: R -

Proportion of
ownership interest
FERRERNLA

Place of Particulars of Group’s

incorporation issued and effective Held by Held by
Name of associate and business paid-up capital interest the Company  asubsidiary  Principal activity

ALK ERTRAR FEEER LA WEAR
BEATER EHREH BAFE R Fi%s fils EEER
Kenta Clinic Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 49% - 49%  Provision of medical

services
RADEMBRAA BB 1,000/ 7T 49% - 49% REBERS
Creative Profit Development - Hong Kong HK$7,200 30% - 30%  Property development
Limited (“Creative Profit’)

ENERERAA(AF]) FE 7,200 7T 30% - 0% EENE

Kenta Clinic Limited, Creative Profit are the unlisted
corporate entities whose quoted market price are not

available.

RADEMERAB RAINAIE LD
AEER  HYEASHISRE -

(b)  Summarised financial information of the material associate, b) HEABREMERELAZRNEX

Creative Profit, adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:

BERRAINSBEENRERRES
MIERAEHENSRIWENT ¢

2023 2022
—E_= =4
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T
Gross amounts of Creative Profit 2R 4a%E

Current assets RBEE 1,527,719 -
Current liabilities TENAE (855,321) -
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (673,797) -
Equity W (1,399) -

Included in the above assets and SALMEENRAE:

liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEY 6,003 -
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17. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17. REE QDRI RER @)
(o)  (Continued) L) (&)
2023 2022
—==-= —=E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFE T FHET
Gross amounts of Creative Profit B F 4258
Revenue A - -
Profit from continuing operations A FFHER & FE TR A 3,864 -
Total comprehensive income 2E SR 3,864 -
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in BN £ [ AT S A1 M R 25 T BR
Creative Profit
Gross amounts of Creative Profit’s BIF B EFEAE
net liabilities (1,399) -
Group’s effective interest REEBEEREZ 30% -
Group’s share of Creative Profit’s AEBEEBIFGETE"
net liabilities™ = -
Group’s share of shareholders’ loan KEEDEREER 261,151 -
Carrying amount in the consolidated Wira B RERmNREE
financial statements 261,151 -

The Group discontinued to recognise further losses on Creative

Profit when the Group’s share of losses exceeded its interest in
this associate. The Group recognised share of losses of
HK$7,000 during the year ended 31 March 2023.

Summarised financial information of the Group’s shared
portion of the remaining associate that is not individually

material is disclosed below:

EALE DL ERBERIEREHE QRN
o IASEETEHERAFNNE—FB
B AEBRBEE-_T-_=F=-A=+—8
IEFEHER D HEE 7,000 7T ©

AEE DGR M ERSEE AR E AR
BB D R IS E R BT

2023 2022
—E-=H T

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FHET

Carrying amount of an associate —REE A RINREE 2,783 1,153

Profit from continuing operations PYERSE F e 0lEn 1,630 1,153

Other comprehensive income HEihemlas - -

Total comprehensive income 2EREBEE 1,630 1,158
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18. INVENTORIES 18. 7 &
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of () FEMBRRERNEERRE:
financial position comprise:
2023 2022
—==-= —E - —4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHT
Skincare, healthcare and beauty products #E - 1RERERE S 7,575 8,134
Medications, consumables and 22y FEM R E AL E
other supplies 79,316 92,964
86,891 101,098
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) BEARBAIUTFABRNEER
recognised as an expense and included in SEIWOT :

profit or loss is as follows:

2023 2022
—E-= —E_—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T

Carrying amount of inventories sold BEHERERENFEREE

and consumed 552,953 349,603
19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. ESEWFIA
2023 2022
—=2_= T
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FH&IT
Trade receivables 2 5 e GRIE 211,886 155,493
All of the trade receivables are receivables from contracts with EESEKNTIESL AT LS ERE AL
customers within the scope of HKFRS 15. FIHBEANFRERE AL EKGRIE

BERE 191 FEHE 2022/23



Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. B 5 BWRIE @)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit
card settlements and other institutional customers in respect of
provision of medical, aesthetic medical and beauty and wellness
and veterinary and related services. The credit period is generally
0 to 120 days for the credit card settlements from the respective
financial institutions and other institutional customers. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance,
is as follows:

AEEERTFNEZHIETERNEAFR
REARREHRER BEXTURER
Ko 3 A R A K BREE S AR B AR 75 O LAt 1
BEF BEoHBBIEMEEEZPR
BHERFTEENERS—RA/B0E120
R o ANSR | [ B AR 4% ) H R Mk B #9 FE UL
FE - MalsstmefEEETHEN -
AEBEYERELE S REFRGEHIT AT
AEM R RREBEREREE - B 5
FEURIAFT S o

BERSHR  RERAHFLNESE
WoskoR (ER R R) RRER DTN T

2023 2022

—E_-= T —F

HK$’°000 HK$’000

THET T

Within 1 month 1EAR 145,097 118,392
1 to 3 months 1231@A 39,581 25,141
Over 3 months 3{EA N E 27,208 11,960
211,886 155,493

Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 37.
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20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. ERIE - ZE& R H A E KR
RECEIVABLES B |
2023 2022
—E=-= ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Prepayments (note) Jaft oA (MEE) 236,976 211,293
Deposits Be 148,481 146,113
Other receivables H b rE W G IR 252,888 173,559
638,345 530,965
Portion classified as non-current DI RIERNERRE
— Rental and other deposits — e REMES (115,130) (104,436)
— Prepayments and other receivables — TR ERIE K CE M R IE
(note) (M3E) (281,157) (211,961)
Current portion BIVERFR 53 242,058 214,568

Note: In connection with certain acquisitions in previous and current years,
the Group prepaid HK$138,343,000 (2022: HK$133,343,000) to
certain practitioners in respect of their future services to the Group.

The amounts included in prepayments as at 31 March 2023 were
HK$80,743,000 (2022: HK$90,077,000), of which HK$14,334,000
(2022: HK$13,334,000) is expected to be charged to profit or loss
within 12 months from the end of the reporting period.

The above other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and
recoverable within one year, except for amounts of
HK$77,340,000 (2022: HK$57,350,000) (including an amount of
HK$5,836,000 (2022: HK$6,607,000) bearing interest at
2.5%-5% (2022: 4.6%-5%) per annum) which are expected to
be recovered after more than one year; and HK$30,847,000
(2022: HKS$nil) which is secured by a property interest and
non-controlling interests in two subsidiaries, interest-bearing at
prime rate and expected to be recovered after more than one
year.
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Mizt: RBAFERAFENETHEMNS - A%
EERETEEREARNEERUENRE N
1% % 78 17 138,343,000/ L (=T = — 4 :
133,343,000/87T) °

R-ZZEZ=F=A=+—Bit ATEMNZKIEHN
& % /80,743,000 (= T = = F:
90,077,000 7t) + H 14,334,000 7T (=
== 4 13,334,000/ ) TEERAE A &
AR ARET + =@ A MBS0k -

LM ENRIEAEER - 2ERATR
—FRURE - HEFE 77,340,000 T (=F
— % : 57,350,000/ 1) (BIERFEF=R
2E5%ELE%(ZFE = ZF : 46%E5%) 5t
B K& %85,836,0008 L( —F = — 4
6,607,000 7T )) TEEA i A B B — F 12 IR
B ; 30,847,000 L (ZE=—F : T8
JL) B —IEYEM RS R E B A SR IE
RS ERE - R ERF R
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20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. NRE - REREMEBBRK

RECEIVABLES (continued)

The above other receivables include amounts due from
non-controlling interests, joint venture and an associate of
HK$199,610,000 (2022: HK$139,865,000), HK$11,268,000
(2022: HK$1,056,000) and HK$20,000 (2022: HK$17,000),
respectively. The balances are unsecured, interest-free and
recoverable on demand, except for an amount of
HK$67,505,000 (2022: HK$50,742,000) which is expected to be
recovered after more than one year; and amounts of
HK$32,305,000 bearing interest at 2.5% or prime rate which are
expected to be recovered after more than one year (including an
amount due from non-controlling interests as mentioned in the
preceding paragraph).

The above other receivables also include an amount of
HK$1,254,000 (2022: HK$1,254,000) due from a related
company which is related to the profit guarantee in connection
with the acquisition of 50% equity interest in GU during the year
ended 31 March 2017. The related company is beneficially
owned by the spouse of Tang Chi Fai, the controlling shareholder
of the Company.

The above prepayments include an amount prepaid to a joint
venture of HK$4,771,000 (2022: HK$6,710,000) which is trade in
nature.

The non-current portion of prepayments and other receivables
include prepayments to contractors of HK$3,781,000 (2022:
HK$8,254,000) in respect of progress payment for renovations
under progress, of which HK$1,170,000 (2022: HK$7,330,000)
is prepaid to a joint venture.
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15 (&)
b 3t A R L K T 0 E U S AR A 25

AEECER—MHBERQRAKED
199,610,000 7t( — T — = 4:
139,865,000/ 7T ) * 11,268,000/ 7T ( =&
Z =4 : 1,056,000 7T) & 20,0008 (=
T ZF 1 17,0000870) - ZEEHBAER
2B RAUEERKE &5
67,505,000/ 7L (= Z = —F : 50,742,000
BIL) e EEHERBE—FRKE
NIRRT E25% L BB KRG ENEE
32,305,000 7T (B 1% B E& Pt FE U FE1E AR
Wk IR ) TEE R BB — F R E -

FE M EUGRIE R ERE N —EEER
A) 3% 181,254,000 ;L( = T = = F
1,254,000 L)« ZREHBE_T—+
F=ZA=1+— B ILLFEWEGU 50% % #
FEFIRERR - BEAR AR RER
BRREBEEOIEBERES

FREMNREREREN —HEEEENK
18 4,771,000/ 70 (—ZZ = —4F : 6,710,000
B BRESNE -

TE A5 R TE K E At JE UK R IE M SEBNER S8 5 2
ESRETR R TR A E A SR
YEH KT8~ FRIE 3,781,000/ T (2 = —
1 8,254,000/ 7T) - EH 1,170,000 7T
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21. FINANCIAL ASSETS 21. TRLEE
(@) Financial assets at fair value through other (@ BRAFEFAHMZEKEN
comprehensive income THEE

2023 2022

—E_=F B

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHBxT FRETT

Unlisted equity investments FERBRAERE 10,419 14,588

REBEF LR BERAFEFAR
fh 2 E U Ty R A IR E Th A B
BEomBE R_ZT=Z=F=A4
=+—B AEEBENKREXTEAR
5 R BRI 7T R B 5 [ 4B RS
AR7S o F A AEIENE L IBIR E /)
E(ZZEZ=F : THT) °

The Group designated above investments at FVOCI, as the
investments are held for strategic purpose. As at 31 March
2023, the investments held by the Group were principally
engaged in market and data research and provision of
medical and related services. No dividends were received
on these investments during the year (2022: HK$nil).

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit (b) BAFEFABENERMEE
or loss
2023 2022
—E_= T F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHxT FHIT
Non-Current FH e
— Unlisted equity investments — FFELMRAKRE 33,696 45,154
— Unlisted fund investments — FEMESEE 33,902 41,533
— Investments in life insurance policies — AERBIEE 56,597 55,367
124,195 142,054
Current Ti B
— Listed equity investments — AR E 1,028 -
— Unlisted fund investments — FLEMESEE 14,953 1,839
15,981 1,839
140,176 143,893
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME 2 RERREEBYUREHF
=h

EC Healthcare

DEPOSITS A
(@) Cash and cash equivalents and time deposits (@ RERRETEEYUREHF
comprise: REFE
2023 2022
—g=-= —Em——
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBx FHT
Cash at bank and in hand RITHER N FERS 709,859 870,228
Time deposits with original maturity REEARBB=EAH
over 3 months TFEHFR 1,000 2,000
710,859 872,228
Less: Time deposits with original maturity J& : R Ef B 88 = 1@ 5 &9
over 3 months TEHATE X (1,000) (2,000)
Cash and cash equivalents BeRASEEY 709,859 870,228

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for
varying periods depending on the Group’s immediate cash
requirements, and earn interest at the respective time
deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

As at 31 March 2022, time deposits of HK$2,000,000 were
pledged for a banking facility.

Included in cash and cash equivalents, HK$6,794,000
(2022: HK$14,092,000) are denominated in Renminbi and
deposited with the banks in the PRC. These deposits are
not freely convertible and the remittance of funds out of the
PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the
Government of the PRC.
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME 2 BERESEEYUREHE
DEPOSITS (Continued) X (#F)

RETBRELEEBENER

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b)
financing activities

TRANAEERETDIELERE
S - ’\i%iﬁi&#i DEE) - R
BEHELEEEREHBESRER
*%E’]fﬁﬁﬁigﬂ$’§lﬁ’]”/\
SREXRTEDERRMETIE
EMEMBEE-

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow
statement as cash flows from financing activities.

Bank Lease Convertible
borrowings liabilities bonds
(Note 25) (Note 28) (Note 32) Total
RITER HEAE TRRES
(GRS (HzE28) (HzE32) o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THx T T
At 1 April 2021 R-E--£NA-H 287,348 502,240 239,819 1,029,407
Changes from financing cash flows: REREREZEE:
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTER (287,348) - - (287,348)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BNEERENERSS - (267,691) - (267,691)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ERAERSHFIEHS - (14,948) - (14,948)
Interest paid on bank borrowings BRFTERAE (3,399) - - (3,399)
Total changes from financing cash flows BERSRE EEER (290,747) (282,639 - (573,386)
Exchange adjustments ERAZ - 3,485 - 3,485
Other changes: Hitge
Increase in lease liabilties from entering FRATHHEERRE
into new leases during the year BEEN - 364,208 - 364,208
Increase in lease liabilties from business EREHETHEAREN
acquisitions - 106,910 - 106,910
Early termination of leases RERERE - (8,750) - (3,750)
Interest on lease liabilities REARME - 14,948 - 14,948
Interest on bank borrowings FITBHHE 3,399 - - 3,399
Interest on convertible bonds* MRREESTE - - 10,763 10,763
Conversion of convertible bonds AaRESSh - - (14,873 (14,873)
Total other changes AthE8nE 3,399 482,316 (4,110) 481,605
At 31 March 2022 R-B-—F=fA=+-H - 706,402 235,709 941,111
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME 2 RERBEESEEYURERRE
DEPOSITS (continued) K (4)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from b)) BMETBHFFEEEENHER
financing activities (Continued) (#&)
Bank Lease Convertible
borrowings liabilities bonds
(Note 25) (Note 28) (Note 32) Total
BT HEEE TRRES
(Ki5E25) (HzE28) (HzE32) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx THr T T
At 1 April 2022 R-ZB--EMA-H - 705,402 235,709 941,111
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSREZEE:
Proceeds from new bank borrowings MR RAGTE 494,334 - - 494,334
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTER (6,336) - - (6,336)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BERAERENERTH - (350,782) - (350,782)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ERAERSHTFEHS - (16,569) - (16,569)
Interest paid on bank borrowings BRRTEANE (13,142) - - (13,142)
Total changes from financing cash flows BERERECEDNEE 474,856 (367,351) - 107,505
Exchange adjustments EiAE - (7,126) - (7,126)
Other changes: HitgE
Increase in lease liabilties from entering FRATUHAEERHE
into new leases during the year BEEm - 444718 - 444,718
Increase in lease liabilities from business ERAHEHMEREEM
acquisitions - 34,004 - 34,004
Early termination of leases AL - (5,905) - (5,905)
Interest on lease liabilties RERERNE - 16,569 - 16,569
Interest on bank borrowings ROTERFE 14,152 - - 14,152
Interest on convertible bonds® RRERFS - - 11,527 11,527
Conversion of convertible bonds AR EAFER - (17,104) (17,104)
Total other changes Hihggma 14,152 489,386 (5,577) 497,961
At 31 March 2023 R-B-=fF=fA=+-H 489,008 820,311 230,132 1,539,451

* Among the interest on convertible bonds of HK$18,604,000
(2022: HK$19,173,000) charged for the year ended 31 March
2023, coupon payable of HK$7,077,000 (2022: HK$8,410,000)
was included in other payables and accruals before settlement
of such. Coupon payment of HK$1,441,000 (2022:
HK$5,850,000) was settled by the Group during the year ended

31 March 2023.

EC Healthcare
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME

DEPOSITS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow statement

for leases comprise the following:

22 BEeRBEEEEBEYUREREF
X (#)

(c) HENRERHAR

JIINGEARERERNHEESEBR
AT&IE

2023 2022
—E_= —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE&T FAxT

Within operating cash flows ® mE 5,659 5,378
Within financing cash flows =ik mE 367,351 282,639
373,010 288,017

These amounts relate to the following:

Lease rentals paid

ENEERES

ZEDHEEATEIEAH

2022

—==-= —E_—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F# T
373,010 288,017

23. TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables, based on the invoice

date, is as follows:

23. ESERFIE

B 5 78 (T HUB R S A7 (R 3 B )
m -

2023 2022

—E-=HF T —F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHT

Within 1 month 1EAR 20,240 38,738
1 to 2 months 1Z2MEA 19,849 13,712
2 to 3 months 22 31E A 9,942 12,536
Over 3 months SMEAE 20,062 10,215
70,093 75,201

The trade payables are non-interest bearing and generally have

payment terms within 60 days.

199

BHEMNFRETE IR —RAB60K
AR

FEHE 2022/23



Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24, HittENRERETER

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—

HK$’°000 HK$'000
FH T T
Other payables and accruals HE @ sRERERER 753,922 637,590
Provision for reinstatement costs EENKAE S 26,870 21,035
780,792 658,625

Portion classified as non-current DI AIERNER IS
— Provision for reinstatement costs — EFRAEE (19,002) (13,772)
— Other payables — HihERRIE (212,675) (405,205)
Current portion BUERER 5> 549,115 239,648

Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average
payment term of three months except for those specified below.

Current portion of other payables include amounts due to
non-controlling interests of HK$53,364,000 (2022:
HK$18,300,000), which are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

As at 31 March 2022, other payables included an aggregate
amount of HK$3,784,000 which was interest-bearing at
1.12%-3.48% per annum.

Other payables include consideration payables amounting to
HK$462,160,000 (2022: HK$411,404,000), which are related to
the business acquisitions during the current and prior years of
which HK$212,675,000 (2022: HK$405,205,000) is expected to
be settled after more than one year.

The provision for reinstatement costs represents management’s
best estimate of the Group’s liabilities of the costs of dismantling
and removing the leasehold improvements and restoring the sites
on which they are located.
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25. BANK BORROWINGS 25. RITHEN

At 31 March 2023, the bank borrowings were repayable as
follows:

R-B-=#=A=+—8 RITERY
BRI ¢

2023 2022

—E=-= -2
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Within 1 year or on demand —FRHIREK 101,348 -
After 1 year but within 2 years —FBEMERN 74,330 _
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBBRAFN 313,330 -
387,660 -
489,008 -
2023 2022
—Z2_-= k== =
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#E T FBT

Bank borrowings H|ITER

— unsecured — IR I 489,008 -

At 31 March 2022, investment properties of HK$197,100,000,
ownership interests in leasehold land and building held for own
use of HK$33,511,000 and time deposits of HK$2,000,000 were
pledged to obtain banking facilities from various banks. The
pledge of these assets was released during the year ended 31
March 2023.

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s or
relevant subsidiaries’ financial ratios, as are commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were
to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities may be
subject to repayment immediately. It is also provided in the facility
agreement for the unsecured bank loans of HK$400,000,000
that if the controlling shareholder of the Company, Mr. Tang Chi
Fai, is not or ceases to be the controlling shareholder of the
Company owning less than 51% of the total issued shares of the
Company, then the lender is entitled to request immediate
repayment of these outstanding loans and all accrued interest.

At 31 March 2023, none of the covenants relating to drawn down
facilities had been breached.
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26. DEFERRED REVENUE 26. ELEWA

The deferred revenue is mainly related to the provision of medical,
aesthetic medical and beauty and wellness services and multi-
channel networking and related services.

The service period for medical, aesthetic medical and beauty and
wellness services is generally one year and all customers are
required to prepay the packages in full prior to utilisation of
services.

Upfront payment is required for certain customers for provision of
multi-channel networking and related services.

The amount of revenue recognised for the year ended 31 March
2023 (2022: year ended 31 March 2022) that was included in
deferred revenue as at 1 April 2022 was HK$656,067,000 (1 April
2021: HK$562,536,000).

All of the deferred revenue as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 is
expected to be recognised as revenue within one year from the
end of the reporting period.
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SR

27. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial (@)

position represents:

27. ZEMBRRRABAEHR

e BIR R AR BT RATR RS -

2023 2022
—Z=-= T
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHxT FABT
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax FREBFSHEE
for the year 58,371 65,395
Tax (recoverable)/provision arising from ERWEELD
business acquisitions (AR EIFHEE), T B R (464) 5,841
Provisional tax paid B E A (60,116) (50,449)
(2,209) 20,787
Balance of Profits Tax provision relating HBATFEHAN
to prior years NETRESEA 17,212 16,980
15,003 37,767
Provision for tax outside Hong Kong BBBINA IR 12,564 8,435
27,567 46,202
Represented by: (A
Current tax recoverable A] U5 [B] B R 1B (32,185) (27,597)
Current tax payable JE (BN ERRL T8 59,752 73,799
27,567 46,202
203 FEHRSE 2022/23



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 g M 5t
27. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 27. ZEMBRRRANNFAEBHR @)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
(b) Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities (b) EEBIE(EE) &FE
Temporary
Temporary differences
differences between Fair value
between  depreciation adjustment
right-of-use  and the related arising from
Unused assets and depreciation business
tax losses lease liabilities allowance  combinations
FREEER REEARNE
HEAEZH BBl REBAHEL
ABARERSE MERER ERER  WATERR ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T#n TER TER TER Thn
At 1 April 2021 W-E-—4NE—H (26,202) (4,020) 4,400 74,021 48,199
(Creditedy/charged to RERGEA) /TR
profit or loss (4,544) (2,287) 2,203 (10,650) (15,228)
Business acquisitions 2l - - (141) 41,438 4,297
At31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 H=ZEZ—%#=f=1+—H
kZZ--ENA-A (30,746) (6,257) 6,462 104,809 74,268
(Credted)/charged to RESGEA) /M
profit or loss (32,194) (1,208) 10,248 (15,024) (38,178)
Business acquisitions E3id - - - 11,169 11,169
At 31 March 2023 W-Z-=F=f=+-H (62,940) (7,465) 16,710 100,954 47,259
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27. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 27. MEMBRRERANFESH @)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of REMBRR RO R
financial position
2023 2022
=== T F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THET
Deferred tax assets recognised in the REFa BRI R RS
consolidated statement of financial position — JEERIEEE (55,974) (30,981)
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RER B TSR R RIER
consolidated statement of financial position  ELFHIBEE & 103,233 105,249
47,259 74,268
Deferred tax assets and liabilities not recognised KRR ESEREE
The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of REFENERANEERPEELNTIEER
tax losses arising in Hong Kong and the PRC of HK$31,791,000 31,791,000/ 7t ( == = — 4 : 16,749,000
(2022: HK$16,749,000) as it is not probable that future taxable B BREERIBEE J?\.;\Eﬂg RE T &
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be available in FERER R E RO 428 R K E BRI
the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not BN @AM EIE - BIBRITHE -
expire under current tax legislation, except for the tax losses of BIEGBETSRE  EEEAEERG
HK$26,828,000 (2022: HK$12,413,000) relating to the Group’s B 1 & A2 My 18 8548 26,828,000 8 T ( =&
entities in the PRC, which will be expired within five years. T4 112,413,000 7)) BN - R E
FNFIE -
As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group did not have material RIEBE_=FN_FT-_—_F=AF=+—H8"
unrecognised deferred tax liabilities. AREEWES KAERDELHIEAE -
28. LEASE LIABILITIES 28. HESE
At 31 March 2023, the lease liabilities were payable as follows: NR-_EBE-_=—F=-A=+—H ' EHHEE
BENT :
2023 2022
—2=-= —T——
Within 1 year 1R 299,039 318,716
After 1 year but within 2 years 1A EE2FER 206,448 179,689
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FEBESER 302,735 193,332
After 5 years 5% 4,906 13,665
514,089 386,686
813,128 705,402
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29. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 29. B& - RERRE
DIVIDENDS
(@) Movements in components of equity (a) HERBLEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing AEFGAEZSED EAE;q%}]&H}W
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated M EEHAN G EZEE R - AQ
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes BRI e 25 20 95 PA G 9] & £ R EF FaEJE‘\Jx
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s FEEEEINOT ¢

individual components of equity between the beginning and
the end of the year are set out below:

Share-based Fair value
Share Share  Contribution  compensation Capital reserve  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve  (non-recycling) losses
NRAZHH ATERE
s ke HERE HERkfE RAGE (FEARE) EHI 3

(note 20(d)(i) (note 29(d)(iv)  (note 29(c)(v)) (note 29(d)(vi))
(War2o)i) (MEE2od)iv)  (RRE20(d)))  (AisE29()(vi))
HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tn TER TER TR TEn TER TER TER

At April 2021 R-E-—%NA-H 11 1,133,184 - 2218 76,543 - (339,731) 892,225
Issuance of shares upon exercise of EBRERRARE

share options 29) - 44191 - (10,493 - - - 33,698
Issuance of shares for the SEREEASEEIRA

Co-ownership Scheme 29) - 15915 - - - - - 15915
Issuance of shares for acquisttions SREHBARRIRG

of subsidlaries 29) - 121 - - - - - 7121
Other issuance of shares EHETRA 29() 1 480,760 - - - - - 480,761
Conversion of convertile bonds ShTakES 29(0) - 19,000 - - (4127 - - 14,673
Issuance of shares upon exercise AEARERERIRG

of warrants 29) - 283,149 - - (1,749 - - 281,400
Recogniton of equity-sstled share-based  EZLNEREELR A

compensation: Share option EUHE B 3 - - - 20,426 - - - 20,426
Dividend declared EERkE 29b) - - - - - - (271,956) (271,956)
Loss and fotal comprehensive income~~ ERBER2ANEEE

forthe year - - - - - - 3972) (39727
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 RZE-=F=R=1-H

R-E--EME-H 12 1,983,326 - 32,151 70,667 - (651,414) 1,434,742

Issuance of shares upon exercise of EBREEEARR

share options 29) -+ 134 - (29) - - - 105
Issuance of shares upon exercise AEIREREEIRG

of warrants 2 - 8,400 - - - - - 8,400
Conversion of convertible bonds AR s%’# 20) - 21,449 - - 4,345) - - 17,104
Acquisiton of partal interests in YEREL TR ER

subsidliaries 29() -+ 4,393 - - - - - 4,393
Dividend declared RENTE) 2900) = = = = - = (118,004) (118,004)
Lossand total comprehensive income~~ ERBBRZAREEE

for the year - - - - - (3,900) (20,733) (24,633)
A3 March 2023 A-Z-=Ezf=+-f 1?2070 - 0122 66,322 (3900 (05 1322107
* Amount less than HK$1,000. * % BB R 1,000 7T ©
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29. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND

DIVIDENDS (continued)
(b) Dividends

@i

(ii)

29, BA& - EERKRE @)

Dividends payable by the Company to equity

shareholders:

)

b) BE
i

RRARENEZRRORE

2023 2022
—E_=F k=S =
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHAIT
Interim dividend declared and paid of 2 & JE & 3z~ 41 23A% &
5.80 HK cents per ordinary share TR E AR 5.80 1L
(2022: 10.20 HK cents per ordinary (ZZE = =% : GREZERK
share) 10.207814L) 68,512 120,108
Final dividend of 4.20 HK cents RS BER B BRI S
(2022: 4.20 HK cents) per ordinary S E @A 4.20 751
share proposed after the end of T T 1 4.205810)
the reporting period 49,779 49,492
118,291 169,600
The final dividend proposed after the end of the A i & BRI R 18 30k 38 2 K Hf
reporting period has not been recognised as a liability M2 H AR E BE RER R
at the end of the reporting period. afE -

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the previous
financial year, approved and paid during the

year:

Final dividend in respect of
the previous financial year,
approved and paid during

the year, of 4.20 HK cents per
ordinary share (2022: 12.90 HK

cents per ordinary share)

A L B TRA Y
W REERPEE
RS FRAY 4.20 AL
—E-—F B8R
WAL 12.907810)

(i)

- RFEREEMS TR
DNRARERRORE - RE

FE#ERIKS :
2023 2022
—E=-= T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET T
49,492 151,848

207

FEHE 2022/23



Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

29. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Share capital

29, BA& - EERKRE @)

() M=

2023 2022
== . ——
Number of Number of
shares  HK$'000 shares  HK$'000
RGHE TEx G E! T
Authorised EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.00001 each BRAEE0.00001 BHL AR  38,000,000,000 380,000 38,000,000,000 380,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid ZER CRORERE
At 1 April REA—A 1,178,372,267 12 1,071,015,803 1
Issuance of shares upon exercise of TR R BT ()
share options () 17,500 =* 6,939,000 -
Issuance of shares as part of the BOIRGEAEBUEEN
consideration of business acquisitions (i) BARE( - - 796,360 =
Issuance of shares as part of the BORMEBRFEZRBER
consideration to acquire additional equity WER—RHBARMN
interest in a subsidiary from non-controlling  EBSMNEERER SR 1B (i)
shareholders (ii 852,922 =* - -
Issuance of shares for the Co-ownership AEREEAE
Scheme (iv) BITRIA (v) - - 2,878,125 -
Conversion of convertible bonds (v) BRIARES V) 3,968,576 =+ 3,646,833 =
Issuance of share upon exercise of warrants (iv) Ft1T{iE F AR & 1T (iv) 2,000,000 - 46,246,353 -
Other issuance of shares (vii HABATRRD (vi) - - 46,849,793 1
At 31 March W=A=t+-A 1,185,211,265 12 1178372267 12

* Amount less than HK$1,000.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.
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29. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c)

Share capital (Continued)

M

(i)

(i)

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company
issued nil shares (2022: 1,845,000 shares), nil shares
(2022: 155,000 shares), nil shares (2022: 25,000
shares) and 17,500 shares (2022: 565,000 shares)
upon exercise of share options by the relevant
grantees at exercise prices of HK$3.03, HK$3.50,
HK$5.00 and HK$6.00 respectively under the Share
Option Scheme. These new shares ranked pari passu
in all respects with other shares in issue.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company
allotted and issued 4,349,000 shares to GCP
Properties Limited at exercise price of HK$5.53 per
share upon exercise of share options in connection
with an acquisition of unlisted investment equity.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement
entered into by the Group in connection with the
acquisitions of Bayley & Jackson Dental Surgeons
Limited (“Bayley & Jackson”), 796,360 shares were
allotted and issued to the sellers as part of the
purchase considerations during the year ended 31
March 2022. The shares are measured at quoted
share price on the date of this business acquisition.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement in
connection with the acquisition of additional 7.5%
equity interest in Prime Inspire Limited, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, the Company
allotted and issued 852,922 shares to the sellers as
part of the purchase consideration during the year
ended 31 March 2023.
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(c)

& NE )

M
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AILFE - ARGIRIEERE
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BriZfT{E{E3.0378 T « 3.50/%
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BOTREHOH(ZEZZ

1,845,000 (% B¢ 17 ) « =R A% 1D
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1) o ZEFRMIEFE HHEE
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HIEFE - ARAFRITHEEI
I FMIRERAARE M ER
1% ABR 5538 THIITE
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29. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

EC Healthcare

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company
allotted and issued 2,878,125 shares at aggregate
cash considerations of HK$15,915,000 to an
independent trustee, which subscribed the shares on
behalf of the participants of the Co-ownership
Scheme (see note 30(b)).

During the year ended 31 March 2023, a holder of
convertible bonds partially converted the convertible
bonds with principal amount of HK$20,000,000
(2022: HK$19,000,000) to 3,968,576 (2022:
3,646,833) shares at a conversion price of HK$5.04
(2022: HK$5.21).

During the year ended 31 March 2023, nil shares
(2022: 44,246,353 shares) (see note 32) and
2,000,000 shares (2022: 2,000,000 shares) (see note
31(d)(ii)) were issued and allotted to warrant holders
at exercise prices of HK$6.17 and HK$4.20 with an
aggregate cash consideration of HK$nil (2022:
HK$273,000,000) and HK$8,400,000 (2022:
HK$8,400,000), respectively, upon exercise of such
warrants.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company
allotted and issued 46,849,793 shares at cash
consideration of HK$480,761,000 to an independent
third party.
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(vii)
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29. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

@i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the issuance
of the shares of the Company. Under the Cayman
Companies Law, the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company would be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of the business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the consolidated
share capital of Union (Group) Investment Limited
(“UGIL”) and a subsidiary acquired under common
control.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations outside Hong Kong. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 3.1.

Contribution reserve

The contribution reserve represents the difference
between the share of equity of Union Health Services
Holding Limited and the par value of share capital for
the issuance of new shares arising from the
reorganisation completed prior to the initial public
offering of the Company.
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29. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

EC Healthcare

Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options and share awards granted
to employees, registered practitioners or other third
parties of the Group recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payment in note 3.1.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises:

()  the amount allocated to the unexercised equity
component of convertible bonds and related
warrants issued by the Company in the prior
year, recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy in note 3.1; and

(i) the fair value of warrants issued to the sellers of
Hong Kong Pain and Wellness Solution Limited,
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, to subscribe 10,000,000 shares as
part of the purchase consideration to acquire
24% equity interest in this non-wholly owned
subsidiary in the prior year and adjustment for
the effect arising from exercise of warrants in
the current and prior years.

Other reserve

The other reserve represents the fair value of
consideration payables to acquire the remaining
equity interests in Pathlab Medical Laboratories
Limited, Bayley & Jackson, Pioneer Evolution Limited
and an immaterial business on the respective dates
of completion of the first tranche of such acquisitions.
The subsequent changes in fair value of the
consideration payables are either recognised in profit
or loss or equity depending on the nature of the
transactions.
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(vi)

(vii)
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29. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(viii) Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9
that are held at the end of the reporting period.

(e) Distributability of reserves

As at 31 March 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$1,255,773,000 (2022: HK$1,364,063,000).

30. SHARE AWARD SCHEME AND
CO-OWNERSHIP SCHEME

(@) Share Award Scheme

On 26 September 2016, the Board of directors (the
“Board”) approved the Company’s Employees’ Share
Award Scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”). Pursuant to
the rules of the Share Award Scheme, the Company had
appointed a trustee for the purpose of administering the
Share Award Scheme and holding the shares purchased
for the Share Award Scheme before the award and vesting
of the same. The Company paid to the trustee from time to
time for the purchase of shares held for the Share Award
Scheme from market.

The terms of the Share Award Scheme provide for the
award of shares in the Company to employees of the
Group as part of their compensation package. Subject to
the rules of the Share Award Scheme, the Board shall
determine at the time of grant the vesting date for the
relevant awarded shares.

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, the

Group did not hold any shares for this scheme nor grant
any shares to the employees under this scheme.
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SR

30. SHARE AWARD SCHEME AND
CO-OWNERSHIP SCHEME (continued)

(b)

EC Healthcare

Co-ownership Scheme

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company
adopted the Co-ownership Scheme. Pursuant to the
scheme, the Company would grant shares (“Award
Shares”) to the invited employees of the Group. The
purpose of the Co-ownership Scheme is to incentivise the
employees. The Award Shares are the contingent rights to
receive the Company’s shares depending on the level of
the basic earnings per share (“EPS”) for the year ending 31
March 2023 (2023 EPS”) and the cumulative EPS for the
years ending 31 March 2021, 2022 and 2023 (“3-year
Cumulative EPS”). The minimum level of the EPS and
3-year Cumulative EPS to be achieved before any Award
Shares will be granted are 1.33 times over the basic
earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2020
(“2020 EPS”), and 3.64 times over the 2020 EPS,
respectively.

The invited employees were required to transfer shares or
cash to a trust managed by an independent appointed
trustee, in which the cash was used to (i) acquire shares
from the market or two directors of the Company; or (ii)
subscribe the Company’s shares being allotted at market
price. As at 31 March 2023, 14,636,905 shares (2022:
15,283,120 shares) were held on trust by the trustee on
behalf of the employees.

The Group has not recognised any share-based payment
expenses in connection with the Co-ownership Scheme.
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SR

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on
26 September 2016 whereby the directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group,
including directors of any company in the Group, to take up
options at consideration ranging from HK$3.03 to HK$13.30 to
subscribe for shares of the Company. Unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, the Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective
within 10 years commencing on the date on which it became

BRESE

RRBRZZE-RFAAZTRNBERMBE
iR & ARRESRUERERER
FARERER (BRAREEMNARES)
IARE3.03 /8T % 13.30 /8 LA ME g A -
ARBBARBIRD © BRIERTTREHIERT
BREAEGEEENEARTFREUNL
e BBRER TRHEARNRER
NE—RERER - WERBARMES -

31.

effective. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are

as follows:
Number of
instruments
TEHE
Options granted to directors:
BTFESHNBRE :
— On 26 September 2016 5,020,000
—RIZE-—RENAZTRA
— On 18 September 2017 735,000
—RZE—tFNATN\H
— On 21 August 2018 300,000

- RZZE-N\FNA=-+—H
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(a) WHEFERREEFDT

Contractual life
of options
BRESHEH

Vesting conditions
5B R

Exercisable in ten tranches from
1 January 2017 to
31 December 2026
ANAETHN -_ZE—+F—HA—H
BT RE+TZA=1+—H
BT

10 years

104F

Exercisable in one tranche from
1 January 2027 to
17 September 2027

AR —HR_ZE-_+F—H—H
EE-HFAATHERERE
(oakd

10 years

104F

Exercisable in two tranches from
2 January 2019 to
20 August 2028

A AR -_Z—AF—A_-H
EZ22FN\FN\AZT A HE
118

10 years

104
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LRGeSy
31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. BREE @)
(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are () BREGRREHEDOT : @)
as follows: (Continued)
Number of Contractual life
instruments  Vesting conditions of options
TEE BEEHG BRESHTH
— On 21 August 2018 500,000  Exercisable in four tranches from 10 years
2 January 2019 to
20 August 2028
—RZE-N\FNAZ+—H AD AR -_Z—NF—HA=H 104

22 - \FNA -+ BHHBTE

— On 2 October 2018 100,000  Exercisable in four tranches from 10 years
2 January 2019 to
1 October 2028

—RZE-N\F+A=H AN AMStN-_E—AE—A=H 104

E-FT-)N\F+A-RAHRETRE

— On 2 October 2018 735,000  Exercisable in one tranche from 10 years
3 January 2028 to
1 October 2028

—RZZE-N\F+HA=H ADAE—#HR=ZZE-NF—A=H 104F

E-FT-)N\F+A-RHRETRE

— On 28 November 2018 1,600,000 Exercisable in seven tranches from 9 years
2 January 2019 to
27 November 2028

—RZE-N\F+—A=+/\H A AEtHR-_E—hhF—A=H 9%
ZF_E)N\F+—-—AZ+tHHHE
1718

— On 12 July 2019 1,000,000  Exercisable in four tranches from 5 years
2 January 2020 to
11 July 2024

—RZE-NF+HAT+H A AR _TE=EF—A=H 5%

E-ZTNFEL A+ HHETE
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are
as follows: (Continued)

Number of
instruments
THEHH
— On 16 October 2019 735,000
—RZE—hIF+A+AH
— On 16 October 2019 1,000,000
—RZE-—NAF+A+<A
— On 15 March 2021 2,500,000
—R-E-_—F=A+HA
— On 24 September 2021 10,000,000
—RZZEZ—FNAZ=+HEA
— On 1 December 2021 10,950,000

—RZE——F+=-AF—H

BRRER 217

31. BREE w)
(@) BRHEGRREGNOT @ @)

Contractual life

Vesting conditions of options
SRR BRESHEH
Exercisable in one tranche from 10 years
2 January 2029 to
15 October 2029
ANAE—HRZZE-_AF—A=H 104F
ZZE-AF+A+HAEE
(onkd
Exercisable in five tranches from 10 years
16 October 2019 to
15 October 2029
ASsARMR=ZT—-NF+A+H 104

E-Z-NAFTATRAHETRE

Exercisable in eight tranches from 10 years
15 March 2022 to
14 March 2031

AR/ MR_ZE-Z=_F=A+HH 104
Z-T=—F= A +MBEEMTE

Exercisable in ten tranches from 10 years
26 September 2022 to
23 September 2031

ASATHR-ZT=_=F 104

NE-+ARBE-Z=—%F
HAZ+=REETE

Exercisable in nine tranches from 10 years
1 December 2022 to
30 November 2031

AIDABAMR T -_—F+_-H—H 104
E_F=—Ft+—-A=tTHHH
13E
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. BREE @)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are () BREGRREHEDOT : @)

as follows: (Continued)

Number of Contractual life
instruments  Vesting conditions of options
TEE BEEHG BRESHTH
Options granted to employees:
BT RS NHERE
— On 18 September 2017 655,000 Exercisable in four tranches from 4 years
1 January 2018 to
31 December 2021
—RZE—+FAA+NB AR -_E—N\F—HA—A~H 45
EE-_—F+-A=+—H
HARTTER
— On 10 July 2018 100,000  Exercisable in five tranches from 5 years
2 January 2019 to
31 December 2023
—RZE-N\FLHA+H AISAERAMR-_ZE—hhF—A=H 5%
ECTC=HF+A=1T—RHHH
1718
— On 7 September 2018 100,000  Exercisable in four tranches from 10 years
2 January 2019 to
6 September 2028
—RZE-\FHhLALH A AR _T—NF—A=H 104
Z2ZE - )\FAARNBEMTE
— On 2 October 2018 482,500  Exercisable in four tranches from 10 years
2 January 2019 to
1 October 2028
—RZZE-\F+HZH AN ROANR—_E—-NE—-A=H 104F
ZZE)N\F+A—-BHBETE
— On 28 November 2018 95,000  Exercisable in seven tranches from 10 years
2 January 2019 to
27 November 2028
—RZE-N\F+—A=+N\H AnAtHR_T—NF—A=H 104
ZFEZ)N\FE+—-AZ+tBHE
171%
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are

as follows: (Continued)

Number of

instruments

THEHH

— On 2 July 2019 150,000
—RZE-NFLAZH

— On 5 March 2020 150,000
—RZE-FTF=AFAA

— On 29 July 2021 380,000

—RZIE=—FtHA=+NAH

— On 1 August 2022 3,500,000
—RZEZZFNA—H

— On 5 January 2023 1,800,000
—R-ZE-=F—HAH

Total share options granted to 42,487,500

directors and employees
RYEERESNERESS

BRRER 219

31. BREE w)
(@) BRHEGRREGNOT @ @)

Contractual life

Vesting conditions of options
SRR BRESHTH
Exercisable in three tranches from 4 years
2 January 2020 to 1 July 2023
ANAE=—#RZTE_TF—A=H 44

E-FT-_=—F+A—BHHETE

Exercisable in one tranche from 10 years
5 March 2020 to
7 November 2029

Ao~ IR _ZTF=AHA 104F
E2-FNFT—AEHEETE

Exercisable in four tranches from 10 years
29 July 2021 to
28 July 2031

AN AR —T——4F 104

+tA-thBE-_Z=—%F
+t A=+ N \BHBTE

Exercisable in five tranches from 10 years
1 August 2022 to
31 July 2032

AsARAMR=_TE-__FN\A—H 104
EE=_F+HA=+—HHHE
171%

Exercisable in six tranches from 10 years
5 January 2023 to
4 January 2033

ANAAR-_ZE=-=F—AAH 104F

E-T==F—ANBAHRETE
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise

(c)

EC Healthcare

31. BREE w)
(b) BREHERNEFEIHITEE

prices of share options are as follows: wmr
2022
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
options  exercise price options  exercise price
BRESE MEYHTRE EREZE METHTEE
Outstanding at the beginning of FENRIE

the year 28,715,000 10.94 15,857,500 4.95
Granted during the year FREL 5,300,000 11.7 21,330,000 12.49
Exercised during the year FRNITHE (17,500) 6.00 (2,590,000 3.73
Forfeited during the year FERHER (30,000) 12.46 (5,882,500) 3.61
Qutstanding at the end of the year ~ FRK1T{E 33,967,500 10.56 28,715,000 10.94
Exercisable at the end of the year FRATE 8,630,000 9.31 3,667,500 6.67

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for shares options exercised during the year was HK$7.27
(2022: HK$13.26).

The options outstanding at 31 March 2023 had a weighted
average exercise price of HK$10.56 (2022: HK$10.94) and
a weighted average remaining contractual life of 8.11 years
(2022: 6.02 years).

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services or assets received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair
value of the share options granted is measured based on a
binomial option pricing model, which takes into account the
suboptimal exercise factors and the post-vesting exit rates.
The contractual life of the share option is used as an input
into this model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the model.
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()

AT EITERBRELITE B B
IEFERERT72TET( T =
£ :13.26/87T) °

MR-Z-=F=fF=+—HK{TEHE
R HE R hiE 91T E B 10.56 B 7T
(ZZT-—F:1094%7T) - MHEF
BHREGENFRASMF( T -
& 6.024F) o

BREACFERRR

AR B P # 1 A Bt PR 1S BR A5 3
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SR

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(d) Share options granted other than those
under Share Option Scheme

U

(i)

EC Healthcare

In addition to the share options granted in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme, during
the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group granted
share options by specific mandate to GCP, which
entitle GCP to subscribe for 4,349,000 shares in the
Company at an exercise price of HK$5.53 per share
with a contractual life of three years, as part of the
consideration to acquire an unlisted equity
investment. The share options vested immediately
following the completion of the acquisition of the
unlisted equity investment. The Group measured the
fair value of such grant by reference to the fair value
of the share options granted instead of the fair value
of the investment as it could not be estimated reliably
on the date of acquisition.

The options were exercised during the year ended 31
March 2022 (see note 29(c)(i)).

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement in
connection with the acquisition of additional 24%
equity interest in Hong Kong Pain and Wellness
Solution Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, during the year ended 31 March 2021,
the Group issued warrants which allow the sellers to
subscribe an aggregate number of 10,000,000
shares of the Company within 1-5 years at an
exercise price of HK$4.20. The warrants vested in
stages in 5 years following the completion of the
acquisition. The Group measured the fair value of
such warrants by reference to their fair value based
on a binomial option pricing model.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, 2,000,000
(2022: 2,000,000) shares were allotted and issued at
an exercise price of HK$4.20.

As at 31 March 2023, the warrants granted to the
sellers had a remaining contractual life of 2.4 years
(2022: 3.4 years).
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31. BREE w)

d) SREBRE(ERBERE
FEIR HEBRIM)

M

(i)

BRAR R B AR R AT B 9% M A
G BE_Z—-—NF=ZA
=+—HIFE AEERE
TE R HE R GCP 1% i B Ik - B
T GCP#EFIZ1 T E &M 5.53
7 7T 3R B 7K A 7] 4,349,000 %
B BB AE=ZF  fEAW
I ETREREREN—3
oo BEEIE TR IER B R
TEREBERESSB - AR aElK
BRHEEEGAR  A5HE
BRB2ERNERENQFE
MIERERN AT EFEZFR L
HAF(E o

HE_Z-_—_#=A=1+—H
LEFE - BREETE(2E
M 5E 29(c)(i)) ©

& 1% Bt UX B8 Hong Kong Pain
and Wellness Solution Limited
(RREIMFEZEWNB AR
RHIN24% IREFTET ML B E 1
H EHE-_ZT-—%=A4
=+ —HIEFE  KNEEET
REE  ERHERAR1ES
FRZITEEL4208TREE
$£10,000,000 % A& A 7 B 17 e
RN EEIER - RIREE
NEFRDEERFRB - NEE
K2ERE - HAHETER
NELRBREEFENRFETZ
R EFERNAFE -
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T{EE 420 B U AL B ] 3517 ©

RZE-_=ZF=ZA=+—8"
BEHERNRREENFGRE
HHR B2AFE (T ==
34%) -

Annual Report 2022/23



Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

32. AIRRES
HE-_ZT-—F=A=+—HIEFE &

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company issued 3
tranches of convertible bonds. The bondholders are entitled to
exercise the conversion rights to convert the principal amount
outstanding at a pre-determined conversion price at any time up
to the maturity of the convertible bonds. The details of the
convertible bonds are as follows:

Tranche

#x

Tranche A

z—

Tranche B

F=

Tranche C

o —

sH=

#

#

#t

Principal

amount

Issue date outstanding

BTAH AEEBRLE

5 February 2021 HK$234,000,000

(2022: HK$234,000,000)

—E-—fF 234,000,000 7t
—AER (Z%==

234,000,000 7T)

5 February 2021 HKSnil

(2022: HK$20,000,000)

—E--F THT
—AEA (Z%==

20,000,000

8 February 2021 HK$31,200,000

(2022: HK$31,200,000)

—T-—F 31,200,0007% 7T

—ANB (ZFZ=F:
31,200,000 % 7T)

Interest
rate

per annum
FRE

2.5%

2.5%

2.5%

Maturity date
)=

4 February 2026

TZCRE

—AmH

4 February 2026

ZECRE

—AmA

7 February 2026

ZRCRE

ZRtH

Note: In addition to the conversion rights in connection with the convertible
bonds as stated above, the Company issued warrants which allow the
bondholders to subscribe for an aggregate number of 50,145,867
shares at an exercise price of HK$6.17 with aggregate consideration of
HK$309,400,000. As at 31 March 2023, the outstanding warrants
would allow the bondholders to subscribe for 5,899,514 shares (2022:
5,899,514 shares).

It is provided in the subscription agreements for the convertible bonds
that if the controlling shareholder of the Company, Mr. Tang Chi Fai,
ceases to be the controlling shareholder of the Company owning less
than 51% of the total issued shares of the Company, then the
bondholders are entitled to request immediate repayment of the
outstanding convertible bonds and all accrued interest.
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RABITHABBRES - BHFBEAR
RTT AR - MR AR IE S5 B B AT ke
FZELEENRRESRAEERNSHE -
AR EFHNFERT

Original  Conversion
conversion price
price per share
per share (adjusted)
SRERKRE SRERE
(%)
HK$5.69 HK$5.50
(note)
5.697 T 55087
GiES)
HK$5.21 HK$5.04
52187 5.0477C
HK$5.69 HK$5.50
(note)
5.69757T 5.50/87T
(HizE)
GER
RRATEITRRES -

Conversion
period
BRI

At any time up to
maturity date

EEE ek
el

Atany time up to
maturity date

BEZEIEAR
B

Atany time up to
maturity date

EEE |
AR

B an_b SRt A B8 R AR AR (B 5 RO B A A S
HAEZFE AN

T E6.17% TR i & $£50,145,867 % ik
% 8K (8 A309,400,0007 L © N = &
ZZFZA=ZT—B HROTERBRERR
HFEHZAE ARESB9514BKH (=
— 4 15,809,514 f (D) ©

ARRESN BB R T - WAQF
BIREEEEETBREBS AR AIBET
B& ) 48 B 51% AR BV AR D RIFE IR AR R - R
EAFBEABRERLANMEEREENTT AR

IE5 M AAA RS o
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Upon the issuance of convertible bonds, the liability component
was initially measured at its fair value of HK$238,118,000. The
residual amount of HK$66,082,000 was recognised as capital
reserve within the equity (see note 29(d)(vi)).

During the year ended 31 March 2023, HK$4,345,000 (2022:
HK$2,862,000) was transferred to share premium from capital
reserve upon the partial conversion of convertible bonds with
principal amount of HK$20,000,000 (2022: HK$19,000,000).

The liability component of convertible bonds was analysed as

32.

R ES @)

RETAIRRESE  BERIVLRE
AN F{E238,118,000/8 Lt & - Fp & 5
66,082,000, T Jh A 25 N FE R A B A 7
& (R FE29(d)(vi)) °

HEZ-_=ZF=-A=t—HLFE" R®
B AS 520,000,000 (ZE ==
£ 119,000,000/ T ) & A ¥ iR & % 55 -
4,345,000/ 7T (Z 2 = —4F : 2,862,000/8
TL) BB A EERERDEE -

A ESFNEERO T

follows:
2023 2022
—=E_= -
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#E T FAT
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 230,132 235,709
EC Healthcare 224 Annual Report 2022/23



Notes to the Financial Statements

B H5 R B et

33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

(@ Summary of acquisitions for the year ended

31 March 2023

The fair value of the net assets acquired through business
acquisitions as at the date of acquisitions is as follows:

33. KW

(@ RBE=-EB=-_=ZF=A=1+-—

AL FERNYIREE

B B SRE BRI T KR
AEHATENT -

Total identifiable net assets AHAFEERSE 34,584 30,648 9,118 74,350
Non-controlling interests It = (8,646) (21,355) (3,868) (33,869)
Goodwill on acquisitions WEEEREPE 15,312 21,952 4,688 41,952
Consideration for the acquisitions i i&E Bt (B 41,250 31,245 9,938 82,433
Cash consideration paid FREMNRERE

during the year 41,250 36,400 16,620 94,270
Cash and cash equivalents FlERE &

acquired REEED (16,054) (32,840) (3,267) (52,161)
Net outflow of cash and STARE GRS

cash equivalents included RENRERRS

in cash flows of SEYR L FE

investing activities 25,196 3,560 13,353 42,109

The Group measured the non-controlling interests at their
proportionate share of these subsidiaries’ net identifiable
assets.

Had the acquisitions taken place at the beginning of the
year ended 31 March 2023, the consolidated revenue of
the Group and the consolidated profit of the Group for the
year would have been HK$4,020 million and HK$113
million, respectively. In aggregate, the Group incurred net
cash outflow totalling HK$42 million from acquisitions of
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2023.
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(@) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2023 (Continued)

The business acquisitions are analysed in below:

@i

EC Healthcare

Mobile Medical International Holdings Limited

On 23 May 2022, Union Preventive Healthcare
Limited (“Union Preventive”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, entered into sales and
purchase agreement with the sellers (“Mobile
Medical’s Sellers”) to acquire 75% of the equity
interest in Mobile Medical International Holdings
Limited (“Mobile Medical”) at a consideration of
HK$41,250,000. Mobile Medical is principally
engaged in the provision of comprehensive health
screening services.

Upon completion of the acquisition on 14 June 2022,
Mobile Medical became a non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group.

The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s
strategy in further consolidate its position in the health
screening market in Hong Kong.

The goodwill of HK$15 million arising from the
acquisition was attributable to the synergy from the
share of customer pool with other businesses of the
Group.

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of
HK$126,000. These costs have been charged to
“administrative and other expenses” in the
consolidation statement of profit or loss for the year.
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33. EBUWE @)

@ HBE-—s-=£=g=+-
BLEFENBBHRE @

BT -

U]

Mobile Medical International
Holdings Limited

RZEZ—_FRA=+=8"
KEB 2 EWE A aUnon
Preventive Healthcare Limited
([Union Preventive]) 8 & 7
(TMobile Medical ¥ & 75 1) &7
BB Wk BAUEE Mobile
Medical International Holdings
Limited ([ Mobile Medical]) &7
75% [ - (B 741,250,000
77T ° Mobile Medical = Z# =
REEOERES SR -

MR- —FXA+UHTK
Iy B# 51814 » Mobile Medical A%
AREBENIEZEWB AT °

FRARBEERANEEE—S
EEENEBEREHEM IS
i1 2 SREGH) —FE 7 ©

WREELNHE1ISEEBTLD
KEEAREEMEBNEP
BHZ R0 FRUE -

AEBEANBERERARA
126,000/8 7T ° #% F A A5 A
FREGEEBEXRTTHREEM
] A
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued) 33. EBUWE @)
(@) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended (@ MRBEZE-_=F=A=1+-—
31 March 2023 (Continued) HEFENWEEE @)
(i) Mobile Medical International Holdings Limited () Mobile Medical International
(Continued) Holdings Limited (#&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of F U EE B H5 - Mobile Medical &9
Mobile Medical as at the date of acquisition is as AFEERBENATFEN
follows: N
Total
et
Note HK$°000
B 5E FHT
Property, plant and equipment ME - WS KRR 11,004
Inventories FE 402
Trade and other receivables Z 5 I E Ath FEYRIE 22,694
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEEY 16,054
Trade and other payables 5 N EAM RS FRIE (41,784)
Lease liabilities AEaf (6,521)
Intangible assets on acquisition e E A E 39,204
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEAE (6,469)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATERENREMFEEERE 34,584
Non-controlling interests JEIE R T (8,646)
Goodwill on acquisition W EARNEE 14 15,312
Consideration RE 41,250
Cash consideration paid during the year ~ FRNBEAEHSRE 41,250
Cash and cash equivalents acquired T EIR ¢ MRS EEY (16,054)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents st AR EZEFHESTRENH SR
included in cash flows of ReFEYRLFE
investing activities 25,196
Since the acquisition, Mobile Medical contributed BlEEER B2 _T==
HK$106 million to the Group’s revenue and a profit of FZA=t+—RBLFE"
HK$19 million to the Group’s consolidated profit for Mobile Medical ¥ 7% & E U A 1E
the year ended 31 March 2023. 106 EEBTHMER - R

AR ER -

The intangible assets are amortised over their B EEREMGEAIERSE
estimated useful lives. HRVERESY o
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(@ Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2023 (Continued)

(ii)

EC Healthcare

Pioneer Evolution Limited

On 30 September 2022, Team Expert Investment
Limited (“Team Expert”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group entered into sales and
purchase agreement with the sellers (“Pioneer
Sellers”) to acquire 60% of the equity interest in
Pioneer Evolution Limited which principally holds
50.54% issued share capital in Sure-Care Medical
and Health Limited (“Surecare”) at a consideration of
HK$36,400,000.

Surecare principally engaged in the provision of multi-
disciplinary healthcare services in Hong Kong with a
focus on the provision of specialty services under the
business name of Sure-Care Medical and Health
Network (15 Z#448). Upon completion of the
acquisition on 18 January 2023, Surecare became a
non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

A profit guarantee arrangement is included in the
agreement. Under the arrangement, the Pioneer
Sellers agreed to guarantee the profit generated by
Surecare for coming 5 years of not less than HK$70
million. The Pioneer Sellers shall compensate the
shortfall of the profit attributable to Team Expert in
accordance with the sale and purchase agreement.
Management expected certain profit targets as stated
in the sale and purchase agreement would not be
met. Taking into account the corresponding
adjustment on the above variable considerations, the
present value of the aggregate consideration in
connection with the acquisition of Surecare on the
completion date was HK$31,245,000.

The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s
strategy in business expansion of medical services.

The goodwill of HK$22 million arising from the
acquisition was attributable to the synergy from the
share of customer pool with other businesses of the
Group.

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of
HK$150,000. These costs have been charged to
“administrative and other expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.
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33. EBUWE @)

@) RBE-—B-=F=H=+-—
ALEFENBBHRE @

(ii)

Pioneer Evolution Limited

RZZ_ZFNAA=+HB" XK
SENEE2ENB AR Team
Expert Investment Limited
([Team Expert]) £ & 7
([Pioneer& 75 1) 5] 3L B B #
# - AR {E36,400,0007% s i
#& Pioneer Evolution Limited (&
EREERBERAER QA
50.54% ) B 1Tl A ) ([ 1=
Bz 1) 60% A -

ERIENREENERHSE
MEBRRY - FINAEHEES
fEgmEERREIEHENR
B-R-ZZE-_=F—A+/\H
STRMEIR - EEKRRAEE
FEREMBAR -

ZHEEE —DHERANREL
BE o IRIEZLHE - Pioneer & 7
BAEREERERARSFME
FHVEN A DRTOBEETT ©
RiEE F 7% - Poneer & 5 &
# {8 Team Expert J& 164 1 {a] 3%
=g EREETEERS
Frat s T2 5 B iZgEmEia
/o ZEEE LA R ENE
fEREE BWEEREENE
KEBRTXKBHRES
31,245,000 7T °

FRARBEERANEEBEER
BEBRERRIEH—#D

WEHELNHE2AEETTY
KAEAREREMEBNEP
BHE 0 FIRUE

AEBEENKEMBRBEKAS
150,000/ 7T ° % F K AR5 A
FRGEEBERITTHEEM
] Ae
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued) 33. EBUWE @)
(@) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended (@ MRBEZE-_=F=A=1+-—
31 March 2023 (Continued) HEFENWEEE @)
(i) Pioneer Evolution Limited (Continued) (i) Pioneer Evolution Limited
(4&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of RUEBH - ERAAEAE
Surecare as at the date of acquisition is as follows: EXREREHQATEET
Total
et
Note HK$’000
B ek FHT
Property, plant and equipment M - B R 16,835
Inventories 7E 3,718
Trade and other receivables H 5 I E Ath JEYRIE 5,824
Current tax recoverable BJ Uy [E] BN ER TR T8 736
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEEY 32,840
Trade and other payables 5 N EAM RS FRIE (33,428)
Lease liabilities AEaf (15,305)
Intangible assets on acquisition WEERTIS BT EE 23,267
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEAE (3,839)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATEENREMFEEERE 30,648
Non-controlling interests FEFEARIE A (21,355)
Goodwill on acquisition W EARNEE 14 21,952
Consideration RE 31,245
Cash consideration paid during the year ~ FRNBEAEHSRE 36,400
Cash and cash equivalents acquired TR ¢ MRS EEY (32,840)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents st AIREEZEIE S REN
included in cash flows of investing RE KB EEBWMRT FE
activities 3,560
Since the acquisition, Surecare contributed HK$29 BWEEER #E-_F==
million to the Group’s revenue and a profit of HK$3 FZA=T-HLEFE EF
million to the Group’s consolidated profit for the year HAEBRAEL 20B BT
ended 31 March 2023. WER - REAEBLGREETF

EH3EEETENOER

The intangible assets are amortised over their B EEDREMGAAIERE
estimated useful lives. HAVEHESH o
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

33. EBUWE @)

(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended b) ARBE-ZE-__F=A=+-—
31 March 2022 HIEFERNWEHSE
The fair value of the net assets acquired through business PR B BRI B RS WU P U 1%
acquisitions as at the date of acquisitions is as follows: BENATEEOT :
Premier Excellent
Medical Power
Dr. Tiong’s  Group (BVI) Bayley Investments
Clinics Limited & Jackson Limited Others Total
Premier Excellent
Medical Power
REME  Group (BVI) Investments
2 Limited  EFEE Limited Hity @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TEx TEr FTExT TR FExT FTERT
Total identifiable net assets AR FEEAR 31,307 74,623 59,109 47,920 45,702 258,661
Non-controlling interests SRR (15,340) (22,387) (26,599) - (22,299) (86,625)
Goodwill on acquisitions WEEERNHE 39,760 47,764 94,042 20,080 30,071 231,717
Consideration for iEEEmRE
the acquisitions 55,727 100,000 126,552 68,000 53,474 403,753
Cash consideration paid FRENRERE
during the year 66,000 100,000 119,424 68,000 41,735 395,159
Cash and cash equivalents FriiER e &
acquired BeZEY (31,429) (36,548) (15,330) (1819) (23,086) (108,212
Net outflow of cash and HARBEDRS
cash equivalents included RENRE LA
in cash flows of ZEMRLFE
investing activities 34,571 63,452 104,094 66,181 18,649 286,947

The Group measured the non-controlling interests at their
proportionate share of these subsidiaries’ net identifiable
assets.

Had the acquisitions taken place at the beginning of the
year ended 31 March 2022, the consolidated revenue of
the Group and the consolidated profit of the Group for the
year would have been HK$3,514 million and HK$293
million, respectively. In aggregate, the Group incurred net
cash outflow totalling HK$287 million from acquisitions of
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(b)

Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

The business acquisitions are analysed in below:

@i

Dr. Tiong’s Clinics

On 15 June 2021, High Group Corporation Limited
(“High Group”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, entered into sale and purchase agreements
with the sellers (“Dr. Tiong’s Clinics Sellers”), to
acquire 51% of the equity interest in each of King
Equity Investments Limited (“King Equity”), Eternal
Harvest International Limited (“Eternal Harvest”),
Hong Kong Veterinary Imaging Center Limited
(“HKVIC”) and Crown Leader Limited (“Crown
Leader”), respectively. King Equity, Eternal Harvest,
HKVIC and Crown Leader (collectively, “Dr. Tiong
Clinics”) are principally engaged in the provision of
veterinary services in Hong Kong.

According to the agreements, High Group paid an
aggregate cash consideration of HK$66,000,000 for
these acquisitions. Upon completion of the acquisition
on 20 August 2021, Dr. Tiong Clinics became a non
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group.

Profit guarantee arrangements are included in the
agreements. Under the arrangements, Dr. Tiong
Clinics Sellers agreed to guarantee the aggregate
profit generated by Eternal Harvest, HKVIC and
Crown Leader for the coming 5 years of not less than
HK$50 million, and profit of King Equity for the
coming 7 years of not less than HK$121 million,
respectively. Dr. Tiong’s Clinics Sellers shall
compensate the shortfall of the profit attributable to
High Group in accordance with the sale and
purchase agreements.
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33. EBUWE @)

b) REE-—B-_—F=H=+-—
BULEFENBBHRE @

BT -

(U

RENEZ T

RZZE=Z—FxXA+HH K
EE2ENBARSBEES
RAal([EHEE]) HE S
([REABZAEAHIVESE
W WKEZBREBRA
AI(T=M]))  BLEEERA
AI(EL]) HEBRBEEH
LDBERAG([EEEREZGR
) RgEEAR AT (4258 1)
EZB51%BEE-FH HE -
EABRBEERORET (&K
BIREB2M) EBREE
WERHEEERT -

REHZ S8 EXZEFR
BEEXNRERASAKRE
66,000,000/ R =T = —
FNAAZ+HTEKEBE SRR
% REBZAKAREEN
F2EMBEAR -
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

@i

EC Healthcare

Dr. Tiong’s Clinics (Continued)

Management expected certain profit targets as stated
in the sale and purchase agreements would not be
met. Taking into account the corresponding
adjustment on the above variable considerations, the
present value of the aggregate consideration in
connection with the acquisitions of Dr. Tiong’s Clinics
on the completion date was HK$55,727,000.

The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s
strategy in expansion of medical specialist
operations.

The goodwill of HK$40 million arising from the
acquisition was attributable to the synergy from the
share of customer pool with other businesses of the
Group.

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of
HK$206,000. These costs have been charged to
“administrative and other expenses” in the
consolidation statement of profit or loss for the year.
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b) REE-—B-_—F=H=+-—
BULEFENBBHRE @

@

RENERD AT ()

BEEERHNEEGRMEET
AN B BRERED - ZEIY
TR ERERE
X A B SR BREE 2 Py A 1K
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued) 33. EBUWE @)
(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended b) ARBE-ZE-__F=A=+-—
31 March 2022 (Continued) HIEFENKBHSE @)
(i) Dr. Tiong’s Clinics (Continued) () REREBZAT(E)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of PUEE B H - SRERE 2 TR Al
Dr. Tiong’s Clinics as at the date of acquisition is as BREERAGBHATEN
follows: N
Total
et
Note HK$’000
B ek FHT
Property, plant and equipment M - B R 12,113
Inventories FE 2,601
Trade and other receivables H 5 I E Ath JEYRIE 9,048
Cash and cash equivalents HeERBEEEY 31,429
Trade and other payables 2 5 REMENFIE (46,918)
Current tax payable e BIER T T8 (2,300)
Lease liabilities MEBE (8,261)
Intangible assets on acquisition WEsR B L E 40,233
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEAE (6,638)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAFEFENA B FEERTE 31,307
Non-controlling interests JEIE R T (15,340)
Goodwill on acquisition W EARNEE 14 39,760
Consideration RE 55,727
Cash consideration paid during the year ~ FRNBEAEHSRE 66,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired TR ¢ MRS EEY (31,429)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents st AREEZEFHEESTRENH SR
included in cash flows of ReFEYRLFE
investing activities 34,571
Since the acquisition, Dr. Tiong’s Clinics contributed SRR S ——
HK$44 million to the Group’s revenue and HK$11 FZA=F+—RHLFE K&
million to the Group’s consolidated profit for the year B AREERAEL 478
ended 31 March 2022. BATHER - REAREEEL

AEAMER T BEETHER

The intangible assets are amortised over their B EEDREMGAIERSE
estimated useful lives. HRYVERESH o
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

(ii)

EC Healthcare

Premier Medical Group (BVI) Limited

On 5 November 2021, Jade Master International
Limited (“Jade Master”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to acquire 70% of the equity interest in
Premier Medical Group (BVI) Limited (“PMC”), at a
cash consideration of HK$100,000,000.

PMC is principally engaged in provision of medical
services. Upon completion of the acquisition on 31
December 2021, PMC became a non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group.

A revenue guarantee arrangement is included in the
agreement. Under the arrangement, the sellers of
PMC (“PMC sellers”) agreed to guarantee the
aggregate revenue of PMC shall be no less than
HK$1,177 million for the coming 4 years. PMC sellers
shall compensate Jade Master for any shortfall
attributable to Jade Master in accordance with the
sale and purchase agreement.

Management expected all of the revenue targets in
relation to revenue guarantee as stated in the sale

and purchase agreement will be met.

The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s
strategy in business expansion of medical services.
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b) REE-—B-_—F=H=+-—
BULEFENBBHRE @

(ii)

Premier Medical Group (BVI)
Limited

RZZT-_—F+—HAAB K
£E2 & B AR Jade Master
International Limited ([ Jade
Master] 5] 37 B Z i a& - AR
% £ & 100,000,000 7 7T U i
Premier Medical Group (BVI)
Limited ([PMC J) #) 70% % #% -

PMC X ZEM BRHEEERY -
RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H
TRUEER PMCH AL EE
FEEWBAA -

ZhEeFE —HRARESR
o RIEZZHE - PMCRVE
(TPMCE 7 1) Al & R EPMC
RIRAFHBRABRET DR
1T17T7TEEE T REEEWH
## * PMC & /7 JE M) Jade Master
18 18 1T f] Jade Master & 1f =

BEEE  EEEBETHA
att E WA R 5 B BR O P B M
BRI ER -
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued) 33. EBUWE @)
(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended b) ARBE-ZE-__F=A=+-—
31 March 2022 (Continued) HLEFENKRESRE @
(i) Premier Medical Group (BVI) Limited (ii)  Premier Medical Group (BVI)
(Continued) Limited (#&)
The goodwill of HK$48 million arising from the WHEEENMB48EEETD
acquisition was attributable to the synergy from the REAEBEMERTFRL
share of customer pool with other businesses of the Z R EIE -
Group.
The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of REBEEEMEERBRKAR A
HK$506,000. These costs have been charged to 506,000/ 7T ° ZE K AE K
“administrative and other expenses” in the FAMGZaBEmKxB [TTH R
consolidation statement of profit or loss for the year. HAbFZ ] 0Bk ©
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of RUBE B - PMCHY A S BIE
PMC as at the date of acquisition is as follows: ENAEBENAFEDNT
Total
et
Note HK$’000
Ffi o FERT
Property, plant and equipment ME -~ W= NKRE 58,756
Inventories FE 4,435
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E AU GRIA 16,626
Cash and cash equivalents HeRRSEEY 36,548
Trade and other payables E 5 REMENTE (55,657)
Current tax payable FETRD AR TE (1,951)
Lease liabilities HEaE (55,485)
Intangible assets on acquisition WS EF B E 85,635
Deferred tax liabilities EEFREEE (14,284)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BN ERENA R FEELRE 74,623
Non-controlling interests IR AR i = (22,387)
Goodwill on acquisition B EENEE 14 47,764
Consideration KB 100,000
Cash consideration paid during the year ~ FXRENIRESHK(E 100,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FritiEIR e MR EEY (36,548)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents st AREEHIRESTEN
included in cash flows of investing HENRSZEEBYnE 58
activities 63,452
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

EC Healthcare

Premier Medical Group (BVI) Limited
(Continued)

Since the acquisition, PMC contributed HK$60 million
to the Group’s revenue and HK$0.3 million to the
Group’s consolidated profit for the year ended 31
March 2022.

The intangible assets are amortised over their
estimated useful lives.

Bayley & Jackson

On 29 November 2021, Union Dental Holding Limited
(“Union Dental”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with the sellers (“B&J Sellers), to acquire 55% of the
equity interest in Bayley & Jackson. Bayley and
Jackson is principally engaged in provision of dental
services.

According to the agreement, the Group acquired
55% of the equity interest at an aggregate
consideration of comprising (i) cash consideration of
HK$119,424,000; and (i) the allotment and issuance
of 796,360 new shares of the Company which the
consideration is based on the share price of
completion date. Upon completion of the acquisition
on 17 January 2022, Bayley & Jackson became a
non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.
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b) REE-—B-_—F=H=+-—
BULEFENBBHRE @

(ii)

(iii)

Premier Medical Group (BVI)
Limited (#&)

BlEEER HE-T -
FZA=Z+—HIEFE PMC
HAREBRAEL0AEE T
WER - REAEBLLRE T
EHO3BEEBITMER

BIVEETRE G AT ERASE
HAE B -

EEFEE

RZEZ—F+—HA=+nh
A AEEZ2ENE 2T Union
Dental Holding Limited ([ Union
Dental]) B2 & 75 ([ EAERE &
F DI EE B - AKERE
FIIEE 1 55% X i o FEFITE =
FERBRBETEIRG -

RIE Tk - AN B IR 55% %
BoBEREEFEIEESRE
119,424,000 T+ K (i) Bid 3%
N B 77 796,360 B 78 A &) F A%
7 ZRETRIETE B EA
BEFE - NZTE_—F—H8
THBETRKREEERE - R
BEXAAEEREEENE

A -
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

(iii)

Bayley & Jackson (Continued)

A profit guarantee arrangement is included in the
agreement. Under the arrangement, the B&J Sellers
agreed to guarantee the profit generated by Bayley &
Jackson for coming 7 years of not less than HK$120
million. The B&J Sellers shall compensate the shortfall
of the profit attributable to Union Dental in
accordance with the sale and purchase agreement.
Management expected the guarantee profit will be
met.

In addition, a put option was granted to B&J Sellers
to dispose of the remaining equity interest held by
them to Union Dental if the future profit for coming 7
years is met, at a cash consideration dependent on
the future profit. The estimated consideration payable
of HK$165,273,000 was included in non-current
portion of other payable and accruals as at 31 March
2022,

The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s
strategy in business expansion of medical services.

The goodwill of HK$94 million arising from the
acquisition was attributable to the synergy from the
share of customer pool with other businesses of the
Group.

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of
HK$300,000. These costs have been charged to
“administrative and other expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.
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33. EBUWE @)

b) REE-—B-_—F=H=+-—
BULEFENBBHRE @

(iii)

FERIRREE (48)

ZHEEE—MEANREL
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FREREBEEMBERART?
FRREENRMNTDR1208
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IR ERE - EEBEHRFR

EH g ER -

AN BT REANEE BT RN
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued) 33. EBUWE @)
(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended b) ARBE-ZE-__F=A=+-—
31 March 2022 (Continued) HIEFENKBHSE @)
(iii) Bayley & Jackson (Continued) (i) FEFIEE (&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of RUEE B HE - EERTEE 89 AT
Bayley & Jackson as at the date of acquisition is as FEERBBENRTFENT
follows:
Total
et
Note HK$’000
B ek FHT
Property, plant and equipment Y - B KRR 21,754
Inventories 7E 956
Trade and other receivables H 5 I E Ath Y RIE 5,592
Cash and cash equivalents HENBELEEYD 15,330
Trade and other payables 5 R EAMRESFRIE (14,042)
Current tax payable e BIER T T8 (1,200)
Lease liabilities HEaR (16,079)
Intangible assets on acquisition WEERTIS BT EE 56,046
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEAE (9,248)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATERENREMFEEERE 59,109
Goodwill on acquisition W EA R EE 14 94,042
Consideration RE 126,552
Cash consideration paid during the year ~ FRDIRESHRE 119,424
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FTREIR & RIS EEY (15,330)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents st AREEH RS THENIHR S
included in cash flows of RRSSEDREFE
investing activities 104,094
Since the acquisition, Bayley & Jackson contributed EIEEIERE  BHE-T =
HK$14 million to the Group’s revenue and a loss of FZA=F+—HLEFE  EF
HK$0.7 million to the Group’s consolidated profit for BEHASERAEL 1488
the year ended 31 March 2022, BIWER  REAEEES
mAIEHEBBOTESBTH
=1
The intangible assets are amortised over their BIZEEDREMGFAIERE
estimated useful lives. HAVERRSH o
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

(iv)

Excellent Power Investments Limited

On 16 February 2022, Union (Group) Investment
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement to
acquire entire equity interest in Excellent Power
Investments Limited (“Excellent Power”) at a cash
consideration of HK$68,000,000. Excellent Power
carries on its business with the brand name “GenRx
Healthcare Group”.

Excellent Power operates a comprehensive
healthcare service network in Hong Kong and Macau.
Upon completion of the acquisition on 31 March
2022, Excellent Power became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group.

The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s
strategy in business expansion of medical services.

The goodwill of HK$20 million arising from the
acquisition was attributable to the synergy from the
share of customer pool with other businesses of the
Group.

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of
HK$200,000. These costs have been charged to
“administrative and other expenses” in the
consolidation statement of profit or loss for the year.
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33. EBUWE @)

b) REE-—B-_—F=H=+-—
BULEFENBBHRE @

(iv)

Excellent Power Investments
Limited

W-ZE-—F-F+XHB A&
REIHMZEMBRAREA (%
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued) 33. EBKWE @)
(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended b) RBEZE-_Z—F=A=1+-—
31 March 2022 (Continued) HIEFENKBHSE @)
(iv) Excellent Power Investments Limited (iv) Excellent Power Investments
(Continued) Limited (4&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of 7 U B& B Hi - Excellent Power
Excellent Power as at the date of acquisition is as WA EERBENATE
follows: W
Total
et
Note HK$°000
B 5E FEx
Property, plant and equipment YIE - WS KRR 34,792
Inventories FE 5,740
Trade and other receivables Z 5 R EAM IR GRIE 14,649
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEEY 1,819
Trade and other payables 5 N EAM RS FRIE (21,169)
Current tax payable A~ BN HAR 18 (167)
Lease liabilities AEBE (18,605)
Intangible assets on acquisition WHERIS BRIV EE 36,959
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE (6,098)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATEREMA R FEELRE 47,920
Goodwill on acquisition W EARNEE 14 20,080
Consideration RE 68,000
Cash consideration paid during the year ~ FRNBEAEHSRE 68,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired T EIR ¢ MRS EEY (1,819)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents st AIREEZEIH S REN
included in cash flows of investing RelReEBYnL F58
activities 66,181
Excellent Power did not contribute any material HE—_Z-_—F=RA=+—H
revenue nor profit for the year ended 31 March 2022. IF % £ Excellent Power 17 %

BRMEAERBARER

The intangible assets are amortised over their B EEIZEMGEAIERSF
estimated useful lives. ERVEBESH -
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34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements are as

follows:
Bank guarantee given to a landlord HESIEE AN EmEFRE
for a property leased for own use RITHEAR

. ZAREE

RIRE R - MR A B REMETR
BEHRARENT -

2023 2022
—E=-= —E - F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET T

- 646

35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Board has approved to establish imaging centers and
integrated medical clinics and entered into agreements to acquire
certain property, plant and equipment, with aggregate capital
expenditure of approximately HK$30 million (2022: HK$200
million) as at 31 March 2023.

In addition, the Group was committed at 31 March 2023 to enter
into few new leases that is not yet commenced, the aggregate
lease payments without considering the extension options
amounted to HK$380 million (2022: HK$44.9 million).
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed

36. EBLRS

(@ FRUBHRREMBOAFANZZH R

elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the EERON - NEEFANEEE A N
following material transactions with related parties during WNERARS :
the year:
2023 2022
—==-= —E-—
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M aE F#&T FH&T
Companies beneficially owned HBEEER
by Tang Chi Fai BERNAT
Lease rentals payment EMS MK (i) 2,124 1,968
Companies beneficially owned HETERBER
by the spouse of Tang Chi Fai BEENAT
Lease rentals payment AERSMRK i) 288 264
Joint ventures aEhE
Purchases of skincare and BEEBEREAEMR
beauty products and medical BEREM
consumables (ii) 17,750 19,385
Purchases of property, plant and BEYXE  BERXHE
equipment (iii) 112,661 53,190
Equipment maintenance REHERGE
service fee (iv) 3,786 5,366
Companies beneficially =2 PN R
owned by non-controlling FERBRRER
shareholders of subsidiaries BEEMNAT
Lease rentals payment HEZSMR (i) 2,208 2,208
Companies beneficially HEBREN —BREXE
owned by a family member of BEXEENALAT
Lu Lyn Wade Leslie
Lease rentals payment HEZRSAR 0] 16,037 1,881
Notes: Mk

(i) The lease rentals were charged from the related parties
according to mutually agreed terms.

(ii) Purchases were made with the joint ventures according to the
mutually agreed terms.

(iii) ltems of property, plant and equipment were purchased from
joint ventures according to mutually agreed terms.

(iv) Equipment maintenance service fee was charged from the joint
ventures according to mutually agreed terms.
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

Al members of key management personnel are directors of
the Company, and their compensations are disclosed in
note 9.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, Wong Chi Cheung,
executive director of the Company, obtained a loan of
HK$2,900,000, which is unsecured, interest-bearing at
3.5% per annum and repayable in 2025. The maximum
amount due from this executive director during the year
ended 31 March 2023 and the balance as at 31 March
2023 amounted to HK$2,900,000 (2022: HK$2,900,000).

There was no continuing connected transaction nor
connected transaction entered by the Group during the
years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 which is required to
be disclosed under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
related party transactions with entities beneficially owned
by Tang Chi Fai or his spouse or non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries disclosed in note 36(a) are
exempted from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules as they are below the de minimis
threshold under Rule 14A.76(1).
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(b)
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37. TREABEERSMIAND

VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and equity price and
investment risks. The directors review and agree policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group.

The Group was involved in the provision of medical, aesthetic
medical, beauty and wellness and multi-channel networking and
related services and the sale of skincare, healthcare and beauty
products and receivable balances are mainly from financial
institutions in respect of credit card receivables and other
institutional customers arising from medical and multi-channel
networking and related services. Receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis by senior management and the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. In addition, the
Group’s bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets arises from
the default of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these financial assets.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix or based on the probabilities of default with
reference to available market information. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases.

No allowance in respect of expected credit loss have been
recognised as the management assessed the risk of default
based on historical experience and forward looking element is
not significant.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37. TREABREERSMIAND

VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FEE @
(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERE &)
The following table provides information about the Group’s TRBIWR B -_=ZFR-_FE-_—F=A
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables as at 31 March 2023 =+ —HASEARKREERRBONER
and 2022:
2023 2022
—E=-= k- == =
(e[ RN M  Gross carrying
amount amount
IREAE FRE4E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current (not past due) BNHR (ki@ HR) 130,505 109,877
Less than 3 months past due wHEI DR BE A 59,446 38,891
3 to 6 months past due wEI3 =618 A 16,635 4,511
7 to 12 months past due wmHEA7T = 12M@ A 4,563 1,151
More than 1 year past due BE1F M 737 1,063
211,886 155,493
Liquidity risk REBESERE
The Group monitors and maintains a sufficient level of cash and AEBEEEREFEEERATENRS
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to RReZEBYMKT  UBNAREENEE
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of LERERESRERDNTE - TEE T H
fluctuation in cash flows. Management reviews and monitors its EHRERHEEBESHL -

working capital requirements regularly.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37.
VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

tREREERESMIAND
E1E (#®)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities, based on AEENESMBEERGLNRUMBERSR

the contractual undiscounted cash flows, are as follows: EMEEBEROT
As at 31 March 2023 R-ZE-_=%=A=+—H
Morethan ~ More than
Within 1 year but 2 years Total
1 year or lessthan butlessthan ~ More than undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2years 5years 5years  cash flows amounts
BR-ERT, —EHE MENE ARR
REXEE BRER BRER LENE BREREAE KRl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TiEn TER iR
Trade payables B5RMTE 70,093 - - - 70,003 70,093
Other payables and accruals HitENTERETER 537,834 19,664 26,687 251,638 835,823 780,792
Bank borrowings RITER 121,459 88,364 332,921 - 542,750 489,008
Lease liabilties HEAE 315,722 216,423 312,376 5,070 849,591 813,128
Convertible bonds hRES 6,630 6,630 252,578 - 265,838 230,132
1,051,738 331,081 924,568 256,708 2,564,095 2,383,153
As at 31 March 2022 R-EB-_—H=H=+—H
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years Total
1 year or lessthan  but less than More than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years S5years  cash flows amounts
AR—EN —ENE MEN £ AR
BEXEE EmER BRERM RENE RERELE KEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TEL TEL TAL TAL
Trade payables E5RNTE 75,201 - - - 75,201 75,201
Other payables and accruals HfbENFERETER 244 411 255,248 12,040 224,414 736,113 658,625
Lease liabilities HEaE 334,017 187,973 200,428 13,847 736,265 705,402
Convertible bonds BRESR 7,130 7,130 298,386 - 312,646 285,709
660,759 450,351 510,854 238,261 1,860,225 1,674,937
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
borrowings, convertible bonds and lease liabilities. Bank
borrowings, convertible bonds and lease liabilities issued at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow

interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.

The Group monitors the level of its variable rate borrowings and
fixed rate borrowings and manages the contractual terms of the
interest-bearing financial liabilities. The Group’s interest rate

profile as monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

() Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the

Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period.

37. CREREEREH/IEND

EE @)

= E R

AEENFERBEZRERITER A

BMREFLEEEE - WFHFEREE

M =B 7 IRITREFR —Hﬁ‘ﬂxf HFREE

EF/‘EUA$EI7¥K RERENERR
N TFAER R o

REEETFBF KGR R EE M B R
MKFEREEFEERAR E’]/\Zﬁ1%*”
AEEAEEBERAMNEERER T
() -

(i) FI=ER

TREAIAREER HERERZER
ZRIERBESL

2023 2022
—g-= —E-C
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
BRAI= &4 BIRA% &8
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B TER TR
Fixed rate borrowings: BT FIE RGN :
Bank borrowings PAER 25 4.08%-17.13% 11,198 - -
Lease liabilities HEERE 28 2.66% 813,128 2.69% 705,402
Convertible bonds RRES 32 1.94% 230,132 7.94% 235,709
1,054,458 941,111
Variable rate borrowings: FEFEfE
Bank borrowings RITIER 25 4.03%-4.69% 477,810 - -
477,810 -
1,532,268 941,111
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37. TREABEERSMIAND

VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EE @)
(Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued) F = 2B (4)

(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2023, it was estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would have decreased/
increased the Group’s profit after taxation and retained
profits by approximately HK$3,990,000 (2022: HKSnil).
Other components of consolidated equity would not be
affected in response to a general increase/decrease in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the annualised
impact on the Group’s interest expense that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period arising from floating rate
non-derivative instruments held by the Group as at that
date which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk.

Equity price and investment risks

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from individual
equity investments classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss or fair value through other comprehensive
income. The valuation of the unlisted investments are determined
by reference to the financial forecast of the investees, the recent
transaction price of the same class of instrument or price/
earnings ratio of comparable companies. Investment fund risk is
the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of investment funds
will fluctuate due to changes in the prices of underlying securities
or the financial performance of the funds. All of the Group’s
unquoted investments are held for strategic purpose. Their
performance is assessed regularly based on the information
available to the Group.

In addition, the Group has taken out two life insurance policies
covering a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary which
include investment elements, which the price risk is similar to the
above investment fund risk.

EC Healthcare 248

(i) BREDW

R-ZZTE-=F=RA=+—H " &7
EEEE FF R 100E RS, - AT
FHEMESREFTENBERLT A%
B B Bk 1 0m B R AR B R A AR
A/ HHN493,990,0008 T (Z 2= =
F BT At s R oig
TEeRAMREE -F TREMIHY
425 5

il SRR o AT R AR SR B B B
SEEEENF(LRE  EPRR

SERBEHRFEERAEE @R
RenENERROIFTETE M
BERTANFBNERERNZ AN

= H R -
EEERRRERR

AEBHEEBRKE D BERRAFEFAER
FRAFEFAHEMCEEKGE 2 EMEE
MER BRI E MRS EREAR - 3F LT
KREMGEDRSERIRE TSR -
RETANAMZZERKATELRAR
TARXETF REZETARAREEEW
DNHESCRRIR SR E A AR E SR (E
REHARSOPBERAMBLBORER
PEREENERBRETFIEREERN
HRBRBAEE N BERE S -

o REBER—RMBR AN —H3F
BEERRREBMROASRE  ZERER
ERERZ EERRRE IREES
RERARE

Annual Report 2022/23



Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

Equity price and investment risks (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
change in the fair values of the investments to which the Group
has significant exposure at the end of the reporting period, with
all other variables held constant and before any impact on tax.
There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained
profits and fair value reserve (non-recycling).

The maximum risk resulting from these investments equals their

37.

tREAREEREBMIAND
FE @)

REERRRERR @)

TRINREMBEMEERTTE ARG
ANERABRBHZENBERT  ARER®RE
HIRmE EARBRARE N R FEZEE 5%
MEURRE o B ARE B R RE (RE & &
NHERE (TEARR) RN A BZE -

ZEREFEENRSARERERER

fair value. R ER
Change
Carrying Change in other
amount of in profit comprehensive
investments before tax income
BRER R AT A REMZHE
IREE =) hE=Yiok Lo
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FTET
As at 31 March 2023 RZEZ=F=A=1+—H
Unlisted investments — FVOCI FLETIRE — RAFERA
Hp2mEles 10,419 - 521
Unlisted investments — FVTPL FETRE — RAFETA
B 140,176 7,009 -
150,595 7,009 521
As at 31 March 2022 RZEBE-—F=A=1+—H
Unlisted investments — FVOCI FEMRE — BAFETFA
Hi 2 E R 14,588 - 729
Unlisted investments — FVTPL FEMRE — BAFEFA
B 143,893 7,195 -
158,481 7,195 729

249

FEHE 2022/23



Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37. TREABEERESMIAND

VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 1B @)
(Continued)
Capital management BEXRER

The Group’s main objectives with respect to capital management
include maintaining a solid and stable financing structure to
support its ongoing business growth so that it can continue to
maximise shareholders’ return, and providing an adequate return
to the shareholders by pricing products and services
commensurate with the level of risk.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to the shareholders, return capital to the
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made to the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the year.

Fair value measurement
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and significance of
the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs
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SR

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37.

VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

tREREERESMIAND
E1E (#®)

TRITAEECHIANAFEAER
LI

BRAVEHABNEE

Fair value measurement using

AR5 ESTDVEE

Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERT S EATEE EARAEE
FrRfER BAHE BAZE
(5-ER) (B5=ER) (B=E#) by
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TER
As at 31 March 2023 R-ZE-=£=H=+-H
Financial assets at fair value through AT EFABZNEBERE
profit or loss 1,028 6,323 132,825 140,176
Financial assets at fair value through & A& A 202 E Uz
other comprehensive income SREE - - 10,419 10,419
As at 31 March 2022 R-ZE--§=A=+-H
Financial assets at fair value through 1R A TES A BHH S RERE
profit or loss - 3,954 139,939 143,893
Financial assets at fair value through &2 FE:T AR 2 EUEEH
other comprehensive income TREE - - 14,588 14,588

During the year ended 31 March 2023, there were no transfers of
fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and
financial liabilities, except for certain unlisted equity investments
of HK$nil (2022: HK$22,414,000) were transferred from level 2 to
level 3 due to the absence of recent transaction price of same
class of instruments.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair

value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they
occur.
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HE T -_ZFZA=Z+—BHIFE %
—EREE_ELsHATEAFTETEE
BURTERCREERSRBGE®T
BEoEREAEL  EETIELTERA
WEZHETT(ZE=—F 1 22,414,00087T)
HARZRAETAAHATSEMHE B
REBEE=BRBIN -

AEENBREARBREENREHM[AK
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2
fair value measurements

The unlisted fund investments are not quoted in an active market
and may be subject to restrictions on redemptions. Management
considers the valuation techniques and inputs used in valuing
these investment funds as part of its due diligence prior to
investing to ensure they are reasonable and appropriate and
therefore the net assets value of these funds may be used as an
input into measuring their fair values.

In respect of the unlisted equity investment categorised into Level
2, the valuation of such is estimated by reference to the
transaction price at arm’s length for a same class of equity
instrument.

Valuation technique and inputs used in Level 3
fair value measurements

The fair value of an unlisted equity investment amounting to
HK$14,120,000 (2022: HK$22,740,000) is determined by
referencing to the fair value of underlying properties held by the
investee using the residual approach by taking into account the
redevelopment potential of such properties. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the estimated profit
margin of 5% (2022: 10%) on redevelopment. As at 31 March
2023, it is estimated that with all other variables held constant, a
decrease/increase in estimated profit margin by 1% (2022: 1%)
would have decreased/increased the Group’s profit for the year
by approximately HK$440,000 (2022: HK$500,000).

The fair value of the unlisted fund investment relating to a co-
living project amounting to HK$29,418,000 (2022:
HK$39,418,000) is determined by the income approach based
on the forecast of future cash flows. The fair value measurement
is positively correlated to the average occupancy rate for the next
five years (2023: 91%; 2022: 88%) and negatively correlated to
the discount rate (2023: 14.5%; 2022: 11.4%).

As at 31 March 2023, it is estimated that with all other variables
held constant, a decrease/increase in average occupancy rate
for the next five years by 5% would have decreased/increased
the Group’s profit for the year by approximately HK$9,678,000
and HK$9,074,000 (2022: HK$13,019,000 and HK$13,357,000)
respectively, while a decrease/increase in discount rate by 1%
would have increased and decreased the Group’s profit for the
year by approximately HK$1,815,000 and HK$1,815,000 (2022:
HK$2,835,000 and HK$3,399,000) respectively.
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MOBRE_BENIFELTRAREMS
AER2ZERBRAIANRFRZHER
MEEHETTAE -

FEZEBRAVETERANMGER
g 2 A BB

3 AR AN IR & B9 A F1E 14,120,000 7T
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37. & Frﬂﬂ FAE;EE FEmIAENAD
VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 18
(Continued)
Valuation technique and inputs used in Level 3 E=EBHRATEFEMANGER
fair value measurements (Continued) iy 5z & A\ B8 ()
The returns of the life insurance policies are at the discretion of ASRBENERBRBRABIBRE -
the insurers. Accordingly, management assesses that the It BREENEZERENBEREERER
redemption values of such policies approximate their fair values. HERTE-
The Group’s other investments categorised in Level 3 were REESDFARAF-EMCHEMKRERER
managed by unrelated asset managers who applied various EERERBRENASAREBZNIE
investment strategies to accomplish their respective investment FEEEBTEAETRE -ZEREZATE
objectives. The fair value of these investments is recorded based DIRBEESKBRHEZGEAR - ZEMH
on valuations supplied by the fund managers. These valuations are BEIERILEREEEFENEGELLD
measured by the percentage of ownership of the private equity’s HECHAE—EAABERBAEE - ES
net asset value, which is an unobservable input. The fund KEFAEENEER  SRFZHE
managers apply appropriate valuation techniques such as latest MRRESRE  NEHTRAEREH(ERA
transaction price, discounted cash flow, or a forward price/ NAEEZAIENRARLESEE  UE
earnings multiple arrived at by comparison with publicly-traded ST RMENERLIR) « ZEERF AR T
comparable companies and after applying a liquidity discount. The EWMEMAERBRMSR S ENREE
models are calibrated regularly and tested for validity using prices ARG BEETHAGRAREER
from any observable current market transactions in the same 15 o
instruments or based on any available observable market data.
The movements during the year in the balance of the Level 3 FAEZERT=2HEKEHOT
measurements are as follows:
Unlisted equity Unlisted Investmentsin  Unlisted equity
investments fund life insurance investment
- FVTPL investments policies -Fvocl Total
FEARARE-
¥ ERRARE BAVET AR
-RATEHARE  FLTESRE ABRERE PENE &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T TiEn Tin
At 1 April 2021 RZE-_—ENA—H 21,730 44,418 - - 66,148
Additional contribution BINEE 1,710 - - - 1,710
Acauisitions WEEE - - 58,362 14,588 72,940
Transfer from level 2 BREZE-ER 22,414 - - - 22414
Fair value change DHEES (700) (5,000) (2,989) - (8,689)
At 31 March 2022 and R-E--F=A=1-H
1 April 2022 k-Z--—#mA-A 45,154 39,418 55,367 14,588 154,527
Additional contribution ENTE 1,310 - - - 1,310
Acquisitions WEEE - 11,037 - 3,638 14,675
Falr value change INTELL) (12,768) (7,923) 1,230 (7,807) (27,268)
At 31 March 2023 RZEZZF=A=1-8 33,696 42,532 56,597 10,419 143,244

Financial assets and liabilities not measured at
fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried
at amortised cost are not materially different from their fair values
as at the end of the reporting period.
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38. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 38. ARIPBAMRR K

FINANCIAL POSITION
2023 2022
—E—-= —E- 4
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FET FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B R FIIRE 1 1
Prepayments B A 13,290 13,290
Financial assets at fair value BAFESAEMEAERERN
through other comprehensive TRIEE
income 9,637 9,900
Financial assets at fair value BAFERABRDY
through profit or loss SREE 15,685 17,963
38,613 41,154
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and FENFIE - mek
other receivables E b IR RIE 19,685 2,485
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NG 1,502,065 1,425,953
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIFAESZEEY 2,345 205,063
1,524,095 1,633,501
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables HAth T 5RIE 10,469 4,204
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 1,513,626 1,629,297
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEABERABERS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,552,239 1,670,451
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBERE
Convertible bonds A ES 230,132 235,709
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,322,107 1,434,742
EQUITY % 29(a)
Share capital [N 12 12
Reserves B 1,322,095 1,434,730
1,322,107 1,434,742

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

23 June 2023.

Lu Lyn Wade Leslie

RZEBEZ=FXA-t=-RESFTeitk

R R HETIE

Lee Heung Wing

B HE EqoE
Director Director
EF EF

EC Healthcare

254

Annual Report 2022/23



Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

39. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 39. RIIBATMERE
The following list contains only the particular of subsidiaries which NTHREEHINEFTEFEREB 245 -
principally affected the results, assets and liabilities of the Group. BENMBBZHNBARFE -
Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of held by the Group
incorporation/ Issued AEERENER
establishment/ share capital/ REFDL
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up share capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
EMAL/ BRARK/
WEARER R/ &%% BRERA E# BE  IERH
Able Lead Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 97%  Provision of healthcare services
(BFERAR) B 10,000%7 MR RS
Ace Miracle Enterprises Limited BvI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
ABEMRES 1% REBR
Al Union International Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Sales of skincare products
(RRERREERAT) i 1ET HEERER
AmMed Cancer Center (Cental) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100%  Provision for top notch cancer
A 2ET diagnosis services
SRREDERE
ATO Hair Club Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Hair treatment
A 100787 ERER
Bayley & Jackson Dental Surgeons Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 50%  Provision of dental services
(RHBEFREBAERAR) 96 10087 RETHRS
Best Union (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision of medical, quasi-medical
(8 (PE)ERAF) 6 1A and traditional beauty services
and sale of skincare and beauty
products
REEE REEREGEZARBM
REERERERER
Billon Energy Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment properties
(KEEBRAT) i 1RT REWE
Canadian Asian Neck and Back Institute Limited  Hong Kong HK$100 - 75%  Provision of chiropractic services
(ERBEMEREARLE) B 100787 REEERY
Centre of Rehabilitation & Exercising Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 51%  Provision for rehabiltation services
Specialst Limited B 10,0007 RERERTS
(EEMTREREENRERAT)
Crown Leader Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 51%  Provision for veterinary medical
(BREARAR) B 10,000/87 services
RESHBRERS
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39. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. AHE QA RNIRE &)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of held by the Group
incorporation/ Issued REEBENER
establishment/ share capital/ REBSL
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
SRR/ BRARA/
WEAREH R/ EEHE BRRA Ef g IEEE
Conya Group Limited Hong Kong HK$11,000 - 60%  Provision of dental services
(EREEERAA) A 11,0005 RALTRIRE
Dermagic Skin Treatment Centre Company Hong Kong HK$770 - 85%  Provision of traditional beauty
Limited ik 70787 servioes and sale of skincare and
(BEEERERLARAT) beauty products
RUEREAREARHEEERE
REM
Dr. Pro and Dr. Reborn Medical Aesthetics Macau MOP26,000 - 100%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Centre Limited & 26,0007 7 beauty services
(BEXBBERRLERAE) RUBEEARE
EHC Management Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Investment holding
(EHRFEEEERAA) % 1007 RAZR
Ellisland Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 51%  Provision for veterinary medical
Bl 100077 servioes
RURBEERE
Eternal Harvest International Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 51%  Provision for veterinary medical
(B2ERERAT) 6 10,0003 7T servioes
REEERERE
Excellent Power Investments Limited BVI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
AEAEREE 1%71 RAZR
Gala Equity Limited BvI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
ABEMTES 1% RAZR
Gold Rise Global Limited Hong Kong HK$415 - 85%  Provision of traditional beauty
(EERHKERAT) ik 4158 services and sale of skincare and
beauty products
RUEREAREAREEERR
XREMm
Grand Best Union Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision of administrative services
(EILHBRAT) A 1A RATHRE
Grand Best Union Services Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 90%  Investment holding
A 10057 RARR
Green Mile Veterinary Management Limited Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 - 70%  Provision of veterinary medical
B3 30,000,000 7 senvices

REBEBERY
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39. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. AHE QA RNIRE &)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of held by the Group
incorporation/ Issued REEBENER
establishment/ share capital/ REBSL

Name of subsidiary operation paid-up share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities

iMEL/ ERIRE/

WEARER R/ EEhY BRRE E# BE  FEEH

Guangzhou Zhuansheng Aesthetic Medical Beauty The PRC (Note 1) RMB10,000,000 - 90%  Provision of medical services
Clinic Company Limited wE (FiE) AE10,000,0007T REEERY
(BNELXEEZAMD HERAT)

Guangzhou Zhuansheng Enterprise Management - The PRC (Note 1) RMB500,000 - 90%  Provision of medical services
Company Limited wE (FiE1) AE500,0007 REEERY
(EMEEREEEERAR)

Hair Forest Treatment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Hair treatment

A 10,0004 7 PEER

Hairchitect Institute (Harbour City) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,200 - 75%  Hair Treatment
(BEMEZ R (88 ERAR) B 12007 LS 3

Health Easy Dental Group Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 60%  Provision of dental services
(RETHEEERAT) i 100787 TR T RIR

Health & Care Dental Clinic Limited Hong Kong HK$8,708,433 - 100%  Provision of dental services
(BRFREBMERLR) A 8,708,433 %7 RETHRS

Health & Care Dental Services Limited Hong Kong HK$800,000 - 100%  Provision of dental services
(BETHEBERLR) & 800,000/ RETRRS

Health & Care (Macau) Dental Group Limited Macau MOP25,000 - 100%  Provision of dental services
(B CRF) THEBERAA) AP 25,0007t TRHETRIR

High Group Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Investment holding
(PBELBRAA) & 10077 RERRK

Hong Kong Medical Advanced Imaging Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$80,000,000 - 426%  Provision of medical imaging

B 80,000,000% 7 (Note 2) services
(Hz2)  REBEZERH
Hong Kong Medical Advanced Imaging Hong Kong HK$35,000,000 - 35%  Provision of medical imaging
(TST) Limited 3 35,000,000 7T services
REEEYERH
Hong Kong Medical Endoscopy Center Limited  Hong Kong HK$100 - 73%  Provision of medical surgery
B 10047 services
RESRTFHRS
Hong Kong Oncology Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Provision of medical services
B 10,0005 RUEBERY

Hong Kong Orthopaedic and Clinical Myotherapy - Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 - 45%  Provision of medical services

Limited ik 20,000,000% 7 Note2)  RERERHE
(Bt 2)

BERE 257 FEHE 2022/23



Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

39. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. AHE QA RNIRE &)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of held by the Group
incorporation/ Issued REEBENER
establishment/ share capital/ REBSL
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
iMEL/ ERIRE/
WEARER R/ EEhY BRRE E# BE  FEEH
Hong Kong Orthopaedic and Spine Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100%  Provision of medical services
BEERRAERLERAT B 2% RESERS
Hong Kong Pain And Wellness Solution Limited ~ BVI US$10,000 - 75%  Investment holding
RERERRE 10,000%7 REHR
Hong Kong Polyclinics Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 60%  Provision of medical services
B 1A RUEBERS
Hong Kong Polyclinics Limited BvI 1US$10,000 - 60%  Investment holding
REEERRE 10,000%7T REAR
Hong Kong Professional Vaccine Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Provision of Vaccine services
A 10,0007t REEERS
Hongkong Professional Pediatrics Vaccine Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 9%  Provision of Vaccine services
B 10,0005 REEERS
Hong Kong Veterinary Imaging Center Limted  Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 51%  Provision of medical imaging
(BEBEYETLARLE) 6 1,007 services
RESEYERH
Honor Hong Kong Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10 - 100%  Sales of skincare products
(FEEBERERLT) Bl 1087 HEERER
Honour Year Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000 - 55%  Investment holding
A 20,0007 RERR
Humphrey & Partners Medical Services Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision for medical services
Management Limited Eh 13T RERERE
iMedtech Limited BvI USS$1 - 100%  Investment holding
RBREREE 1%L REZR
Jade Master International Limited BvVI US$10 - 100%  Investment holding
ABEMREE 0% REHR
King Equity Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 51%  Provision for veterinary medical
(FEREBRAR) % 10,000/87 services
RURBRERE
Langham Crystal Eye Center Limited Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 - 100%  Provision of eye services
B 15,000,000/ REERRS
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39. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. AHE QA RNIRE &)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of held by the Group
incorporation/ Issued REEBENER
establishment/ share capital/ REBSL
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
iMEL/ ERIRE/
WEARERE R/ EEhY ARBA B B IEEH
Laugh and Shine Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Provision of dental services
B 10057 U T RIRT
Majai Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 75%  Provision of veterinary medical
SHERAT & 1000387 senvices
REHEZERS
Mainwell Beauty Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000 - 73.3%  Provision of hair services
(EHERAR) B 2,000%7 RERERY
Marvel Champion Group Limited BVI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
(REEEERAR) ABEMTES 1%ET REHR
Mboer (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
B 10,0005 REHR
Mber Limited BvI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
EREERES 157 REBR
Mckenzie Capital Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$40,000,000 - 51%  Investment holding
B 40,000,000/t REBR
Mckenzie Healthcare Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 51%  Provision of medical services
(EEREEERAA) R 10,000%7T REEERS
Medic One Surgery Center Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision of management services
Bl 1AL REEERE
Mobile Medical Int'l Gentre Ltd BvI US$100 - 75%  Investment holding
AEERRES 100%7T RERR
Mobile Medical & Health Check Cir Ltd Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Provision of medical services
FAB2ERTLERLA & 10087 REBERY
My Healthcare Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 75%  Leasing and hospital income
A 100%7T BERFRBA
New Elte Inc. Limited Hong Kong HK$10 - 100%  Provision of medical and tradtional
(FEEXERAA) % 1031 beauty services and sale of
skincare and beauty products
RESRRESFARBURBEEE
ERERER
New Medical Centre Holding Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 51%  Investment holding
B 10,0007 REHR
New Union International Capital Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision of management services
(FBERERERAT) B 1ET REERRS
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39. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. AHE QA RNIRE &)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of held by the Group
incorporation/ Issued REEBENER
establishment/ share capital/ REBSL
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
HRRL/ BRARA/
WEAREH R/ &%n% BRRA Ef g IEEE
New York Medical Group Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 100%  Provision of chiropractic services
(BHBRERE) A 1,000/ RARRE
New York Medical Group (HO) Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Provision of chiropractic services
A 100%T RARRE
Pathlab Medical Laboratories Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 73%  Provision of laboratory testing
(RuBBIRHERAR) & 5,000,000 7 senvices
RUBSBRE
Perfect Magnum Limited BvI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
AEBEMTES B REHR
Plenty Business Limited BvI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
ABEMRESR I REHR
Pioneer Evolution Limited BVI US$1 - 60%  Investment holding
ABEMTEE E RERR
Presminent Medical Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 51%  Provision of medical services
(EAERRLERDT) % 1,000,000% 7T RUBERE
Premier Medical Group (BVI) Limited BVI Us$10 - 70%  Investment holding
ABAERES 10%71 REHR
Prime Inspire Limited BvI US$1,000 - 70%  Provision for mutti-channel
ABEMTEE 1,000%7 networking services
RESEERBRE
Prime Kids Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 51%  Provision Psychological Services
A 100%7T RALDIER
Professional Aesthetic Surgery Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 00%  Provision of management services
(EXEEERHLBRAT) A 1R RALEERE
Professional Medical and Surgery Center Limited  Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision of management services
(ERBEEATOBRAR) A 1A REERE
Qualigenics Medical Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000 - 100%  Provision for medical services
(BEEEERAA) & 3,000/%7C RESERS
Reliable Global Group Limited BvI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
ABEMTES E RAZR
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39. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. AHE QA RNIRE &)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of held by the Group
incorporation/ Issued REEBENER
establishment/ share capital/ REBSL
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
HRRL/ ERIRE/
WEARER R/ EEhY BRRE E# BE  FEEH
Sure-Care Medical and Health Cayman Limted ~ Cayman HK$99,064 - 30.32%  Provision of medical services
(EERBRERAA) REHS 99,0647 Note2) — REBEMRY
iE))
Swiss Line by Dermalab Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 100%  Sales of skincare products
(ENEBRAT) A 1,000%7 HEERED
Team Expert Investment Limited BvI USS$1 - 100%  Investment holding
RBRERHE 1%L REZR
The New Medical Center Limited Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 - 51%  Provision of medical services
B 15,000,000%7C RUEEERY
The New Medical Imaging Center Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Provision of medical imaging
B 100587 services
RERSYERE
The One Dental Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Provision of dental services
Bl 10077 TR AR
The One Dental Plus Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Provision of dental services
i 1A RETHRS
The One Dental Threg Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Provision of dental services
B 10047 RETHRS
UMH GP Network (Kwun Tong) Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 - 80%  Provision of medical services
R 3,000,000 7 RERERE
UMH GP Network Holding Limited BvI US§1 - 100%  Investment holding
ABEMRES 1%L REBR
UMH GP Network Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Provision of medical services
(BRRZEEEBRAT) 6 10057 RUEBERY
UMH Summit Medical Limited Hong Kong HK$12,000,000 - 100%  Provision of medical services
(BREHERAR) 6 12,000,000%7C RUEBERY
UMH Treasury Services Alpha Limited Hong Kong HK$10 - 100%  Holding of healthcare machines
B 1087 FHEERR
UMH Treasury Services Beta Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Holding of healthcare machines
A 10,000% 7T BEEEER
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39. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. AHE QA RNIRE &)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of held by the Group
incorporation/ Issued REEBENER
establishment/ share capital/ REBSL
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
iMEL/ ERIRE/
WEARERE R/ EEhY ARBA B B IEEH
Union (Group) Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$29,608 - 100%  Provision of medical, quasi-medical
(B4 (£8)RERRAE) A 29,6087 and traditional beauty services
and sale of skincare and beauty
products
REBE  RERRERRAREMU
REEEEREAER
Union Advanced Imaging Holding Limited BVI US$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
EREERES 10,000%7 REZR
Union Capital Investment Holding Limited BvVI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
REEEREE 157 RERR
Union Dental Holding Limited BvI USS1 - 100%  Investment holding
EREERES 157 REBR
Union Dermatory Holding Limited BvI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
HEEERES 1%L REBR
Union Enchanting Limited BvVI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
(BaRCERRA) REEERRE B3 AR
Union General Surgery Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Provision of medical services
R 100%7T REEERS
Union Harvest Corporation Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Provision of marketing services
(S2ARAR) A 1A R R
Union Health Services Holding Limited BvVI USS$1 - 100%  Investment holding
EREERES 157 REZR
Union Honor International Enterprise Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Provision of management services
(BEERCXERRR) B 10,000%7 REEERY
Union Lab Holding Limited BvVI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
HEEERRR 1%L REBR
Union Medical Association Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Owner of trademarks
A 1A HEREAA
Union Medical Capital Management Limited BvVI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
HEEERER 157 REBR
Union Medical Technology Holdings Limited BvI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
EEEERES 15T AR
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39. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. AHE QA RNIRE &)

Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of held by the Group
incorporation/ Issued REEBENER
establishment/ share capital/ REBSL
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
iMEL/ ERIRE/
WEARER R/ EEhY BRRE E# BE  FEEH
Union Neurology and Orthology Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 75%  Provision of medical services
i 10077 RHEBERS
Union Oncology Holding Limited BvI 1US$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
ABEMTEE 10,000%7 REBR
Union Preventive Healthcare Limited BvVI USS1 - 100%  Investment holding
REEERRE 1%T REAR
Union Trichology Limited BvI 1JS$20,000 - 75%  Investment holding
ABEMRES 20,0007 REZR
Wincom Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 51%  Provision for veterinary medical
(EAERAA) % 10087 services
RESEERRS
Window-Discovery Tours Limited Hong Kong HK$800,000 - 97%  Provision of a fravel agency services
(BRREERAA) B 800,000/ ARSI R
Young Aesthetics Medical Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - %%  Provision of aesthetic medical
(REBEBRAR) BE 10047 sevices
RESEXARH
Note 1: The subsidiaries are wholly-foreign owned enterprises in the PRC. W1 ZENBRARATRBEIEBEDLE -
Note 2: These two entities with effective interest held by the Group lower than M2« REBFETE50% B REE R B Z M
50% are subsidiaries of the Group as the Group controls the ERANEENMERR - HHRAE
compositions of the respective boards of directors. EiEdSEEETERNMEX -
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40. IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 31 March 2023, the directors consider the immediate parent
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Union Medical
Care Holding Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI. Union
Medical Care Holding Limited does not produce financial
statements available for public use.

41. NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER
REPORTING PERIOD

(@) After the end of the reporting period, the directors
proposed a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in
note 29(b).

(b) On 7 February 2023, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement to acquire 100% equity interest in
Excellent Connect Limited (“Excellent Connect”), which is
engaged in the distribution of aesthetic medical devices
and beauty related consumables in Hong Kong. The
consideration consists of the cash consideration of
HK$100,000,000 and the contingent consideration of
HK$25,000,000. Subsequent to the acquisition, the shares
of the immediate holding company of Excellent Connect at
a fair value of HK$12,500,000 would be transferred to the
seller. The acquisition was completed on 1 April 2023.
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40. HERRRERTS

41.

RZZZ=F=ZA=+—HB ' £FRAX
SENEEE QR RREERAFR/NE
B 4 B R B & 5t B SZ A9 Union Medical
Care Holding Limited ¢ Union Medical Care
Holding Limited I #& 47 &4 7] 4 2 R & B A9 B
B -

BEHRNFERAREE

(@

=

VREHMARE EEERIRER
I B o i — B IE AT FE29(0)

o

&

b

==

O

RZFEZ=F-AtR ~&EEFIZ
B & % % LA Uk BE Excellent Connect
Limited ([ Excellent Connect]) #7100%
fi% 4% » Excellent Connect R & & 1t &
DIHEBRRERE R EDHBEREM
KB #2153 & 1K & 100,000,000 7% 7T
K30 AR (B 25,000,000 7T o 7 U B
£ 1A 1%  Excellent Connect B # 3% I%
AR E AR 1 1 % A 18 12,500,000 7
TERTES WESFEHEERZ-Z
—ZFMA—BEX
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42. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 42 EEMEHMARRBE-_ZE_-=
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS F=ZRA=1T—HLFEERN
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE B3] - FTEARREBNATRR
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 =
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA BEEZEUBHERTEBR 5
has issued a number of new or amended standards, which are NREEBRHRBE_ZE=_=F=A=1+—
not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2023 and which BIEFERARERNE T LB %
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These Al - WARZEVBWMKRPERM - ZF
developments include the following which may be relevant to the BRI BIE AT Al e B AR L AR R e 22 A -
Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RTH BN =%
FRHN ST LR
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, 1 January 2023
Disclosure of accounting policies
BAGHEUNE 1R RBEBMBRELNERREF 2RIET ST H K KE —E-=F—HA—H
Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of accounting estimates 1 January 2023
BEEGTERNESRIER] @af Rt 2 T —E_=F—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and 1 January 2023
//ab/lities arising from a single transaction
BERGHENFE12REHE R GELRERBERAFEERE —E-=F—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2024
BAGENE RIS HEE S E R B LI E —ET_MNF—-—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: 1 January 2024
Non-current liabilities with covenants
BERGERNE 1RSI BEREZZS - WERFELIFREEE —ZE-NWF—-A—H
Amendments to HKFRS 16, Leases: Lease liability in a sale and leaseback 1 January 2024
ERUMBMEENE16REFIHE - RERHLHEERE —E-WFE-HA—A
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or contribution of assets between To be determined
an investor and its associate or joint venture
BAMBREERE 105 REBEGTHERE 285755 FEE
REZBERBENFE PRz BEHERTA
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what AEEFETHZEEEMEE XER
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the period HEEENTZ - BRI AL - ARFR
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of FRNZEENPRAIge g HER & B mE
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated EEERFE -

financial statements.
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Executive Directors

TANG Chi Fai (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
LU Lyn Wade Leslie (Co-Chief Executive Officer)
LEE Heung Wing Levin (Chief Financial Officer)

WONG Ka Ki Ada (Chief Strategy Officer & Chief Investment Officer)

WONG Chi Cheung Gemini (Chief Digital Officer)

Non-Executive Director
LUK Kun Shing Ben (Chief Information Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

MA Ching Nam

LOOK Andrew

AU Tsun (Appointed on 1 September 2023)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

LOOK Andrew (Chairman)
MA Ching Nam
AU Tsun (appointed on 1 September 2022)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

TANG Chi Fai (Chairman)
LOOK Andrew
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

AU Tsun (Chairman)
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SIU Chun Pong Raymond
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Ltd.

Suite 1601, 16/F, Central Tower

28 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF

BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

L50, Langham Place Office Tower
8 Argyle Street

Mong Kok

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

as to Hong Kong law

Raymond Siu & Lawyers

Units 1302-3 & 1802, Ruttonjee House
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Central, Hong Kong

as to PRC Law

Zhong Lun Law Firm
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AUDITOR
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Certified Public Accountants
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Central
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Definitions

“AGM”

[BERBFARE]

“Articles of Association”

[#BA=RAmR ]

“Audit Committee”
[BZZEg]

“Board”

[EEg]

“CG Code”

“Chinese Medicine

Practitioner(s)”

[

“Company”

[ARE ]

“Director(s)”
=N

“EBITDA”

[BRITE R 2 8F ]

EC Healthcare

the annual general meeting of the Company proposed to be held on 23
August 2023
BEN B _FN\ATZARTHNEARRRRBERS

the Company’s articles of association
AT EIZ A

the audit committee of the Board
BEELREREES

the board of Directors

Exg

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, as amended from time to time
TR AR 14 BTS2 B A Al (B TREHERT)

person(s) who is (are) registered as registered Chinese medicine
practitioner(s) of the Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong under the
Register of Chinese Medicine Practitioners kept in accordance with the
Chinese Medicine Ordinance
RIRBECRBEEADEFNPEIMafrafMad i EREgRE 8 g
REMAL

EC Healthcare B E 5 (formerly known as Union Medical Healthcare
Limited (B8 E B EEEEARAF), an exempted Company incorporated
in the Cayman lIslands with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

EC Healthcare 2 B R (AIBESEREREBERARY) - RFESHSTM
PRV ERR R BR AT - HRGO B ER M

the director(s) of the Company
KARIES

earnings before interests, taxation, depreciation-owned property, plant and

equipment and amortisation

Rt AFE -~ BIH - BAEVE  BELRBINEREHE BT
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E&

“Greater Bay Area”

[REE

“Greater China’
[ KA |

“Group”
[ A 5E ]

“g.f.a”
[RIET TS ]

“Healthcare Professionals”

[fRERES |

HKS”
5]

“Hong Kong’

(&%)

city cluster cross the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau region, consisting of
Hong Kong, Macau and nine cities in Guangdong Province, namely,
Dongguan, Foshan, Guangzhou, Huizhou, Jiangmen, Shenzhen, Zhaoqing,
Zhongshan and Zhuhai

BR-EFE-RFI(EER) WRAOMTE - 2FE5  RFIRERENLERT
(BUERESE ~ @Rl ~ B~ BN - IPY ORI - B - RILRIKE)

Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
RER - HAE  RFIRAE

the Company and its subsidiaries
R REM B AT

gross floor area
MRIEHEEE

person(s) registered with the respective boards or councils before he/she is
allowed to practise in Hong Kong under the relevant laws of Hong Kong as
may be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time.
The 13 healthcare professionals comprise Chinese medicine practitioners,
chiropractors, dental hygienists, dentists, medical laboratory technologists,
medical practitioners, midwives, nurses, pharmacists, occupational
therapists, optometrists, physiotherapists and radiographers
FERERIBFIBENRERT » BRIAREMANERNEEBBENETERNE
ZA EHEAEFENREEEELOAL - 1I3ERREREERESRE - A
B TRMRIEE - TR BB BAE  BEL  EL - R BE¥e
FERM ~ BRYLAD - ¥IRIE R AN K pAT BRAm

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BEBETEEET

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of

China
R ARENEE B RTHE
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Definitions

E&

“Listing Date”
[ 7 B &7

“Listing Rules”
[ Em#R Al

MEA”
[R8]

“Macau”
[P ]

“Macau Doctor(s)”

[JRPIEe A |

“Medical Professionals”

[BREXAE]

“Memorandum and Articles of

Association”

[ =2 KM R 48R

“Model Code”

EESET

“Mr. Tang”

(&5 ]

“PRC”
[ e

EC Healthcare

11 March 2016, being the date on which the shares were first listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange
ZE-RF=ZA+—H  AROEREBZFER LT ZA

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B2 PTRE % AR Bl

merger and acquisition
A 0F M e

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
FREE A R AFBDRPI R RIFTE R

doctor(s) licensed by and registered with the department of health in Macau
(RFIEFRIITE R BN B A R)
ERFIFRITRE BN ERT A RELE

Healthcare Professionals, excluding Registered Practitioners
RRERES - TRETME

the Company’s memorandum and article of association

ARRRABERAM LR

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FTRAIMSE A0 FrE E BT AB RETEA R ZORESFAD

Mr. Tang Chi Fai, the chairman, executive Director and the chief executive
officer of the Company
RATER  PITESRITREIEEEEE

the People’s Republic of China
hEE AR KA
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“PRC Doctor(s)”
[ FR [ Ay ih B8 A |
“Prospectus”

[HEER]

“Registered Practitioner(s)”

[ R 1T 28 &

“Reporting Period”
[R5 HA

“Sales Volume”
[ &%
“Share(s)”
(A&7 |

“Shareholder(s)”
[ P& 3R

“Stock Exchange”
[ B2 BT

medical practitioner(s) with the qualification of a doctor (% £f) or assistant
doctor (¥13£BhI2EFAD) under the PRC Law on Medical Practitioners (FFZE A
R AT 2 EE0%) and is practicing at a medical or healthcare institution
BE(PEARLMEANFEMEZ) AERMREDEZBMEARNEE - T8
BRI

the prospectus dated 1 March 2016 issued by the Company
ARBRZZE—RNFZA—HHENRBBRER

registered dentist within the meaning of the Dentists Registration Ordinance
(Cap. 156), registered medical practitioner within the meaning of the Medical
Registration Ordinance (Cap. 161), registered chiropractor within the
meaning of the Chiropractors Registration Ordinance (Cap. 428), listed or
registered Chinese medicine practitioner within the meaning of the Chinese
Medicine Ordinance (Cap. 549), Macau Doctors and PRC Doctors
CFeaigs) (F156 %) Arigm A e - (BAEFMIEH)(F161 %) Frig
MEEME L - (S BRI (F428%) FricMaMAE - (REBEIEH) (5
549F ) FTiEM Ry sk st eh 88 - JRPIE A f R B Ayt B8

financial year ended 31 March 2023
HE_Z-_=F=-A=+—HULHBFE

being the total sales volume generated from contracted sales entered into,
and all products and services offered by the Group
BETUMEREEA RN EEIRME A Em MR PTE £V ERIHER

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company with par value of
HK$0.00001 each

AR EII AR A E B 0.00001 7 7T #) 3 38 A

holder(s) of Share(s)
SSGEVESEEDN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BERBMAERHMAERATE
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Definitions

“Trained Therapists” our employees who have completed mandatory internal training developed
by our Doctors to provide quasi-medical services and/or traditional beauty
services under our internal licensing programme

[ B8R IEFIH) e RAD B ek H AP B8 A 1 18 B9 5% 1 1 N BRI AR AR B P M BE A PT A2 Fr AR R B8 R AR
Bk SEFEDREHES

“YoY” year-on-year
[RIEE ] Eil

“%” per cent.
[%] Btk
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ERB R R

Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
RESEEEMBZZ2BRAT
(Stock Code B # 1£55: 2138)
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